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Tree

Karina Delicia Simon
Coloured pencil on paper
90 x 80 cm

Tree, a Highly Commended artwork of the 2022 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore) competition, Established Artist Category, is the design inspiration
for this year's Annual Report. The artwork is inspired by the spontaneity and playfulness of a child where the outcome is filled with possibilities.

Using a specialised photorealistic coloured pencil technique, the artist achieved a realistic impression of a healthy tree growing tall and wide.
As a bank with strong Asian heritage and deep Southeast Asian roots, UOB is committed to our Purpose of ‘Building the future of ASEAN', doing
Right By You as we continue to support the success of our customers. Embodying strength and resilience, the blossomed tree also reflects the
sustainability impact we hope to make for the long term.

As the leading patron of the arts in Asia, UOB believes in the vital role of art in connecting communities. In its 415 year in 2022, the Bank's

flagship art programme, the UOB Painting of the Year competition, is currently held across four Southeast Asian markets in which UOB has
a deep presence.
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What We Do

R RIEO0FE, REERITIHAUT R AR, UEIEKIZNEN BT, SiHE#, EF18

Asia Pacific, Europe and North America.

o, R P RZRIREN—, EFHEF. KERTEFTRERBERNNE S HE, HEERD UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
AR EIF R K, through our three core business segments - Group Retail,
Group Wholesale Banking and Group Global Markets.
KIEERE— BRI 5L, KEERITEE BN FF B AR BTz . B SR Our offering includes consumer banking, private banking,
MEFAR, KERTHSESUE P IHSEF KRR T ENNRET, A HE S ERIRS AL commercial banking, transaction banking, investment
TR 5o banking and treasury services. Through our subsidiaries,
we also provide asset management, private equity fund
Hﬁ RESRATEA T HAE W EIRERE, AR R SFEHR, IR TR, i management and insurance services, among others.
smnan RIS HIE R, KEERITREM™IE S RS RARS G, F IR PRI XTI A8 IR
EEEEES WN—HEGE, REFA BT IFEARLE, HE) LEMAEHMSHItS#E T,
ﬂ—- . . . . . .
____"'"" UOB is a leading bank in Asia. Operating through its
- head office in Singapore and banking subsidiaries
snnnns in China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand and
.. Vietnam, UOB has a global network of around
4 500 offices in 19 countries and territories in

Since its incorporation in 1935, UOB has grown organically and through a series of
strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the world's top banks: Aal by
Moody's Investors Service and AA- by both S&P Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings.

For nearly nine decades, UOB has adopted a customer-centric approach to create
long-term value by staying relevant through its enterprising spirit and doing right
by its customers. UOB is focused on building the future of ASEAN - for the people
and businesses within, and connecting with ASEAN.

- --—I
X NT

The Bank connects businesses to opportunities in the region with its unparalleled
regional footprint and leverages data and insights to innovate and create personalised
banking experiences and solutions catering to each customer’s unique needs and
evolving preferences. UOB is also committed to help businesses forge a sustainable
future, by fostering social inclusiveness, creating positive environmental impact and
pursuing economic progress.

UOB believes in being a responsible financial services provider and is steadfast in
its support of art, social development of children and education, doing right by its
communities and stakeholders.
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Where We Operate

~500 |

RIERITEIT X BUHAdc =t X BELY
500 R BT RIIER,

branches and offices in Asia Pacific,

Europe and North America
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About UOB China

RERITHENA

RIERTT (RE) BIRATE KERTHE) 2IMETL.  United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB China) is a wholly-owned
M ARERTERAT (KESRIT) BIELESEFA  subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB), a leading bank in
B, AR E A ARITER. AERITHET2007  Asia. UOB China is headquartered in Shanghai and was incorporated
F12818HFMAIL, SEBIRTE LB in the People’s Republic of China on 18 December 2007.

B19844F, KESRITHEILRIFIE T £ —a/hEL LK,  From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have grown

REERTHFEENEETENEERHAETRERS  our network to 16 branches and sub-branches in major Chinese cities.

S i
We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006, UOB was the

Bl TR BT NsRER S ERISE /7. 20065, KAERITRANE  first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to settle capital accounts in

BE—RFHAEP A ERAKENREIR{T.2008  Shanghai. We received a retail Renminbi (RMB) licence and Shanghai

F, KESEITHRERFRET ARTEE A SHEME; 20114,  Gold Exchange (SGE) trading membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively.

KREFTHERET LEFSRZFARTHEESES  In 2012, we were awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors

RERRAENE;2012F78, KERITHEFBEKRIE  licence, and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion

RN ZEE (QDI) &, 128, XKETiR{TIEES  trading on the SGE interbank platform. UOB China is one of the first

WNER, RABEHRBILMARNERINEE{TZ  foreign banks to obtain a local mutual fund licence in China in 2013.

—o 20134, KEERITHEMR N E—HEPERFSDH  The following year, we established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Free

B BERBIINERITZ —. 20144, KERTTHE  Trade Zone, and obtained a trial market maker licence for interbank

%3 EBERRKRX 1T, HRAEHIKERITEIN  gold bilateral transactions and a market maker licence for direct trading

CHI AR TEEBTRARKIBTEESH  between RMB and the Singapore dollar in the interbank foreign exchange

MR ZEREH AR RIINERITZ —. 20154, K% market. We also obtained the gold import and export licence in 2015.

RITHERE T B3 OITEF A,

In 2018, UOB China became one the first market makers do execute direct
20184, KESFITHERAEH A RMXNRGKEIEIS  trading between the RMB and the Thai Baht. The Bank also successfully
WMHEZz—, HFRAT T H=EHNSREXEMR  priced its three-year onshore RMB Financial bond through the China
TEmIERRAABIRTATIER GR35 @ £/ interbank market and the Bond Connect scheme (BCS), which is the first
020194, KIERITHERAN LSHRRZZR%E =% onshore financial bond issued by a Southeast Asian bank through the
INRIRITR R FR A “ BB MERENSF.2020  BCS. In 2019, UOB China became the first Southeast Asia-headquartered
F, KEFTHERANBEARTRZRAATHIE  bank to be a member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange and the first ; -
T AEMINRRITR R 20215, KEFETHEMRAE  foreign bank to be a Fixing Member for the Shanghai Silver Benchmark s . o A L -
HARTWENE AL B MR —0.20225, Kk Price. UOB China also became one of the first foreign bank members of .
ERITHERAETEFHE (LB BHRZIREX  the Cross-border RMB Trade Finance Trading Platform in 2020. In 2021,
& H A XBIINERIT XEHH—FST BT A%EE  the Bankis approved to be one of the first direct market makers for RMB
TEFENLS, and Indonesian Rupiah. In 2022, UOB China became the first foreign bank
to set up presence in Lingang Special Area. These achievements have
20156, KEERTERABAERITHEEMNEZRES25 enabled us to widen our product and service offering to our customers
ZTE ANRT, HF2022F e B HR20127T. BRI, K operating in China.
ERITHESFMAREARR/SZTART, K60 S
SRR EAHTL, RIREAAAR, TTRBEYNIBE, UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB China by RMB2.5
billion in 2015 followed by another capital increase in 2022. UOB China'’s
EA—R™IE R RS RIRSHM, A1 AR AF  current registered capital is RMBZ.5 billion and the Bank is rated ‘A+'
TR AN E B X HRNTEENIEGESE.F(]  with a stable outlook by Fitch Ratings and ‘AAA’ with a stable outlook
TN LE I E R SEEENAMEMEEBNEWEY by China Cheng Xin International.
Bl SR, FEREREHEZA) LBENHE=X
TR R R, We believe in being a responsible financial services provider and we are
committed to making a difference in the lives of our stakeholders and
in the communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated to
helping our customers manage their finances wisely and to grow their
businesses, UOB China is steadfast in our support of social development,
particularly in the areas of art, children and education.
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I Financial Highlights

FEWSER

2022 2021 Increase
(Decrease)
ZEMR Operating result A KM+t RMB'000 %
Bl AEt Total operating income 1,778,561 1,597,541 11.3
EEEH Total operating expenses 1,107,938 1,064,569 41
GV A=k S Impairment charges 29,891 132,364 (77.4)
Tt RiAE Profit before tax 640,401 398,421 60.7
BEfR Balance sheet AEK™ Tt RMB'000 %
BRIt Total assets 77,203,355 78,220,119 (1.3)
55 4atn Financial indicators % % %
I NP S Return on equity 5.8 46 1.2
A RIS Return on average total assets 0.7 0.4 0.3
FRASUIN L Expenses/income ratio 61.4 65.7 (4.3)
FEBRAEFBNLL RN Net fee and commission income/ 10.2 10.3 (0.1)
total operating income

FHIL Loan-to-Deposit ratio 95.4 96.1 (0.7)
A= Leverage ratio 9.7 7.4 2.3
FREME Non-performing loan ratio 0.6 0.3 0.3
WEBEE: Non-performing loan coverage ratio 424.9 796.3 (371.4)
HRRER Provision-to-loan ratio 2.5 25 -
pizal kA URiGES Liquidity matching ratio 129.8 123.4 6.4
REURENE B =78 B =R High-quality liquid assets adequacy ratio 194.8 221.9 (27.1)
RIS FE B EIEIR Capital adequacy ratio

BO—RABRTRER Core Tier 1 CAR 16.8 13.2 36

—RATTEE Tier 1 CAR 16.8 13.2 3.6

RERFTREK Total CAR 19.6 16.0 3.6

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Chairman’s Statement I

EERKNH

SEERIEERIN), LH] T —REERET R, HEM AT,
FUEARERIT, TN T EI S MG TR SHEK,
WRES AA MR KB A IR EES S mER S 3t
EIRL KAV AZ T, BNt TR BE, SRINE.

PE-REXIH B E BRURARE

2022 B MEN—F R IBAHERNEBLS T, FELES
M NEEERFMo

REZMERBNZ BT BN, AT N5 2K ER
B%, S8 7T BRMERNEMA BRI ST, ZERTTLL
RIFTRA BRE RIS 55,

SE, 2GR RIFEMER AMEILN, BE (IS EEST
INFEXRANED (RCEP) E2022F 1B 1HER AR, FERRR
P EEXEEEX —FFRETINR, WL H O AEIE K15%,
RBEBREREPES —KAZUHF

EREZRS B EBEhERR, H 3T REF RRE",
FAMBEIMNETRTE2023MK AR MEITEEMN 2 554
BT, HEMEREEINRE 7.

202255 k5
20225 KAERITRELL SR 5, 53 FIRNBIZEIIE KL

R RERKRH T, HiT2022F 48R EF51.7%,
K ARMS5MZTT,

The cover of this year's Annual Report depicts a tree a painting
titled “Tree’, that is growing strong, full of life and vitality. At
UOB, we are constantly looking for ways to grow, not just our
business, but also our people and the communities around us.
And we want our stakeholders, colleagues and communities
to reach their full potential and to fulfil their ambitions as we
grow together.

Greater China-ASEAN connectivity

2022 has been an intense year and the changes brought
about by the pandemic continue to impact businesses and
our personal lives.

It was a year where COVID-19 restrictions were finally lifted in
many parts of the world. However, supply chain disruptions
and geopolitical tensions have also driven up food and
energy prices. As a result, inflation remains stubbornly high
and central banks around the world have raised interest rates
at unprecedented speed.

This year, the global economy is poised to slow down. Nearer
to home, however, China-ASEAN connectivity has been
greatly enhanced with the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP) agreement that came into force on 1January
2022. Bilateral trade grew 15 per cent, with ASEAN continuing
to be China's largest trade partner three years in a row.

As China exits COVID-19 restrictions and focuses on stabilising
its economic growth, the region will be a bright spot in 2023.
As evident from our retail and wholesale banking businesses,
consumption and investments are restarting and picking
up speed.

Strong financial performance
2022 was a strong year financially for UOB China. We achieved
record net profit of RMB505 million in 2022, up 51.7 per cent

from the previous year, driven by strong income growth and
lower impairment charges.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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I Chairman’s Statement

EERKNH

EWRANFELE EANB%EART7.8127T. R, RPRIGHL
Wi EItt EF+27.9%, EERM T HRER UMINC = mEEEE Ko
[EEY, JITHRE TR M EREH—D K, BB E LG
AR BN FEIEEE1K6.8%, E AR 11.9127T0

B HREILE EA41%ZEARMIMZ T, RIS R RIFIA G
BRI T R K &S, BB ER KB TE77.4%
£0.31Z7t0

20226 K, WRARE EA3I%E ART403.512 7T, FRRAEA
ARM409.3127T. AT R RE R, TRERENO0.6%.

B1E20226128318, RITRIFBRGHUREIEKT, RepET
EERM BRI R FRER D5 129.8%F1194.8%, iTiB
P RMEEEER,

HRTZO—RBETRERMERETEE D5 /916.8%H
19.6%, ZETREEEER,

B8, RKERITHENEGEM S KIREZA+LUNFIREAAA
&, R REIINAZTE

BITNRE. REARERLLSE

2022%F, RKEERITER R B Bhmh@ I, H LU BRE R RIS T3
N8, HEERDAMEWHIERGF AR FNRERE . NEIT
X—RE, HITEEETEKEE. €GB L= aER M
BImERR 1o

o ERRNSS T, FFERBR AT R RRRE
SHYBEEIRIT, i, FAPRAERRIZ— ARV S5 EEFNTT
Ak 5T KXMAER WM

o EEEWSTE, KNBATHRNERNEREZAUE
2, AL, FA TN R EL S EFRIRS SRS R

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Total operating income increased 11.3 per cent to RMB1.8
billion, of which trading and investment income rose 27.9
per cent, driven by improved gains from precious metals and
foreign exchange products. Meanwhile, net interest income
increased 6.8 per cent to RMB1.2 billion, led by interest margin
expansion resulted from ongoing optimisation on balance
sheet management.

Total operating expenses increased 4.1 per cent to RMB1.1
billion. Impairment charges decreased 77.4 per cent to RMB29.9
million, with healthy loan growth and pre-emptive allowance
from last year remaining adequate.

Loans grew 3 per cent to RMB40.4 billion and deposits were
RMB40.9 billion as of 31 December 2022. Asset quality remains
benign with the non-performing loan (NPL) ratio standing at
0.6 per cent.

As of 31 December 2022, our liquidity and funding positions
remained healthy with liquidity matching ratio at 129.8 per
cent and high-quality liquid asset adequacy ratio at 194.8
per cent, well above the minimum regulatory requirements.

Our Common Equity Tier 1 and Total Capital Adequacy Ratios
stood at 16.8 per cent and 19.6 per cent respectively, well
above the regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China Chengxin
International Credit Rating with a stable outlook.

Our purpose, ambition and key
differentiators

In 2022, UOB Group refreshed our brand with a sharpened
Purpose - To build the future of ASEAN, for the people and
businesses within, and connecting with, ASEAN. To deliver on
this, UOB China is accelerating our efforts on three strategic
areas - Connectivity, Personalisation and Sustainability.

* Forourwholesale banking business, our ambition is to be
the bank championing China-ASEAN connectivity, with
our network strength and sector specialisation as our key
differentiators.

¢ On the retail front, we want to be the bank of choice for
affluent and high net worth customers. To do that, we offer
them personalised services and solutions.

o TEFFEEND BRITRARESIRELE, BFRFRP SR
EARERE (ESC) BN BB —TURRMEN, NEF.
FMEIAAXRTFTM R THREISSAIRME TEILL 2 b, A THEER1L
UNERAESHIE XA, BENAZA B BANFER
TERREBRARNERITREENERUME.

BhhE P iEiERBENE

FEREE A A RTEANR AN R, RERITEBITRAT 28
XL, £ LI EETES R e EiRTS. EE
XIS P ERBIEANEER, F T AW SHE A EERES T A5k
W7 Bl 55 BT BEE N R AT RS AR, FfEFRATIBIITL
T RUNZ WBIZAHER, FA RS E A LB,

20221848, KERITHERABEARMEE M
MO EE, 5ERL 3.7 2T AR . X—B1R. EHMEIH
WSWNET B EBHESERZAHRN2022 LiERSEZHE
TFAD), FHRIR LEHARSS B 5 el & RSB A,

2022558, RERITREEHRM AL —FEF 1B H KA
HIRTTo HATUNGIGE 2, RIRIFERITAIMI B L, 7
UBFERMATIAR, AEARERES BN —IEERRS,

NHEEFPHIRAINLSER, BRIMESER A EIERET,
FERTES RESENEEBRATNILS, g RHE
R S FENE. PGB AT MRS,

AEPHEREH KT E A5

REERITHE LSRN A KA RITIR, AR
Ko HE P REAEM R REIEM TR, HEB IR
RERBEM S 5, R SRIEENG, LR A EALNES TR, &
MIRPWEZZIRITHNERURS.

« Cutting across all segments, we embrace sustainability,
embedding Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
initiatives in everything that we do, focusing on delivering
real impact for our customers, stakeholders and colleagues.
Above all, we will continue to build upon our values-based
culture that has helped our people to flourish. We want
employee pride to be our most important differentiator.

Supporting customers to seize regional
opportunities

As companies reconfigure their supply chains to reshore
and onshore their businesses, UOB, with our extensive
regional footprint, is well placed to link them to cross-border
opportunities between China and Southeast Asia. With an
increase in regional business activities, our wholesale banking
teams have supported many clients to achieve their goals. Our
sector specialisation and ground expertise also enable us to
support customers in their green transition with an increased
focus on sustainability across the supply chain.

On 4 January 2022, UOB China imported gold with a value
of approximately RMB370 million from Singapore through
cross-border renminbi settlement. The case was selected for
inclusion in the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce's
Shanghai Service Trade Promotion Manual 2022 and named
as a case demonstrating Shanghai's trade innovation and
development.

In May 2022, UOB China also became the first foreign bank to
establish a physical presence in Lingang Special Area (LSA). We
are well positioned to connect businesses to markets outside
of China through our progressive offshore financial solutions.

We also strengthened one-stop ASEAN cash management
services to serve our clients' inbound and outbound business needs.
These include China-Thailand, China-Indonesia, China-Malaysia
and China-Vietnam cross-border cash sweeping services.

Personalising wealth management for
each customer

At UOB China, we focus on establishing and deepening
relationships with our customers throughout their lives. We
offer tailored wealth plans and differentiated services in
line with the changing financial needs of our customers at
different life stages.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1



12

I Chairman’s Statement

EERKNH

TSR EL LA T 2RERIRSS, AP ITEMEKE
AP 551K, 20226, Tl 1 “RESZME" BN AH#ITZRF
&, NEFPREEINRG. T2 AMEUBTRMER,

BFEPAIERERmA

AIFSARREYSEFRENEERA R BEFETA
REIMESE L T “BpF” B97&GE, FIgE 7 BN YY)
To RERITE XA B

2022108, RERTTEA QT 2050F W SHPHM L,
FAMEARFR N T, TR P #1TH R X
BREADGRE RRSRAS M BN WEL, EERRE L
SR ELE£960%.

NEFX— B, KERITHEBEDIEX I RIBA LSS
B, FOERIRZ B L 52 P AEME SR %L11.20224, I
MR T ZMEHRERMEA AR, BEFENETESHIR
T2 -2 ST TN =FN R B RENE
FRRE SRR M. X B P E N TESG = NMEEIETT
BRI K RIS E PR IRE 537 Ro

UARZE KESTT
BRI RRNBEROAS

HMNXEZEMI S ORER, H Bt IREE LU shEIRRAY
T HEBENE, RBN T LR TESJURERRE L IZ M 180 7E
o BFE, KERTHPESSEI ZHMIE , 10 “KERITH
AT & E . Better USEREEHM TR SRR EE
BT R, AEITEFERARBIAT .

FNERFABWSWIRES, B#HR T BRE, FATF2022F#H
TUOB Way, X2—RFIEFRITEUNMEMIXUESR, €
FCRE T HATFAREZE, WER T HANMRAR TR
HRE KN EENRDELE EHH—F, RITEEL it
BUOB WayRAFATRIAA B M R THR.

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

We also personalise customers' banking experiences through
continuous enhancements across our physical and digital
platforms. In 2022, we upgraded our UOB China Privilege
Banking app to offer a smoother, safer and more personalised
experience for our customers.

Creating sustainable impact with our
customers

Sustainability is another major driver of business change
today. Asian countries, including China, have declared their
commitment to net zero carbon emissions in the next few
decades. UOB, too, is doing our part.

In October 2022, UOB Group laid out a comprehensive roadmap
for the Bank to reach net zero carbon emissions by 2050. As a
start, our plans cover six sectors: power, automotive, oil and gas,
real estate, construction and steel, which make up 60 per cent
of our corporate lending portfolio.

To fulfil this commitment, UOB China is integrating sustainability
plans into our business strategies and working closely with
clients and other stakeholders towards decarbonisation. In
2022, we also closed many progressive sustainable financing
deals, including participating in a RMB&0O0 million three-year
sustainability-linked syndicated loan. This is China'’s first
sustainability-linked syndicated loan linked to all ESG factors.

Growing our timber, the UOB Way
At UOB, we believe that people are our greatest asset.

As an organisation, we care for the well-being of our people
while empowering them to make a difference. Above all, we
want our colleagues to be able to realise their full potential in
whatever they do. In the year, UOB China rolled out initiatives
such as UOB China Talent Development Programme, Better U
and Financial Technology Management Associate Programme
to develop future-ready banking talents.

To strengthen our people culture and build employee pride,
we introduced the UOB Way in 2022. This is an embodiment
of how we work at the Bank, which is built upon our values,
and describes how our employee experience is focused on
care, growth and trust. In the new year, we will do more to
infuse the UOB Way into our people programmes and policies.

BITR RIS OMERBIEE (L. 2022548, HRITERHEL T
RTRREEME —“ERAL", BPARFIL RS AR ZE
OB REFE B R USRI S5 1RE. N FE, “HE%
AETRARGERT BIHE40R%E LS54T RIIRZFHEE,
BEHK2, 20008, RitS 582,000 Nk, RZBEETNEE.

HMNBAFHTEXE R KNEENNRREE =8 M Y.
RHE AR FPR® (GPTW®) INEIRR, Q1% EFINTT K
ERITPER— MR TSN, T FREEENEER
INIERYFEIES5%,

A XeLEKEAME

MNP KEAE R AIEY F A KBIE, FilE#mE
A LENHE MR LR,

20224, FEZ MY HRIE BRI R ERIER. KERITHE
BKEAm BRIk, N EBRREMX RERRNTXETH
W —LTIEAR, FEXRITHARWH IR T B (RIEY . 3
TRSE(THEARRINERE ME, NPRE XY ECIX. /528
EEMZERITEIER—17,

BERTEENMSESENLARERRERNE —KERTS
KBLDAEE/T, BINEEEENE48.6 7T, EAHESL
FERRFBEL) LI “HEIEZEFHARRK RZUOB My Digital
SpaceFEHITKIAZIFNARIE .

HMNZEZAEEBHEXK. REAONNE.SE, RIEE
LEBRIBEIHRT S MK, 95508 S HEIMFL95000
BFEMENBSHEBIE P 20235F, FITHR B
RERTEEREKBZRNRR, KB HERNAT, R#H7K
BEARBEEEIH.

ERRVECHETNEE—F, RITDBHLEKLER
TREETF20226RNREGHEEZEERNZARMETHN
LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) $H
FINE XMEERFE— MR EERINENKE,

Taking care of the well-being of our people is our top priority.
In April 2022, we launched the UOB China Employee Wellness
Programme to help our people boost their physical health,
build mental resilience, achieve work-life harmony and enhance
financial security. This year, our wellness programme included
almost 40 online and offline workshops and classes spanning
a total of 2,200 minutes. Some 2,000 colleagues took part in
the programme and had positive feedback.

Our drive to create a conducive environment of Care, Growth
and Trust is beginning to bear fruit. According to the Great
Place to Work® (GPTW®) survey in 2022, 91 per cent of our
colleagues say UOB China is a Great Place to Work compared
with 55 per cent of all GRTW® certified companies in China.

Creating long-term value for our
community

Our commitment for the long term extends to our support for
the local communities, especially in the areas of art, children
and education.

In 2022, China experienced several waves of COVID-19 surges.
Working with our charity partners, UOB China donated
protective gear and daily necessities to frontline service
workers and volunteers in Lujiazui Financial City and Greater
Bay Area cities. Our colleagues also volunteered at the front
line to support their communities.

Through the UOB Global Heartbeat Run/Walk, our annual
flagship volunteerism and fundraising programme, our people
raised a record of RMB486,000 to support our Preschools
of Future, UOB My Digital Space and rural art education
programmes.

We believe in the power of art to inspire and to connect people
across cultures. In the year, close to 50 teachers and around
5,000 students took our digital art courses through our rurall
art education programme. In 2023, we plan to launch the
campus edition of UOB Art in Ink awards in Mainland China
to support the creative pursuits of young artists.

As we continue to reduce our operational footprints, UOB
China head office building was awarded LEED (Leadership
in Energy and Environmental Design) Platinum Certification
under the U.S. Green Building Council in 2022. It is the first
UOB wholly-owned building to receive this certification.
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Our achievements in 2022 were made possible by the
dedication of our people. | am grateful for their commitment
to stand united to support our customers and community,
especially during such challenging times.

I would also like to thank the Board for its support and express
our appreciation to our non-executive and independent
director Mr Liu Er Fei for his contributions over the past six
years. | welcome Mr Nie Ming in his first year as a non-executive
and independent director.

Finally, a big thank you to our customers for your support
all these years. | look forward to another strong year ahead
as we honour our promise to do right by our customers and
stakeholders.

Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman
March 2022
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Prof Cham, 83, was appointed as the Supervisor
of United Overseas Bank (China) with effective
from 1January 2023. Prof Cham was the Deputy
Supervisor of the Bank from 2017 to 2022 and
a non-executive and independent director of
the Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup
Restaurant and Singapore Rail Academy. He
is a former director of MFS Technology, WBL
Corporation and UOB and its subsidiary, Far
Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education
scene, Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of
Singapore University of Social Sciences and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the
founding President of Nanyang Technological
University. For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished
Service Order, Singapore's highest National
Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a
Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the
University of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science
in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge,
United Kingdom. He is also a Fellow of the
Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of
Engineering, United Kingdom and Institution
of Mechanical Engineers, United Kingdom and
a foreign member of Royal Swedish Academy
of Engineering Sciences.
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Mr Wee, 70, was appointed as director
and Chairman of the Bank on 5 December
2007. A non-executive and non-independent
director, he is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 40 years’
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined
UOB in 1979 and has been a director of UOB
since 1990. He is currently the Deputy Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of UOB.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas
Insurance, United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
(Deputy Chairman) and United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company (Chairman). He
is the President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB
Indonesia. MrWee was also formerly a director
of Far Eastern Bank.

Active in industry and community development,
MrWee serves as Chairman of The Association
of Banks in Singapore and is Vice Chairman
of The Institute of Banking and Finance. He is
also a member of the Board of Governors of
the Singapore-China Foundation, Indonesia-
Singapore Business Council and Honorary
Council Member of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He was
previously Deputy Chairman of the Housing
and Development Board, a director of the Port
of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan Pacific
Hotels Group and United International Securities,
and a member of Visa AP Senior Client Council.

Akeen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of
the Nanyang Academy of Fine Arts. He is also
a director of the Wee Foundation.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public
Service Star by the Singapore Government for
his contributions to the financial industry.

In 2022, Mr Wee was conferred The Asian
Banker CEO Leadership Achievement for
Singapore Award and named the Best CEO
by the Singapore Institute of Directors for
large-cap listed companies. Mr Wee was also
awarded The Business Times Businessman of
the Year 2021/2022.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) and a Master of Arts (Applied
Economics) from American University, Washington,
DC.
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Mr Foo, 60 was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) in December 2016
and a director of the Board of UOB China
on 18 January 2017. An executive and non-
independent director, he is a member of UOB
China's Executive Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the
Group's Treasury and Global Markets business
for its overseas subsidiaries and branches.
He also served as President and CEO of UOB
Thailand from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of experience in
banking and financial markets. Prior to joining
UOB, he served for 11 years at Fortis Bank,
S.A./NV. Singapore, where he assumed many
management roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific
Management Board member, Managing Director
of Private Banking and Head of Global Markets.
Mr Foo's previous professional experience also
includes holding various executive positions at
Bank Austria Creditanstalt, Bank of America,
and Chemical Bank between 1988 and 2000. Mr
Foo embarked on the career as management
associate with Shell Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is a non-executive director of
Hengfeng Bank and the Director of AllF
Capital Partners Limited, the general partner
of Asia Impact Investment Fund | L.P. He is also
appointed as the Advisor to China SingCham
Shanghai Committee. Previously, he served
as a Council Member of Capital Markets
Policy Council (CMPC) of CFA Institute, the
Executive Committee Member and Regional
Representative of South East Asia of ACI-The
Financial Markets Association, Board Member
of CFA Singapore, Council Member of the
Association of Banks in Singapore and an
independent director of SGX listed/Temasek’s
CitySpring Infrastructure Investment Trust.

Tapping his international banking experience,
Mr Foo leads UOB China to promote connectivity
between China and ASEAN and contribute to
Shanghai’'s development as an international
financial centre. In recognition of his contribution,
Mr Foo was awarded as a 2020 Shanghai
Financial Industry Innovation Figure at the
Shanghai Financiers Awards hosted by Xinhua
News Agency. With his deep knowledge and
understanding on over-the-counter trades
and international financial derivative and
commodity markets, Mr Foo is also appointed
as the member of the first Market Development
Advisory Committee by China Financial Futures
Exchange effective from September 2021.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management
(Hons) from the National University of
Singapore and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mrs Ip, 59, was appointed to the Board on
22 August 2011. A non-executive and non-
independent director, she is the Chairman of
the Bank’s Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit,
Nominating and Remuneration, and Connected
Transactions Control Committees.

A veteran banker with more than 30 years’
experience in both consumer and corporate
banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 and was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of UOB
Hong Kong Branch in December 2011. Mrs
Ip was appointed as Chief Executive Officer
for UOB Greater China with effect from 1 July
2016, and is responsible for developing UOB's
business in Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior
management positions in product and sales
management, customer segment management
and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and Mainland
China.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip
received the Asia Retail Congress Award for
“Best International Retail Banker” in 2008 and
was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China
region in 2012 by the China Outstanding Female
Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of
Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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Prof Werner Wu, 64, was appointed to the
Board on 29 August 2018. As an independent
director, he is the Chairman of the Connected
Transactions Control Committee and the
Nominating and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Audit and Board Risk
Management Committees.

Prof Werner Wu is currently Vice Chairman
of the China Overseas-Educated Scholars
Development Foundation (COSDF), Executive
President of Shanghai Zhangjiang High-tech
Park Development Company Limited, Co-
founder and Executive President of Shanghai
Yangtze River Delta Sci-tech City, Vice Chairman
of Shanghai Huaxia Culture and Economy
Promotion Association, Vice President of the
New Silk Road Committee and President of
China Region of the German Federal Association
for Economic Development and Foreign Trade,
the Global Vice Chairman of the German Federall
Association of German-Chinese Alliance (BDCA)
and Chairman of Asia-Pacific.

Prof Werner Wu formerly served as the Chief
Representative and General Manager for
Europe and Africa Regions, Director of Corporate
Strategy and Investment Management, and
Chief Translator for China Baowu Steel Group.
He took senior positions in Siemens worldwide,
including Senior Vice President of Siemens
(China) Company Limited, President of Siemens
Real Estate Investment China and President of
Siemens World EXPO Centre. He also held senior
positions in ALSTOM Group including President
of technical services in China. Prof Werner Wu
assumed the position of Director of Executive
Committee of Foreign Invested Companies of
China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment (CAEFI).

Prof Werner Wu is a Certified Senior Economist
in China. He holds a Master's Degree in
Economics from German Siegen University
and a DBA. In 2019, Prof Werner Wu was
appointed as the guest professor of Shanghai
International Studies University and as the
Adjunct Researcher of the Financial Research
Center of Fudan University. In 2020, Prof Werner
Wu was officially nominated as Chairman of
the Council of Artificial Intelligence Research
Institute of Donghua University. In 2021, Prof
Werner Wu was reappointed as a part-time
professor of Shanghai Ocean University.
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Mr Nie, 62, was appointed to the Board on 7
September 2022. As an independent director, he
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of the Nominating and Remuneration,
Connected Transactions Control and Board
Risk Management Committees.

Mr Nie is currently an attorney-at-law of Anli
Partners Law Firm. He also serves as external
supervisor of Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank,
as well as an independent director of Sino-
Australian International Trust.

Mr Nie was formerly the director and deputy
CEO of Mizuho Bank (China) Limited. He had
previously held senior management positions in
Fuji Bank Shanghai Branch, Mizuho Corporate
Bank Shanghai Branch, Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank and Research Center of
Financial Law of Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr Nie used to be a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference Pudong New
Area and was successively elected as the
representative of the 13, 14 and 15* Shanghai
Municipal People's Congress.

He holds a Doctorate Course of Laws from
Tokyo University (Master degree) and is an
arbitrator of Shanghai Arbitration Commission.
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Opening doors to regional opportunities

In 2022, UOB China continued to double down on connectivity,
one of our strategic pillars. Tapping UOB Group's unparalleled
regional footprint and one-bank approach, we helped
businesses connect to opportunities within China and with
ASEAN.

With 10 centres across Asia, our Foreign Direct Investment
Advisory Unit has been strengthening its strategic collaborations
with government agency partners, business associations and
professional service providers. These links serve to support
our clients to navigate the complexities of venturing abroad.
Our clients can also access the services offered by dedicated
China Desks in Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand and
Vietnam.

Since 2011, we have supported more than 3,800 companies in
their cross-border expansion into Asig, close to 40 per cent of
which are Chinese companies. Companies we have supported
since 2014 are projected to invest more than $41 billion and
enable the creation of more than 176,000 job opportunities,
largely across Southeast Asia and Greater China.

%
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Since 2011, we have supported
more than invest more than

3,800 $41 billion

R FETMNERL S
companies in their cross-border expansion
into Asia

410123 hN3KTT

RERITHREERDITIEKERMLE (E—) KRBTEBRHEENRK
Mr Wang Hao, General Manager of Chongging Branch, UOB China (first
on left), signed the five-party MOU.
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Companies we have supported since 2014 are projected to and enable the creation of

more than

176,000

D IIERIML
job opportunities, largely across Southeast
Asia and Greater China.

In July 2022, UOB China and UOB Thailand signed a five-
party Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with three
Wholesale Banking clients. Under the MOU, the banks will
provide comprehensive financial solutions to these clients
in support of their efforts to explore cross-border business
opportunities along the New International Land-Sea Trade
Corridor.

In August, UOB signed an MOU with China Mobile International
to explore providing financial and digital connectivity for
companies expanding into ASEAN or China. We will also
cooperate in consumer digital financial services. This
partnership will enable our clients to tap both UOB and China
Mobile International’s key network strengths and resources,
including cross-border connectivity, regional networks, big
data, cloud computing, blockchain and other technologies.

To help businesses explore more cross-border opportunities,
we also worked closely with government agencies, exchanges,
professional service providers and business partners to host
more than 10 physical and virtual seminars and business
matching events. Our events saw more than 2,000 participants.

In 2022, we participated in the China International Import
Expo (CIIE) for the fifth consecutive year. With the theme of
One Bank for ASEAN, we showcased UOB Group's regional
connectivity, partnership ecosystems as well as progressive
solutions. Those who could not attend the CIIE in person could
visit a virtual booth to learn more about UOB Group's offerings.
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Riding on RCEP to deepen our progressive
solutions

With the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership
Agreement (RCEP) coming into force on 1 January 2022, the
upgraded China-ASEAN corridor has opened more trade and
investment opportunities. UOB China is continually deepening
our cross-border financial solutions to enable clients to benefit
from this trade agreement.

On 4 January 2022, UOB China imported gold with a value of
approximately RMB370 million from Singapore using a cross-
border renminbi (RMB) settlement. This was also China’s first
gold import transaction in 2022. After receiving the physical
gold, the Bank sold it to the Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE). This
practice enbles domestic jewellery producers to conveniently
purchase gold through SGE. The case was selected forinclusion
in the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce's Shanghai
Service Trade Promotion Manual 2022 and named as a case
demonstrating Shanghai's trade innovation and development.

In 2022, UOB China launched one-stop digital services linked
up to the China (Shanghai) International Trade Single Window
(Shanghai Single Window). Our Bank is the first Southeast Asian
bank connected to this platform. The connection enables us
to offer one-stop digital services for cross-border remittance
and financing, streamlining the documentation process for
our clients. Our clients can also access the Shanghai Single
Window's new tool to learn more about tax policies and to
calculate duty rates in different RCEP countries.

With its incentives and policies to develop offshore trade and
cross-border financing, Lingang Special Area (LSA) has become
an important platform for Chinese businesses to expand
overseas, and for overseas companies to expand in China.

In May 2022, UOB China became the first foreign bank to
establish a physical presence. In September, the Shanghai Free
Trade Zone Sub-branch of UOB China was officially relocated
to LSA. With the relocated sub-branch, we are well positioned
to provide businesses with connectivity beyond China and
create progressive offshore financial solutions to align with
their needs. The progressive solutions include cross-border
cash management, offshore trading, cross-border investments
and sustainable financing. With this, we also support LSA's
goal to be an emerging financial centre and contribute to
greater ASEAN-China connectivity.

(MNEZER) IeBH A XEEaeRARIK (FHFTIE) IMERSTE, IeBH A XX TEEIPIE, RBEEARER L EEKRELELYE, KERTHETKRERR
TERBRLE, INERE DERGEEESLL, REBRARERZ R BISHXHELE, KERTHE LS RRRKZTIT KM Z L AF L EE

From left to right: The new Lingang location of the Shanghai Free Trade Zone Sub-branch was officially opened by Mr Sun Xiaohe, Deputy Director,
Ministry of Finance and Trade, LSA Administrative Committee; Mr Yuan Guohua, Deputy Party Secretary of LSA and Chairman of Lingang Group;

Mr Peter Foo, President and Chief Executive Officer, UOB China; Mr Chua Teng Hoe, the Consul-General of Singapore in Shanghai; Mr Liu Wei, Vice
President of Lingang Group; and Ms Grace Xie, General Manager of Shanghai Free Trade Zone Sub-branch, UOB China.

TEZTHUBERARMTERAEZENREXE
—UETUARSS

B HES KB BRI SEE), THREHES R EZR 2 ERH
TERLRRAAERIENS, BITRRAEIREPES REZEES
BBE BREASUNRREMBIRRZERE MR — iR,

YARREIR RSN G, BT RREX SN AT ER
B8, TAFESARERENEEBRAS WIS, #—FHp
B FRENE. A BB EMARSS, AR SR AT B,

Enhancing our one-stop regional cash
management services and trade financing
solutions

Drawing on our regional connectivity and expertise in
cross-border financing, we provide one-stop ASEAN cash
management services to serve our clients’ inbound and
outbound business needs. Our comprehensive services include
offshore trade financing, cross-border cash solutions and
cross-currency financing and settlement.

Since launching our China-Thailand cross-border cash
solutions, we have launched China-Indonesia, China-Malaysia
and China-Vietnam cash solutions. The newly launched
services help our clients achieve greater efficiency in liquidity
management.
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UOB China also successfully closed a domestic letter of credit
(LC) forfaiting deal for a leading polyester fiber manufacturer
in China. This win-win solution marks the Bank's first domestic
LC forfaiting sell-down which sharpens our strengths in trade
financing. The client enjoyed lower funding costs compared
with a traditional trade loan, while UOB China achieved
higher asset returns by selling down a trade financing asset
to a strategic financial institution partner.

Supporting ecosystems of suppliers and
distributors across clients’ value chains

UOB China is committed to supporting our clients to strengthen
their supply chains through our Financial Supply Chain
Management (FSCM) solutions. Tapping our networks, we
provided flexible trade financing solutions to ensure supply
chain stability for businesses in the manufacturing sector
amid the COVID-19 resurgence in 2022. We also developed
FSCM solutions to enable enterprises to take advantage of
the restructuring of global supply chains under RCEP.

Building on our sectorial expertise and local knowledge, we
continually enhanced the supply chain design, approval and
implementation processes, as well as digital systems and
cross-border services. As such, we won The Triple A Awards
2022 for Best Supply Chain Solution. Our award-winning
solutions include:

e Ourfirst digital FSCM programme developed with a large
state-owned steel manufacturer to better manage its
liquidity and transaction transparency.

* Our Greater China team working seamlessly to customise a
cross-border accounts receivable financing solution for a
smartphone conglomerate. This solution helped our client
to build an efficient and sustainable supplier ecosystem.

* Supporting a global information and communications
technology solutions provider with an account receivables
financing solution. This solution enabled our client to improve
its debt management and mitigate buyers’ payment risks
as it expanded overseas.
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Strengthening innovation in FX and
commodities, to meet diversified business
needs

In 2022, we continued to strengthen market and policy research
to manage impact of COVID-19 within the commodities market.
We also continually deepened our product and trading
capabilities to meet the different trading and hedging needs
of businesses.

To support more Chinese enterprises to invest and operate
in the Belt and Road and RCEP countries, we continued to
deepen our signature ASEAN Currency One-Stop Service, which
is aligned with their foreign change (FX) needs. In January
2022, as the Appointed Cross-Currency Dealer (ACCD) for the
Chinese Yuan/Indonesia Rupiah (CNY/IDR), we helped a large
private enterprise complete its first outbound direct investment,
amounting to CNY8 million. We supported the client to open
onshore accounts with UOB China and UOB Indonesia within
one week. The client converted CNY into IDR and injected the
IDR capital into its Indonesia subsidiary. With our one-stop
service, the client achieved greater FX cost-efficiency and
the cross-border funds reached the client’s IDR account in
Indonesia within two hours.

In May 2022, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange
(SAFE) announced a new policy allowing financial institutions to
offer American-style and Asian-style FX options or derivatives
combining both. Quickly responding to the new policy, UOB
China tailored FX hedging solutions to meet clients’ emerging
needs.

In August, we successfully exercised our first US dollar to
Chinese Yuan (USD/CNY) Asian-style FX option. This was for a
steel production and trading company in Jiangsu Province. In
October, we assisted two enterprises in Jiangsu and Zhejiang
in completing transactions in USD/CNY American-style options,
marking our first batch of American-style options. These
hedging solutions help businesses more precisely hedge their
FX risks and meet their needs in managing their risk exposure.
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Personalising Solutions for

Consumers' Financial

Goals and Lifestyle Needs
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At UOB China, we focus on customer-centricity and are committed to provide services that best suit
customers’ needs. Building on our financial connectivity and expertise, we continually offer professional
solutions and cross-border wealth advisory. At the same time, we actively leverage technology to engage
and serve our customers seamlessly through our omni-channel approach.
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Enrich domestic and overseas product
offerings through our Risk-First investment
approach

Global markets were volatile in 2022. The Bank, using our
Risk-First approach, aims to help our customers protect their
assets through core wealth management strategy and grow
their wealth through tactical investments. This approach also
ensures our customers understand the risks ahead of returns
across portfolio before making any investment decisions.
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REEAEEDREINIG
Chinese herbal therapy sharing session by Yueyang Hospital experts in
November 2022

We continued deepening our partnership with world-renowned
asset management companies to offer customers more
diversified global investment solutions. We added large-
denomination certificates of deposits to our product offerings
in 2022. This provides customers another stable investment
choice on top of our general deposit tools to better diversify
investment risks and lock in long-term returns.

Curated privileges aligned with customers'
lifestyle needs

At UOB China, we focus on establishing and deepening
relationships with our customers throughout their lives. Aside
from providing high net worth customers tailored wealth plans
and complete global asset allocation, we also support our
clients with differentiated services in line with their changing
financial needs at different life stages.

In 2022, we enhanced our privilege services in areas such as
education and travel. At the same time, we upgraded our health,
wellness and lifestyle benefits. For example, our customers
not only enjoy VIP medical service at top national hospitals,
but also have fast-track access to 9-valent HPV vaccine
appointments. In terms of lifestyle privileges, we customise
birthday and holiday gifts for their special occasions and
provide invitations to exclusive shows and events.

In addition, in line with customers’' needs and wants, we also
partnered with professional service providers to host events
such as wellness seminars, parent-child art craft workshops
and performances discussing the arts.

FEIRIEEEDD
We hosted a floral workshop for female customers, in partnership with
leading Chinese lifestyle retailer THE Beast.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

31



32

I 2022 in Review

BERES

[ERY, Ff T E P LEMINNE, ITERE IR, BERrRIGRE R,
YA IV AL AR AR SS, AR LR B ARSS  BRIMARE
TRRRSES, TERHEABSEN T REaMITERE AL,

RikseEL LRE, SHEAT AR

20226, AT AT REMELAR LSRR, BITTRE
R TRAE, FERAERR. B REMRITALS HIFR, FUTE0E
M ERTERMEL

AP NERRRRIEAIBIH, RI A ESZNE
AT SR IR, B

o MEMRE— BHHRINFH S SBRIEIMER, IRERERE

IR R EBIRUER, LUIRFAREIN S RIRFIThEE. AT R e’
AR EPAITRY AR, RA R AR EAR,

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

FFIRREDIYVIERNIT
Children creating their own Tote at our art
craft workshops

At the same time, we provided value-added services
to our customers by connecting them to our network
in Southeast Asia. Our complementary services include
remote opening of Singapore accounts, Southeast Asia
educational services and overseas medical services for
high net worth individuals.

Enabling safe and seamless digital banking
experience

In 2022, we reinforced our digital channels and remote servicing
capabilities to offer our customers personalised, safe and
smart services to improve their digital banking experience.

Tapping data and relationship-led insights, we upgraded
our UOB China Privilege Banking app. The updates include:

* Enhancing the registration process: we expanded app
registration and log in support to overseas mobile phone
numbers, set a verification validity period for SMS one-time
passwords and updated the virtual number identification
function. These improvements ensure better customer
engagement and experience without comprising safety
and risk mitigation.
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* More polished design and user-friendly functions: We
launched a new function which allows for comparison of
fund products with a single click. We also optimised the
display of our product performance charts and improved
other functions including product material downloads, online
financial service agreements updates and online search of
transaction details. These changes allow for a smoother
and more personalised experience for our customers.

« Heightened personal information security features: With
increasing customer focus on data security, we actively
explore methods to enhance the personal information
protection features on our app. Through adding facial
recognition privacy clauses, updating overall privacy clauses
and other enhancements, we ensured that more layers of
safety measures are in place to protect our customers’
information security when using the app.

u'.ﬂ L Upgraded interface of UOB China
. ; - i
o pr rari Privilege Banking app
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New funds comparison function of w
UOB China Privilege Banking app .
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We are reinforcing our commitment to forging a sustainable
future with our customers, colleagues and communities. Our
sustainability strategy is guided by our four pillars:

Drive Growth Sustainably

Keep Customers at the Centre
Develop Professionals of Principle
Uphold Corporate Responsibility

rwn

The four pillars are consistent with UOB Group's overall
sustainability strategy, which is aligned to the 17 United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals. The pillars provide
the Bank with a clear direction and purpose, as well as guide
the Bank’s initiatives in line with our business focus, China’s
14t Five-Year Plan and the country's economic and social
development strategies.

MBHEFEDRSE TR AR BIRRSEH

Promote United Nations Sustainable Development Goals with our stakeholders

Al
NG5

Drive Growth
Sustainably

._.o' O o
e
AR S3 AT HF4R

Keep Customers
at the Centre

e

NZCIEE
Develop Professionals
of Principle

é@}

HERERTRE
Uphold Corporate
Responsibility

AREFERERMIE
Contribute economically
to the progress of our
communities

BIRRFRIP S RENR
=17818 (ESC) XN E
BN B S XRERER
Embed environmental,
social and governance
risk in our approach to
risk management

BHSNIFRRRMAFKIT
SRR RS
Integrate social

and environmental
considerations into our
credit evaluation and
approval processes

RNFHET R SRR
KEMEBEHE, BRI HF
B PR EmE T

Adopt and promote
climate-resilient
practices to support

our customers in their
transition to a low
carbon economy

FFRFHRHRTREEIGRIZE R
RS Z

Develop and provide
sustainable financing
and sustainable
investment solutions

B RS EN ARG AR
1E, RIPE P IR RS
Protect customer data
and privacy through
secure and robust
systems and practices
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25

Ensure Fair Dealing

IEEE AN RIS IRY
Yl VN

Create intuitive and
impactful customer
experiences

EBET I CEENZAER
R MEIR, #miEHESs
BE FIEZEMNRITIRS
Make banking simpler,
smarter and safer
through ethical use of
technology and data

RETIERE “BRE R
7RSS

Make banking more
accessible and inclusive
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Support businesses
across all stages of
growth

« BTSSR ENEE

FRAVEFEITAA

Develop high-performing
teams and future-
focused individuals

« ESIESEENTE

Promote work-life
harmony

s BRRTIRIZEXERINEF

HAMSMIFR L EBREE
BEE

Encourage volunteerism
and advocacy for social
and environmentall

causes

s MEARTESE5EMHE

E

Ensure employee
engagement and
satisfaction

c ERR. RERXERT

R TIEIRIE
Ensure workplace health,
safety and well-being

* % TR, BKRAEAN

BES
Embrace diverse abilities
and strengths

AFRATIRE  #EX. TR OB LM ERNER

BREATREMN SR
R

Maintain highest
standards of governance
and risk culture

HREESH
Ensure regulatory
compliance

e ASKHEERA
Protect the financial
system against abuse

RaRe R RRN BRI
THIRBAITRH
Incorporate
sustainability principles
into our procurement
practices

EIEESWIFRNEMm, 8
FhRERIPIFIR

Manage direct
environmental impact
and encourage
environmental
stewardship

RRECHZ AR LEFHE
TN KR

Champion social
development in art,
children and education

Rooted in Our Values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment
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Drive Growth Sustainably

RIHFEERMS R, BB W SEMAFEL R

RERTHEBRERN T EPER UATENARXFRLS, 155!
BREFFERM RS ERIR H R ST R BT A EIRT
IR RN SRS 5, B WIS EB R P R RIPANT S
RAEEBNKERANHRAE2RE, I RSR B E, #m
BEFHFAIFEE RN,

20226, HATHRERAE RBRA SRR EBBENAB. &
FEXBRMET ZTRBERME XERRIERTHITESEFE
FREAIFS R RIAE KRR/ RF8E:

o ARMRGENFERIEFERNFARREEESEIRE
BRBLERN R BB TI/% S EmE A B SR
HEMIRSS . IR R EEIKIRCRLERITE B A R A
IR RAESREEH, XURRITE RN AX—RIAESR, NERL
BREME PR HRE TR AN ZRMA S Z WS (ERBER
JR) (GLP) A LS5 I B ML FITHE. A& EE IR EM
B MO TUREIE R,

o {EAREMMIKAVIRREIEE KT, HRF L EMIREESS
IRS3F A RMBMINATTEIRZEIRARNR, B8 ERARE
ERRAIRINETTIRA SR, AUSIZEAEA NGB A4
T % R

o (FAEESHERITZ— KIFRAINA SIS, MR IREH
R KBV IREER, B LS E B AR RE B E PR RE ST
T,

o KERITEEE T F AR, LEERBEVERAR (EHE
) 5E—REKRMEPBMS AL, FRERITAERBRSEIRN
LEDTREIT B REERITHENZEWSESEM T RERMETS
B, Bz e B R K HABRE 301 B IR KR T K o

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Helping businesses transit responsibly

UOB China is committed to helping our customers transit
responsibly, especially in financing technologies and activities
that contribute to a sustainable economy. Through the Bank’s
sustainable solutions, our clients are guided through a clear
process incorporating environmental and social considerations
into their business so as to achieve their sustainability goals.

In 2022, we provided financing to our clients’ projects in green
built environment, waste water treatment, metals recycling,
and green transportation. These projects showcase our
commitment in supporting our clients’ endeavours towards
sustainability. Some notable deals include:

» providing a subsidiary of a world's leading electric vehicle
manufacturer its first green loan, aligned with international
sustainable financing standards. The proceeds of the
green loan will support the client in boosting sales of
electric vehicles and in providing after-sales services. This
loan is structured under the UOB Smart City Sustainable
Finance Framework and is the first loan provided by us to
a green transportation company under this new framework.
This financing solution also complies with the Green Loan
Principles in the four core areas of fundraising, project
evaluation and screening, funding management, as well
as reporting and disclosure.

* leading a short-term syndicated loan as the Mandated Lead
Arranger for a local infrastructure developer and operator
to fund its green infrastructure project. This syndicated loan
comprised onshore renminbi loan in China and offshore US
dollar loan in Singapore.

e Participating in Shanghai’s first sustainability-linked
cross-border syndicated loan. The loan taps our regional
connectivity and the Shanghai Free Trade Zone's liberalisation
policy to use cross-border funds.

* UOB Property China, a subsidiary of UOB Group partnered
with a leading LED lighting solution provider to upgrade
the lighting system of UOB Plaza. UOB China purchased
accounts receivable with a maximum maturity of 30 months
from the LED company. This is our first green accounts
receivable financing solution and structured under the UOB
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Smart City Sustainable Finance Framework. This solution
helped our client improved cash flow by expediting fund
collections and reduced our carbon footprint with the use
of energy efficient lighting at UOB Plaza.

As the China-ASEAN connectivity continues to strengthen,
we will lend our support to Chinese enterprises as they seize
green and sustainable opportunities across the border.

We signed a MOU with one of the world's largest construction
groups to deepen collaborations in cross-border financing and
investment opportunities. This client has undertaken several
key infrastructure and clean energy projects in ASEAN. By
providing our clients with customised and sustainable cross-
border financial solutions, UOB China remains committed
to helping clients in expanding their businesses regionally.

We also signed an MOU in the third quarter with a leading
clean energy solution provider in China. Under the MOU, UOB
China will provide a suite of comprehensive financial solutions
to facilitate the company’s expansion in the hydrogen industry
in China and ASEAN.

In 2022, UOB Group announced ambitious commitments to
reach net zero by 2050. UOB's commitments cover six sectors,
which make up about 60 per cent of the Group's corporate
lending portfolio. These six sectors split into the energy value
chain and the built environment value chain. The sectors under
the energy value chain are power, automotive, and oil and
gas, and those under the built environment value chain are
real estate, construction and steel. UOB has set interim 2030
targets and 2050 targets on the path to net zero.

To achieve these goals, UOB China is working closely with
clients and other stakeholders towards decarbonisation.

Steering wealth towards sustainable
investments

At UOB China, we not only help investors understand
sustainable investment concepts, but also provide sustainable
investment solutions to help them grow their wealth and make
a positive impact on the environment and society.

In 2022, we continually added sustainable investing products
into our portfolio that integrate environmental, social and
governance (ESG) considerations such as BlackRock ESG
Multi-Asset Fund.
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Keep Customers at the Centre

RILARSS , fRAZ P AL

RERITHERE TR R BERE, MR P RIRS AR, 1I57E
BRI S FREFETHER, Al ASRUERERMHENSER
EOeHIEmMkSRE,

BB EE R R ERHRITH, B IFRRESRARS A8, Rk
MR FRRER, AREERESREN VLIRS 2,

HYPNAZA, @I BIE BoimNASFE—RIIBNTEL N, '
MG ERENETFRE, hErE R IMEDAZRIEMARSS . S 5
FRX 53, AR AR RIBRMME AR ERNERER, 725
HEH T ATRIBRRKOORBERER AN EREEN B RIEEH R
eIl RESY: YT

HYEIER, HIEE [FEHD, [F207HIRN, H2005RK
b, FRH T ER AR, (RS TR Z HIRF#TT, B ke
FPRAR, B

o W ERILSS, FITAVFELE M A B MESFSHET
REBRERZ AT, AL AE, LURER P FERRE AR

0,

o AREREVHSINER, HITATEZATENRIER, ATk
DU B TR M S M6, TEe R FRIE T HIA R
BEE, AR KT, FEIEBHRRGES;

o B8, S HRTEFBIAEN BEARTERMLREL" B
ZF, RITUAREBRARTEREM LIRS BNEZ AR
BYCESIR W 535 A R TR UK/ (9 RI5E BR) 50 B FR AR AE SR ZE SR AU R

8%, BEEARDEEYR S RSBZARTERER, KEK
TE ARMWNERARRZ I ER.

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Optimising service for a better customer
experience

At UOB China, we are committed to being customer-centric
and creating a seamless banking experience for our customers.
As such, we ensure smooth and orderly operations while
providing a convenient and efficient omni-channel approach
for our customers.

During the COVID-19 resurgence in 2022, we continued to
ensure financial services operated smoothly and responded
to clients’ needs in a timely and smooth manner.

QOur retail customers can access our services via mobile
banking and digital app, among other means, to manage their
accounts. We also rolled out relief measures that allowed up
to 60 days postponement of repayment and exemptions for
overdue interest payments for eligible customers.

We also put in place contingency measures which helped ease
liquidity concerns for more than 200 companies and helped
them meet transactional needs. Our support measures include,

* For deposit clients, we allowed transactions to be made
upon clients’ digital confirmation, such as providing scanned
copies of forms and emails. The physical approval forms
could be sent later when the client was able to do so. This
ensured that customers’ deposit incomes would not be
affected.

* To meet clients’ payment needs, we allowed clients to provide
the payment instructions through scanned copies of the
necessary forms, emails and other digital approvals. The
transaction was allowed after the Bank made a follow-up
callto confirm the payment details. The original paper-based
instructions were to be provided after the client resumes
work.

* We also provided fast-track cross-border RMB settlement
services to clients who are on the "Qualified enterprises for
cross-border RMB settlement” list issued by People's Bank
of China. This fast-track service enabled these clients to
enjoy immediate cross-border RMB settlement and payment
services by submitting standard payment documents or
documents that met the relevant requirements for customs.
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Ensuring Fair Dealing and promoting
financial literacy

At UOB China, our customers are at the centre of what we do
and Fair Dealing is an important part of the Bank's culture. We
ensure to act to the best interests of our customers, guided
by the Board, senior management and regulatory bodies.

In 2022, we continued to explore innovative online and offline
means to improve customers’ financial literacy and raise
their anti-fraud awareness. Throughout the year, UOB China
organised 90 public educational events on consumer rights
protection and produced 18 sets of educational material.
We also published 23 consumer rights-related articles and
six micro films on our social media channels.

UOB China always plays our part in protecting the vulnerable
groups particularly the elderly and young consumers.

We referenced real-life cases and produced a series of short
videos to help our customers adopt good cyber hygiene
practices and improve their awareness of personal information
security and fraud prevention. These videos were released on
the Bank's official WeChat accounts and shared on several
leading social media platforms, such as Bilibili, Tencent, Zhihu
and Haokan. In total, they obtained more than 646,000 hits and
received recognitions from multiple regulatory bodies, including
Shanghai Bureau of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission, People’s Bank of China, Financial Ombudsman
Service Shanghai and Shanghai Banking Association.

In March and September, UOB China carried out financial
literacy activities for elderly groups. We helped them learn how
to recognise telecommunications scams and act against scams
by using the National Anti-fraud Centre app. We also educated
them on financial knowledge such as deposit insurance. These
activities were attended by close to 400 elderly residents in the
community and garnered positive feedback.

BATE P AR R A G B 5 T3t X H B E & KoHRAIIR
A community outreach session on consumer rights conducted by our
Customer Experience and Advocacy colleagues

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

39



I 2022 in Review

BERES

FHERTPEREFRIGEAwESR (ER)

RERTHPEEFREGHER

UOB China'’s anti-scam short videos
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Customer complaints classified by business segments

PMANEE R 7
mortgage

BEEM 6
wealth management products

RIBEFERRMIL S 9
trust and insurance products

Ihaek 5 5
functionality

W12 ) 5
account services

INCHEE ) 2
foreign exchange savings

#Aa LK

A 1
ARMMEE 1
renminbi savings

HARTI S 10

other services
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We are committed to provide our customers with an
independent, accountable and objective process to address
their complaints in a fair, transparent, comprehensive and
efficient manner.

In 2022, we received 49 customer complaints, including 46
Retail Banking complaints mainly from Shanghai and Beijing
branches, as well as three Wholesale Banking complaints
from the Shanghai and Xiamen branches.

The overall number of customer complaints decreased 4.2
per cent from last year. We ensured all customer complaints
were fully addressed within the established processes and
timelines. We took an average of five calendar days to resolve
each complaint.

HEXIT K EELMIEHA TER

Fostering Employee Pride through Care, Growth and Trust
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Building a high-performing team and
nurturing future-ready banking talents

People are our most valuable assets. At UOB China, we are
committed to supporting our people to reach their full potential.
In 2022, we continued to invest in growing our own timber
through training programmes and helping our colleagues
explore more career opportunities within the Bank.

UOB China Talent Development Programme is part of our
efforts to build the leadership pipeline. The programme
identifies high-performing colleagues with potential and
provides them with various development opportunities. This
year, 45 junior-to-middle management level colleagues
enrolled and completed this programme.

One of the key highlights of the programme this year is
learning by doing. We had participants form teams to set
up and implement a project that is aligned with strategic
areas of the Bank.

During the learning journey, the project teams received training
from internal and external experts. This included training in the
McKinsey 7S model for strategic planning, compliance policies,
audit principles, operational risk management and data
analytics skills. This allows them to deepen their understanding
by performing different tasks.

After completing the four-month training, the project teams
presented their achievements to the Bank’s senior management.
Through this exercise, the participants increased their visibility
to senior management and demonstrated their ability to take
on larger leadership roles across the country.

FRISMABKENES
China-ASEAN connectivity seminar for
colleagues
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In 2020, we launched Better U, a Group-wide upskilling
programme to equip our people with the required knowledge
and skills to stay relevant in the digital age. Better U starts
with a 12-week foundation course in five core areas - growth
mindset, problem-solving, digital awareness, human-centred
design and data storytelling.

After introducing the Data Analytics track and Project
Management tracks to the Better U programme in 2021, we
added an Artificial Intelligence track in 2022, starting with
the introductory level. All three learning tracks are essential
for future employability and open to all colleagues who have
completed the foundation modules. Our colleagues can
choose to take part in the different levels according to their
level of experience and knowledge.

Our Management Associate (MA) programme enables us to
attract high-calibre and early-career talents to take on roles in
the Bank. In 2021, besides the MA programme for the traditionall
banking business, we launched the Financial Technology
(Fintech) MA Programme, which adopted a new approach to
cultivate interdisciplinary talents to support the Bank's digitall
transformation. During the 18-month training, Fintech MAs will
undertake job rotations and receive mentorships from both
business and Fintech leaders. They will participate in digital
projects to learn the entire project management process, from
identifying needs to implementing digital solutions.

We had 7 MAs join us in 2022, three of which are Fintech MAs.

To groom young talents to support growing business demand
in Greater Bay Area (GBA), we launched the GBA Trainee
Programme in July 2021. At the end of 2022, we had five
trainees successfully graduating from the programme and
continuing their career at UOB.
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EZEER
Mindful flower arranging workshop

F

Mindful tea ceremony workshop

ST RIR
Sound healing workshop

Ensuring a caring, safe and healthy work
environment

As a responsible employer, we are committed to providing
a safe and healthy work environment where our colleagues
can perform at their best. We believe that taking care of their
well-being helps drive the Bank's overall productivity and
performance.

In September 2022, we further enhanced our Flexible Work
Arrangements. We expanded the arrangements to all
colleagues and streamline the application process to help
colleagues maintain work-life balance. In December, we
announced the Early Friday policy, which allows eligible
colleagues to finish work one hour early to attend to personal
matters every Friday.

In April 2022, we launched the UOB China Employee Wellness
Programme comprising a line-up of financial, mental, physical
and social wellness courses and activities. Through the
programme, we aim to help our people boost their physical
health, build mental resilience, achieve work-life harmony and
enhance financial security.

This year, our wellness programme encompassed close to 40
online and offline workshops and classes spanning a total
of 2,200 minutes. The wellness activities included yoga, Ba
Duan Jin, meditation, sound healing, mindful cooking, mindful
tea ceremony, mindful flower arranging, color therapy, aroma
therapy, etc. In total, the programme saw 2,007 participants
with many positive feedbacks from our colleagues. They felt
empowered to take charge of their mental well-being and lead
healthier, happier and more fulfilling lives in challenging times.
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The Bank prepared flowers for colleagues to send each other for appreciation.
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Every summer, we hold our annual Appreciation Month to
foster a culture of appreciation and timely recognition. This
year's theme ‘Celebrating Our Values', shows appreciation to
colleagues who have demonstrated our Values. During the
Appreciation Month, our colleagues sent specially-designed
cards to say thank you to each other, held appreciation events
across teams and functions and posted appreciation stories on
internal WeChat. By doing so, we created a positive working
environment and improved overall job satisfaction.

Embracing diverse cultures, skills and
abilities

A diverse workforce provides different perspectives, fosters
innovative thinking, helps us overcome business challenges
and achieve sustainable growth. We are committed to creating
an inclusive workplace that values different ages, genders,
backgrounds, skills and abilities.

At UOB China, female colleagues are important drivers of our
sustainable growth. To help them balancing their personal
life and professional responsibilities, we continued to provide
dedicated insurance plans and family care programmes,
nursing and maternity benefits, Staff Club activities as well
as flexible working arrangements. We also have a range of
training and career development paths tailored to the needs
of our female colleagues.
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As at end-2022, women accounted for 72 per cent of our
permanent employees. They accounted for 63 per cent of our
senior management reporting directly to the Chief Executive
Officer. In recognition our effort in supporting gender diversity,
we were awarded China’s Best Employer for Female Employees
by Zhaopin.com for the fourth consecutive year.

2022 UOB China People Programmes
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MA Programme a9 J
Our Management Associate (MA) programmes in banking business and

Financial Technology are designed to nurture our next generation of leaders. N\
The programme offers 18-month training to graduates to fast-track their coree§
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Talent Development Programme
UOB China Talent Development programme identifies high-performing coIIeaguesJ \ Better U
with potential and provides them with various development opportunities. \
\ Better U INH
p NRTEBRINRE, UREREINNRIEE

Better U Programme
Better U equips our people with the required
knowledge and skills to stay relevant in the digital
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GBA Trainee Programme

continuing their career with UOB.
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We launched the Greater Bay Area (GBA) Trainee Programme in July 2021 to offer talents from Hong Kong cross-border work
experience and potential career opportunities. At the end of 2022, we had five trainees graduating from the programme and
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Enhanced Flexible Work Arrangement

On 1 September 2022, we announced the expansion of flexible
work arrangement to all colleagues and streamlined the
application process to help colleagues maintain work-life balance.
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Early Friday

As part of enhanced Flexible Work Arrangement, Early Friday
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Wellness Programme

UOB China Employee Wellness Programme comprises a line-up of courses
and activities to help our people boost their physical health, build mental
resilience, achieve work-life harmony and enhance financial security.

N

allows eligible colleagues to finish work one hour early to

attend to personal matters every Friday.
2R

BilEIZME, SMRIENEEESTECHESE. B, R
RERNFRRS, N TEMESR SSmRA TN,
Appreciation Month

We hosted our annual Appreciation Month to foster a culture of

—

Koppreciation and timely recognition.
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Uphold Corporate Responsibility

S5HXHEEHR
EEt R B R ERT-RERIRE.

AT AEERITAIUOB Heartbeat RS AN E , FAk BT
53 E.UOB HeartbeatRFII R, kit A& 1E. BB R
TB5=KEE, BIRAR, TS AHREE R RAAMRIE. A
FR B EHRIRNE, KITERA T BF REEIFNASE,
R X RGN,

HITEITHDDER) LERBBEMRNLE, BARNEEX=
RIS FHENERELREXER,

ZARERTX
- RRERSARS

ERIENZERBETE, KERIT-BEEEETARFPERZERZE,
RREZARZD, BRI EANE, HEIHIINZRINE B
KBS T AR AIREAE X WA EMITE,

AT BIFAARMBEET BRI EEE, KERTEABERERIE
T B EARR WRB K, KERITHEZARBREISFH R ZAR
RIE, LB NRR, BEKEXFRRBHNR, THASBANE
KRR, L ‘A HET HISL K.

‘B ZARBT2022698228 -12BRERERITZ ARBEED
The '‘Garden’ opened from 22 September 2022 until late December 2022
at UOB Art Gallery.

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Heartbeat for the Community

Enriching lives and strengthening social bonds are key to our
philosophy to give back to the community.

At UOB, our corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts
from across the Group come together under the UOB
Heartbeat CSR programme. The programme aims to create
sustainable good for a more caring and inclusive society
through corporate philanthropy, stakeholder partnerships
and employee participation. Guided by our values of Honour,
Enterprise, Unity and Commitment, we bring together our
colleagues, customers and ecosystem partners to make a
positive difference to our communities.

We focus on three areas which we believe are essential for the
quality and progress of society: art, children and education.

Bringing art closer to all
* Exploring sustainability through art

As the leading patron of the arts in Asia, we are committed
to make art more accessible, to nurture local artistic talents,
to rejuvenate cultural heritage and to inspire thoughts and
actions on sustainability through art outreach programmes.

To open up the field to more understanding of an ink art, UOB
Art Gallery presented ‘Garden;, a solo exhibition of an emerging
Chinese artist Alex Yuan. Mr Yuan used contemporary art
and technology to present his vision of a traditional Chinese
garden and demonstrate how people can make ink art in a
more progressive, sustainable way.

EEIREHREAT N NEFIESEXEREENIERET
Children at Heliu Primary School, Lincang City, Yunnan Province showing
their artworks after participating our art course

¥ EZNES ]

20215, FA B T REBEHMIM KM S HET I, HITE5R
PH—RABIET ZFESHEBHETR, PMBITE—EER TR
) LERIE BEMEIRIE, UNETLETY.

SIRITTE LR B IRIE(F T E L AR BT Wik X F I RIBIF S ity
XBHIMEMREF WG, SREN EHFHR, FSAF R RBUDER(
FHEINRIRIR. 2022F£9H 508 2 HEIMMNLI50008 F 4 M
B, [, HAMEE LA E B F2022F 25, XAFER
FRNAER, TR EITFEREAITE, RIERHE AR R 48, BIRE
TR D BRI EI B S ER.

2022688, ARTEEXFNE_BARBEFT L HBITZRE
0E”E LT RA . B AR LA AR H RN NE
), BE N REZEARDEELLUR S REHE LW ALHRIY
), BE “MEBZARTHAT NZFHETRE” X—RE, 4
[ Sad=E=E SN

BERERITEARER, ZNEERESMFRIVNERKIIE
15" EXBE.

* Preserving heritage through art education

In 2021, UOB China and Helin Art launched a three-year
programme under our ‘Forging a sustainable future’ initiative.
We aim to create art courses and an illustrated book for
children in remote areas.

The eight-class course has been launched online, inviting
teachers to register online to obtain digital teaching resources.
In 2022, close to 50 teachers and around 5,000 students took
our art courses through Helin Art's digital learning platform. At
the same time, work on our illustrated book began in 2022. The
author and illustrator visited the mountainous area in Yunnan
in 2022 and created storyboard and thumbnail sketches for
each scene of the book.

In August, UOB China supported Helin Art's City Art Camp in
Shanghai. The camp invited teachers from remote areas to
experience the different art workshops and host discussions
with education experts. With immersive art experience, rural
teachers can think about and learn how to improve their art
education practice.

Through UOB Art Gallery, we also regularly hosted art
education events such as the Junior Artist Workshop for
local communities.

RITERESISNARE INNERRITAEE LRSI (FE
Our volunteer guiding children to do dot painting at the Junior Artist
Workshop
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B2019F 15, KERITHPEMEL AT RRFHL4) LI
HE, NMRZHX BT | BRHHEBEENHFIRE, AR
I B E RN AR Ko

2022, ERATEL=FNIF T, A S EHABRMNKEA
RIS %) LBV F B N BN & . ARSI T =
AIRETHRERR—FT RRABLL) LU Bt b, BTG T
REE R “RIEERNE L) LT .

202478, HITE5HPESNARES S ERTBNIM 5
KEBEEBFENE “2022F 2 NEMAEKS FHRHIIMERTR
27, AR N FRSEREEEE RURRITELRARERT
£H “UOB My Digital Space HI”BI—&B5, AIZRFERHTIR
MEFF IR, PHEMBZFEELRE, IR mF4EN3,000A,

BITAASF “RRFBLEY) LI HFNEZNRRE

Making a joyful classroom for the children of Preschool of Future

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Developing the young to their potential

Since 2019, we have been supporting the Preschools of the
Future programme to improve quality of preschool education
for children in rural China. We not only funded education
fees and necessary supplies, but also sponsored initiatives
to improve the quality of education through systematic
management and professional guidance for teachers and
local village committees.

In 2022, the beneficiaries of the preschool in Ximeng County,
Yunnan Province successfully graduated with our support
throughout three years. We also extended funds to another
kindergarten in Zhenxiong County, Yunnan Province with
existed preschool in Zhenxiong county.

In July 2022, UOB China joined a charity project initiated by
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, the Foreign Affair
Office of Chongging Municipal Government by sponsoring a
digital classroom for one primary school in Pengshui County.
This is also a part of our UOB My Digital Space education
programme to bridge the digital gap for students from
underprivileged backgrounds. This project enables 3,000
students to learn holistically in a digital environment.

AERTHRERESENRAATIMZE
UOB China colleagues doing hiking in UOB Heartbeat T-shirts

RERITBOAEM/IT

2022F108, EEBNEHARENAERIT B OATER/1T 18
PMERIBEXERERE. AERITRERS25Z R T RERBULE
MRS 5IRES), FhEd ER. B RBITHAN, RN
128,000~ E,
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Heoh, RERITHREEQEZHEMHARB T "B #E"2.011 %8
BETFNAHPETREFEZEHRG I REF T, SRBNEEI R B EUE
S50 R B eFepE ORTRRIS T, #3R1G 7 — 8 M EBRHRER S pL
B E AL R T R HATHEL /0 X B @, AR
BE R X— 1Tt RIfE1§8 000 MERHR BRI &£,

e Eng

20223 R, Z MM RBIEHIR R ERER. HITAAES1E
R T AR, EBfh X R ANER —A T EARBIFIEER
&, BENE10 R TTRIBTE RIEY R KERITHRE S TEBESE,
AR T AFEIKEFEE, FERN, E= RN T REWHIEEE
B AP AR BRI LS.

Keeping the good going through
philanthropy, partnerships an
participation

2022 marks the sixteenth year of UOB Global Heartbeat Run/
Walk. In October, UOB colleagues, customers, and beneficiaries
across 18 markets joined this flagship volunteering and
fundraising event. In China, 525 colleagues and their families
joined the Heartbeat Run/Walk virtually and clocked close to
28,000 kilometres for charity through running, walking or cycling.

Our colleagues, business partners and the public raised
more than RMB486,000 through sports, donations, as well
as online charity sales. The funds were allocated to support
our community programmes.

This year, we launched the UOB Heartbeat upcycling campaign
2.0 to encourage our colleagues and the public to Do Good
Do Green. By working together with non-profit organisation
Plastic Ecological Transformer (P.E.T), we used waste plastic
bottles to produce UOB Heartbeat T-shirts and sustainable
tote bags. Every colleague who made a charity donation or
achieved 50 kilometres in the Heartbeat Run/Walk received
a T-shirt made with eight plastic bottles. We also hosted
charity sales of these products to raise funds. Together, we
transformed a total of 8,000 plastic bottles into items which
are more meaningful and sustainable.

COVID-19 relief

Since March 2022, China has seen rising new case levels of the
COVID-19, especially in Shanghai and the Greater Bay Area
(GBA). Working with our CSR partners, UOB China donated
protective gear and daily necessities worth close to RMB100,000
to frontline service workers and volunteers in Lujiozui Financial
City and GBA cities. From the confirmation of donation, transfer
of funds to the charity partner to purchasing and distributing
supplies, the entire process was completed in only three days.

BITBA LSRN ARES 2 HRRES RS TEARREYE
UOB China partnered with Shanghai United Foundation to procure
supplies to donate to frontline workers in the Lujiazui communities.
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ARERITHERSEEBESRNRERIIFERHN—EITEAR

1BERL AR

UOB China partnered with Amity Foundation to donate supplies to
frontline workers in Dongguan and Shenzhen.

EX—HiE), RITEENERIRIMNERBE ME, AFRTELXEY)
RECE. FHEENBEHEETER—H, SHXEFRTT.

EREI MRS SR, B KERITHERIE, iefti L
REERE, PHARTIFS ORE, ILEHERRE.,

RIRE I 1E5RRIEEEN

RITESIPERERNREN T2 A EAEE TR HERBER.E
RERTHE, EMBETZE,

20225, REERITHERSHRE TN SURTIREM R 4, LR
BRNEH RPN B BHREE .

HANABRBIVESRMMIZ LT & I EE R, b5 U
BYESRAMTAE, SRR ERUMA R BITTEE S AN BT R BT
KRR, RESEEHBREHARENN R,
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During the lockdown, many colleagues volunteered at the
front line to keep their communities going. They collected trash
within their residential compounds, picked up medicines for
neighbours and delivered groceries and packages.

In partnership with professional wellness management
services, UOB China offered a variety of online courses and
shared through our official WeChat. This allowed the public
to learn how they could get some relief during the pandemic.

Ensuring regulatory compliance and
enhancing data capabilities

Banks play an integral role in ensuring the stability and
security of the financial system. At UOB China, regulatory
compliance is a top priority.

In 2022, UOB China continued to invest in technology, data
capabilities and systems to ensure regulatory compliance
and protect our data and assets.

The Bank has robust protocols and processes in place to
address regulatory requirements. As the authorities continually
introduce new requirements and standards to protect the
integrity of the financial system. We closely monitor regulatory
and industry developments, adjust our process and upgrade
our systems accordingly.

China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission issued
the Standardisation of Regulatory Data of Banking Financial
Institutions (2021 Edition) (EAST5.0) in February 2022. We have
timely upgraded the existing EAST application to support
EAST 5.0 data standards.

In August, we have passed the onsite inspection by People’s
Bank of China of our upgraded Renminbi Cross-border
Receipts and Payments Information Management System
(RCPMIS) to the second generation and launched the new
application in November. This enabled us to meet reporting
standards for cross-border renminbi fund transfers as
released by People’'s Bank of China and retrieve of the
source data of cross-border renminbi transaction business
with efficiency and efficacy.

BIEB SRR

RERITPERREVRITH TR L RS, AEIM2030F 5
RERHK (scope 2) FFAEBREFEIRIR2018F R 14%ER R
1%, RER— R 5T RE R AHE .

20226, HATER A LIBEMBE WA RABSAERITAERARS
FHRFREBRS B IE, KERIT AR AH KIS LR A ERITEITH
AR AMBILEDT AT R, FRBARATIRERANLALI50%, K
ERFHEERTNELI305 TR,

BT RITE2023FEE N ZITHELEDIRRAER, HIWAERITK
EH I TEZTHRESGE. 20225128, KERITAEERIIAREE
FBERZR=(USCBOMRFTHILZEEILEED (Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design) $85&IAIE, F1§F20234F43
RERIELR B RN Creen Mark 2 INIE, HEEAPEEMREL
FINIER PR FHE,

2022%F, RERITRERRSEHERLIR D 2, IRk
11.5%, tHE FRD£918,0008 AU R /8 RIE B R E RV,

BAVELRIM T 217 “REFTEN IRERVERE . RIThAEE R B R T
TEFTENH ERI-RFTENS M XA B FAEATENS IR RIPHN R E B H
RO AERIFTED Tt B RV AR E A L £930%, BIE530 755K
MELI390 Ko

BARERITAE2018FEREM G, Fl TS FEIRRIMEL “HIk
— /NI X —2IKM T REIERN. 20223826 A, KIERITKE

WMEANENT, S BRI XIET B EER RS RNNFEETRX—
152 R TR RTRREX REARIRIR.

O/ REATIRER
5 O /O energy saving in the
lighting system

Reduciﬁszgl?/\iﬁgﬁiﬁé% 1 1 o 5%

DR E (o)
Reducing 30 /O
paper usage by

Managing our direct environmental impact

At UOB China, we are committed to reducing our carbon
footprint to achieve UOB Group's goals for operational carbon
neutrality. The goals are to achieve 14 per cent reduction in
electricity use intensity and achieve 14 per cent reduction in
Scope 2 emissions intensity in 2030, with baseline year of 2018.

As part of energy conservation and emission reduction efforts,
we collaborated with UOB Property China to upgrade the
lighting system of our head office building, UOB Plaza in
2022. With the upgrades, the public areas of UOB Plaza and
office areas of the Bank’s headquarters are equipped with
energy-efficient LED lighting system. This upgrade saves about
300,000 kwh of UOB Plaza's annual power consumption,
which enables 50 per cent energy saving in the lighting system.

We also plan to roll out LED lighting upgrades across all
branches in China and add more sustainability features to
UOB Plaza in 2023. UOB Plaza successfully obtained LEED
(Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) Platinum
certification under the U. S Green Building Council in December
2022 and we have filed application for Green Mark Platinum
certification of Singapore’s Building and Construction Authority.
Upon obtaining the certifications, the Plaza is expected to
become China'’s first Grade-A office building holding both
certifications.

By implementing waste segregation on each floor, UOB Plaza
has successfully reduced waste by 11.5 per cent in 2022. This
amount is equivalent to reducing the waste generated by
approximately 18,000 residents daily.

We also implemented bank-wide Secure Print function. This
function requests each colleague to swipe the pass card at
the printer to print documents. This change helped to protect
confidential information during printing as well as to reduce
unnecessary printing. It is estimated that the annual paper
usage can be reduced by around 30 per cent from 5.3 million
to 3.9 million sheets.

Since UOB Plaza opened in 2018, we have been participating
in Earth Hour, a global annual event that calls for greater
climate action. On 26 March 2022, we switched off the non-
essential lights at UOB Plaza and asked all colleagues to
turn off their non-essential electrical appliances to support
global efforts to tackle climate change.
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2022 Triple A #&. R 5. MR XL EIER — (I1&H) The Triple A Awards 2022 - Treasury, Trade , .
RIERNES BRI ZBRALTR — Supply Chain and Risk Management - The Asset S
ETRSS. Rk BT R mius =% P Ef3kR Best Liquidity and Investments Solution
AN HERAS R — WERHIE. SRR ARSS i Best Supply Chain Solution
/ IR P FIIRR L - Best Trade Finance Solution
RIERZRMAMRT R — BISTAF A ROIRR : Best Renminbi Internationalisation Solution
J_;"' " RIEARTEMRUBRSR — SRIRS TURE PRI
¥ _.-""f- 2022F MY HiFRE (TNKX) — (SEESERE) Adam Smith Awards Asia 2022 - Treasury Today
. RIERARHER Best Investing Solution - InnoVen
& 2022FERITIEYNCHH BN — REINCRZH0 China Foreign Exchange Trade System 2022
IEARBINCEINE AN Best RMB FX Option Trial Market Maker
202FEMRBER . RERIR — EEEER5M Shanghai Gold Exchange 2022
g — S FERFRIZA _ Best Special Member
\1/; FEREENZBEERR _ Best Price Matching Trading Member
1? 1 n FEREEMRMERESRA Best Price Matching Liquidity Provider
FEREM M =ENE Best Product Promotion Institution

(2022 LIRS R ZHNFM) — LEBFSERS Shanghai Service Trade Promotion Manual 2022 - Shanghai Municipal

Re C O g n i t i o n fro m LiEHARSS B 5 I3 & B R R G Commission of Commerce

Shanghai Services Trade Innovation Development Practice Case
2L SRTSR DAFTEG — QIEHEEFIRE). 21HEE5FM5Rb: 21 Century Financial Competitiveness Research Cases - 27t Century Business

t h e I n d U st r 2022FE SR ZR1T Herald, 21t Century Institute of Finance
Best Transaction Bank of the Year

LB R Shanghai Futures Exchange 2022
90226, Bl TTER AT E S TR, AR R & AR 75 6 20225 E LGS LS FERERZE Shanghai Futures Exchange OTC Platform Excellent Dealer
JUEEIRE INERE, LUAD SPA 1 S
3 ’ REERR A S = S UOR Bl o 2022FERBNMN — LEEIRR SR Shanghai Commercial Paper Exchange 2022
RBEBIRRZRMARZ B Outstanding Financial Institution For Cross-border Trade Financing
CHRFGE . R OIS BTSN R ~
RIS, IS 7 AEATRREI N EFTM R R RS 2022 Top &R/l — @i 2022 Top Financial Ranking - The Paper
FEINART Foreign Bank of the Year
,l FESHINEZERTT Outstanding Foreign Retail Bank of the Year
recognises our commitment to building the future of ASEAN through III j 2022 Structured Retail Products (SRP) HEIALR 2022 Structured Retail Products (SRP) China Awards
& ] — Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁTSRpﬁﬁﬁ — SRP, a part of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
i . . . . . f ||I RIERAR—INARIT Best Performance, Non-Domestic Bank
providing progressive and sustainable solutions across our regional network. " f [ EEETE—INASES Best Manufacturer. Non-Domestic Bank
f |
y We continue to collaborate with our customers, colleagues and communities '
\ "*'-'».Ll, for a better tomorrow.
L . . : CFSE+—RURIES — HRW. R A %= The eleventh Finance Summit - syobserve.com,
N, . 20227RH mAERZRE gongyidaily.com
L LY Top Excellence Brand 2022
) " \"'*\ 2022 BHRHTPERERE — BhlTE 2022 Best Employers Selections - Forbes China
L N 2022 EFERARFREEE Best Employer in Digital Responsibility
L\ 1"‘1 SHHERHINE — SMERHRRERC Great Place to Work® Institute
e “EHENHINEMAPEHX A TAIE Great Place to Work™ Certified Organisation in Chinese Mainland
‘H"h.\_ P, . 2022 EEERERE — HEXRE 2022 China Best Employer Awards - Zhaopin.com
Sy . RIEET10058 Top 100 China Best Employers
-“‘-\.\ i RRIMXERE Best Employers for Female Employees
.\‘-“\-‘-‘-""l-‘.__ ; FTZRPEAET — BRM. RN The Twelfth Charity Festival - syobserve.com, gongyidaily.com
—— 2022F ERERER Most Socially Responsible Brand
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e 51 Fiy RS

Name Gender Age Position

B 3 70
Wee Ee Cheong Male
independent director

EEK/FRTIFRUES

Chairman/Non-executive and non-

UOB China is committed to upholding good corporate
governance and is guided by the following in this regard:
a) the People's Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-
funded Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC
Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks;

d) the Corporate Governance Norms for Banking and
Insurance Institutions; and

e) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees,
the Supervisors and Senior Management perform their
respective duties according to the laws and regulations
of the country and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

Our Board membership has been refreshed following these

changes:

a) Retirement of Mr Liu Erh Fei from the Board on 15 November
2022; and

b) Appointment of Mr Nie Ming to the Board on 7 September
2022.

The current Board comprises five members, two of whom
are independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank's Articles of Association. Details of
the Board members are shown in the table below:

EEH

Current Term of Office

2022F 9817 HE2025%F9K16H
From 17 September 2022 to 16
September 2025

RIHEE e 60 WITIERUES (ITKREFHITE) 2022 10 B 28 HE 2025 %10 A 27 H

Peter Foo Moo Executive and non-independent director From 28 October 2022 to 27 October

Tan (President and Chief Executive Officer) 2025

471588 z 59 ERITIERIES 2020 7B 12HE 20237811 H

Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent From 12 July 2020 to 11 July 2023
director

REE % 64  JRUES 2021 FF 6B 6 HE 2024 6 B 5H

Wu Yu Hua Male Independent director From 6 June 2021 to 5 June 2024

PR e 62 MIIESE 202 9B 7HBE2025%986H

Nie Ming Male Independent director From 7 September 2022 to 6 September
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2025

EESNEEREENT:

« AT KEAEER BT, HUERITHBRRERAEMRARRE,
HERITALMEY, FERRFRTENEERATE;
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s BERZAHERITHEEZEITR, ARRTHEEMERSN
EIZIET;

o RERITHASANGLEN;

* REREDERARUNESRE;

c FNERSNSREBARNREISRE;

- WERY2EHN. HNSPREEENXOERBE. B2

RS EIBHELE;
 RERITHNRBRE. RERMHE. KRR HIZERXER
EHLPRER;

« BRHEERITHONLER, AEBHEITANESMERENETT,
HBRWETREENT DM

. BIEERENAE;

+ HIREERTITELSNBRMZF LB RN B SR IESF]
HRERHE R PR~ 4E;

« BEHIOERITIE X KRR ZHTHIER;

o Budlx . fHERMBERE;

« BERITHERKREBRAXNFIIREESNESE. EREM
FTRMNRE;

s HNEEEE R RHE TRERSRMRINENIE;

s HINHBRARBINESRH;

The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

set long term strategic goals, approve strategic
business initiatives and investment schemes, formulate
the capital plans of the Bank and assume the ultimate
responsibility for capital or solvency management;
determine the environmental, social and governance
(ESQ) factors that are material to the Bank, consider
sustainability issues, including material ESG factors, in
formulating its strategies, and oversee the management
and monitoring of the material ESG factors;

determine plans for increase or reduction of registered
capital, issuance of bonds or other securities and the
|PO of the Bank;

determine plans for any significant acquisition, purchase
of equity in the Bank, or amalgamation, split, winding-
up or conversion of the Bank;

approve external investments, asset purchase, asset
disposal and write-off, asset mortgage and connected
transactions;

monitor the business and financial performance of the
Bank, and approve the financial statements of the Bank;
review and approve annual business plan and budget
and key performance indicators.

determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

set dividend policy and declare dividends;

plan for the succession of Board members and Senior
Executives;

oversee the establishment of a comprehensive risk
governance framework, including the strategy, policy
and process for managing various types of risk;
determine the risk tolerance, risk appetite and risk
profile of the Bank, and approve credit discretionary
limits;

review and monitor the risk management, internal
audit and compliance functions, and ensure that these
functions are adequately resourced;

recommend amendments of Articles of Associations to
shareholders;

ensure that Management establishes appropriate
procedures and processes to avoid situations that
may give rise to improper personal gains or conflicts of
interests;

review and approve the Bank's system of controls
relating to connected transactions;

set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;
review the Bank's information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity
of the information disclosed;

review and approve the composition and terms of
reference of the Board and Board Committees;

endorse directors' fees for recommendation to the
shareholder;
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e report to the shareholder; and

» exercise such other power as authorised by the
shareholder and perform such other functions as
required by relevant laws, regulations and the Bank's
Articles of Association.

The Board meets at least four times a year. Additional
Board meetings would be convened whenever necessary.

In 2022, the Board held four meetings. The quorum for each
meeting was met.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for the
Board to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

The Board passed five resolutions by way of circulation in
2022.

The procedures for convening Board meetings, the quorum
required for constituting the meetings, the proceedings at
the meetings, and the procedures for voting and passing
of resolutions were in compliance with the requirements
of applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank's
Articles of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings
and circular resolutions were properly maintained by the
Company Secretary.

XTFEFEITRENELRS

RERT (FE) EF2BAMRENENERR, B BITE
Re. XEXSEWNERS. FHERR. REAFMER M
EECNNEERRR.

M PITERS
0. ZEREMG BE—REE (FRF)  FFRRSLE. HZiFHR L,
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five
Board Committees, namely, Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

» the Bank’s business operations, including formulating
internal policies and business strategies, monitoring
the execution of business plans and approving
relevant credit limits; and

* human resource matters for employees below Senior
Executives positions.

c. In 2022, the EXCO leveraged electronic means to
facilitate the review and approval of matters and to
improve efficiency of discussions during the COVID-19
pandemic. Hence, it did not hold any meeting in the
year.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (Chairman), Mrs
Christine Ip and Mr Nie Ming (replacing Mr Liu Erh Fei
who retired with effect from 15 November 2022).

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:

» establish the framework for managing connected
transactions;

» oversee the management of connected transactions
and associated risks;

* review non-material connected transactions; and

 review and recommend material connected transactions
to the Board for approval.

¢. The CTCC held one meeting in 2022.

d. The CTCC passed two resolutions by way of circulation
in 2022.
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(3) Audit Committee

a. The AC members are Mr Nie Ming (replacing Mr Liu Erh
Fei, who retired with effect from 15 November 2022, as
Chairman), Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Wu Yu Hua.

b. The AC’'s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all
matters relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit
plans and reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and
material internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;
the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting
policies or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings of internal and external auditors;
the establishment of a comprehensive governance
framework, including the policy and procedures for
managing whistle-blowing cases;

the approval of external auditor's fees; and

the nominations of the external auditor and the head
of the internal audit function.

c. The AC held four meetings in 2022.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a. The NRC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (replacing Mr Liu
Erh Fei, who retired with effect from 15 November 2022,
as Chairman), Mr Wee Ee Cheong, Mrs Christine Ip and
Mr Nie Ming (with effect from 15 November 2022).

b. The NRC's main responsibilities are to:
* recommend nominees for appointment to the Board

and Board Committees;

recommend a framework for the remuneration of
directors and key senior executives (including the
President and CEO and Deputy President) for the
Board's approval; and

establish a mechanism for the formal assessment
of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the
contribution of the various Board Committees and
individual directors.

c. The NRC held one meeting in 2022.

d. The NRC passed two resolutions by way of circulation in
2022.
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(5) Board Risk Management Committee

a. The BRMC members are Mrs Christine Ip (Chairman), Mr
Wu Yu Hua and Mr Nie Ming (replacing Mr Liu Erh Fei
who retired with effect from 15 November 2022).

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

review and recommend risk management strategies,
policies and risk appetite statement of the Bank for
the Board's approval;

oversee the establishment and operation of a robust
and independent risk management system that is
consistent with the strategies and policies approved
by the Board;

review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Bank’s risk management framework and practices
for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
various types of risks;

Review bank-wide stress test scenarios, assumptions,
parameters and reports;

review regular management reports on risk exposures,
risk portfolio composition and the management
and monitoring of such exposures and portfolio
composition; and

report to the Board regularly and highlight any
adverse risk event or trend for the Board's attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2022.
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Supervisors

a) Dr Wee Cho Yaw retired as Supervisor of the Bank on 29
October 2022.

b) Prof Cham Tao Soon, who was Deputy Supervisor of
the Bank up to 31 December 2022, assumed the role of
Supervisor of the Bank with effect from 1 January 2023.

Prof Cham Tao Soon was nominated by the shareholder
and appointed in accordance with regulatory requirements
and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

* inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the
Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to
ensure that the Bank is run in a prudent manner and
that the Board and Senior Management take corrective
actions where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant
to relevant laws, regulations and the Bank’s Articles
of Association, and as may be authorised by the
shareholder.

In 2022, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly,
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and the Bank's
Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility,
the Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports
on the Bank's operations and risk management, and
conducted supervision of the operations and financial
position, and protection of consumer rights of the
Bank and the performance of the Directors and Senior
Management. The Supervisors also met with Directors and
Senior Management, and attended Board meetings.

IR EFREITIRES

022 FE, HITRUBFEDHNAREERE. MNZWEE (B
E2022F1MA15H) RERELE (B2022F 987 HE) -
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Name of Independent  (R) )

Director No. of Board
Meetings Held

KELE
Wu Yu Hua

M=%

(BE 2022 F
1MA15H)

Liu Erh Fei

(up to 15 November
2022)

=EA

(82022 %

9 A7 HE)

Nie Ming

(from 7 September
2022)

(2) I EBEWHITHEXEIR H S INEIER
2022 F, MU BFIRNRITEFERNNEFITURH RN,

No. of Board
Meetings Attended

Performance of Independent Directors

In 2022, the independent directors on the Board were Mr Wu
Yu Hua, Mr Liu Erh Fei (up to 15 November 2022) and Mr Nie
Ming (with effect from 7 September 2022). Mr Wu Yu Hua is
the Chairman of the NRC and CTCC, as well as a member of
the AC and BRMC. Mr Nie Ming is the Chairman of the AC, as
well as a member of the NRC, CTCC and BRMC.

In the year under review, all independent directors
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the
Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the rights
and overall interests of the Bank, consumers, depositors,
the shareholder and other stakeholders.

(1) Attendance of Independent Directors at Board
Meetings in 2022

TR = pad
ox) Remarks
Absent with
Apologies
0 /
0 /
0 /

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors
In 2022, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.
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Supervisors' and Directors’ Access to
Information

The Supervisors and Directors have unfettered access
to information and Management, and are provided with
timely and comprehensive financial, risk management and
operational reports to facilitate informed discussions during
meetings. They also have access to the Company Secretary
whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisors
and Directors on regulatory changes and best practices
in corporate governance. The Supervisors and Directors
may seek independent professional advice in the course of
discharging their duties at the Bank'’s expense.

R
FOO Moo Tan
Peter

[ Fikipse
YANG Rui Qi
Mark

W&
ZHENG Jun
Adaline

PHEM
YEONG Kok Leng
Vincent

FER
FANG Xiao En
Andrew

iBiate
CHENG Yu Lung
Rahmi

KH

ZHU Xuan
Brian

e

XIN Tao
Cynthia

BE
HUANG Ying
Christina

R

Position

TKREERITE
President and Chief
Executive Officer

BTk

Alternate Country CEO
REFKEHBEE
Head, Global Markets

BEIfTK

Alternate Country CEO
HERBITHEE

Head, Wholesales
Banking

BHENKREHE
Chief Risk Officer

RERHFUBEE
Head, Channels and
Digitalisation

M REGEHEE
Head, Technology and
Operations

BEVSE
Chief Financial Officer

ARITEEE
Head, Corporate
Banking
REILTEHTITIK
General Manager of
Beijing Branch

E R TR EREX EE
Head, Commercial
Banking - Non-South
China

Male

E°S

Female

Male

Male

Male

Male

E°S

Female

Female

1962

1973

1980

1969

1979

1964

1980

1981

1972

Senior Management Structure

4R =S
L
Assignment
Commencement

Highest Academic Degree

2016 F 128 WIREUARZREM-EEF TRER
Dec 2016 Bachelor of Science, Estate Management, Honours
National University of Singapore
FF SR
Chartered Financial Analyst
20200108  BAFTR/RAKFN AR L
Oct 2020 Master of Applied Finance
201610 B The University of Melbourne, Australia
Oct 2016
20214 B PERBAFEREMFE L
Apr 2021 Bachelor of International Finance
201842 A Shanghai Jiao Tong University
Feb 2018
202214 FIEEIAFITHEESY T
Jan 2022 Bachelor of Business Administration
National University of Singapore
2022%F18 HAHRFHRIRESF R IAEEMm LT
Jan 2022 Master of Business Administration
Leonard N. Stern School of Business, New York
University
2021128 wRBFAEEFRBFIEML
Dec 2021 Master of Science
King's College, University of London
2018478 EBRFRITML
Jul 2018 Master of Professional Accounting
Fudan University
2020 1R REETNRZEFFMLT
Jan 2020 Master of Science in Economics
University of Nottingham, UK
2022%1H
Jan 2022
2018 £ 4 B REMNARZBFRERREST. SRSETEMLT
Apr 2018 Master of Science in International

Economics Banking and Finance
Cardiff University, UK

NP S,
FR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

35

21

20

29

21

31

20

16

28
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YUAN Quan
Albert

i
LU Meng Jia
David

R
TEH Wee Jin

HfRIR
YEOH Kian Soon
Benedict

PErEapL]
FAN Nan Hong
Frank

HONG Xioo Yan
Amy

BRIR
ZHANG Sa
Sarah

Fi&
WANG Yuan
Eliza

BEAIK
XIONG Da Yong

1138
FU Yue
Sabrina

BXE
SHING Tin Yau
Gordon

Position

RBETUSEHEE
Head, Transaction
Banking
RELBHTIK
General Manager of
Shanghai Branch

MAERBRSHEE
Head, Personal Financial
Services

EWRITEREEE
Head, Corporate Credit

AR TE RIS
Head, Commercial Credit
- Non-South China

A RITEEBEXEE
Head, Commercial Credit
- South China

ANZERBEE
Head, Human Resources

HNEERITEEE
Head, Internal Audit

EESHHEEE
Head, Legal and
Secretariat

BHEEE
Head, Compliance

RESEIN S mhESH
Head, Strategic
Communications and
Brand

ANDITITE

General Manager of
Shenzhen Branch
FRAEFVRTHEXEE
Head, Commercial
Banking - South China
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5
Male

Male

Male

Male

Male

Z

Female

ko8

Female

k74

Female

5
Male

k74

Female

Male

1976

1980

1958

1970

1976

1977

1972

1974

1970

1977

1970

fEHA

L
Assignment
Commencement

20184 5 A
May 2018

2022%F 48
Apr 2022

20089 B
Sep 2008

20211 A
Nov 2021

2021128
Nov 2021

200712 B
Dec 2007

2016 % 1H
Jan 2016

200712 B
Dec 2007

2017 & 8 A
Aug 2017

20ME5A8
May 2011

2019 £ 8 B
Aug 2019

2019 £ 3 B
Mar 2019

Highest Academic Degree

BAMBRFEFEMT
Master of Economics
Rikkyo University, Japan

FERFEEEESERRAGTIELT
Bachelor of Information Administration and
Information System

Shanghai University

MRZAEEFL
Bachelor of Commerce
University of Otago, New Zealand

EERMEEEAFEBEFF -
Bachelor of Science
Carnegie Mellon University, USA

EARARAARFITHEEM LT
Master of Business Administration
Hong Kong Baptist University

EEXFTHEENML
Master of Business Administration
Fudan University

EEAIMNIIKEFAF TR EEmt
Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting
State University of New York at Buffalo, USA

EEXFTHEENML
Master of Business Administration
Fudan University

BEEAFEMFELT
Doctor of Finance
Fudan University

REFMZAFERHZEEFHML

Master of Science in International Marketing
Management

University of Leeds, UK

ERETAFFERREEEFM LT
Master of Science in China Business Studies
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

NEP ST
FR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

19

20

41

27

26

25

29

26

19

22

28

=R
ZENG Xioo Ting
Christina

HRLE

HU Wei
Tony
B
GOU Wei
Helen

A1)l
HE Chuan
Charlie

AR
ZHOU Xico Zhou
Alan

3
YE Yan
Beicy

5
WANG Hao

ey
CAl Wei Ling
Cissy

B—T
SHAO Yi Ning

TR
SHUM Wai Kin
Gary

R
XIE Ying
Grace

PR
CHEN Xiao Ling

i
DU Yan
Cherry

%S

Position

INDITITEK
General Manager of
Guangzhou Branch

AHMDITITE
General Manager of
Suzhou Branch

BRI
General Manager of
Shenyang Branch

BEDTTTK
General Manager of
Chengdu Branch

REDITITK
General Manager of
Tianjin Branch

RMATTE
General Manager of
Hangzhou Branch

BRPITITK
General Manager of
Chongqing Branch
ENSEEK
General Manager of
Xiamen Branch
EBRANTTITK
General Manager of
Kunming Branch
FPULRTTEK
General Manager of
Zhongshan Branch

EBERABXZITITEK
Branch Manager of
Shanghai Pilot Free
Trade Zone Sub-Branch

EERRCZTIEK
Branch Manager of
Xujiahui Sub-Branch

FBBRRITIK
Branch Manager of
Jingan Sub-Branch

E°S

Female

%
Male

E°S

Female

%
Male

Male

Female

Male

Female

x

Female

%
Male

x

Female

X

Female

E°S

Female

1972

1978

1977

1979

1982

1971

1975

1981

1983

1968

1983

1984

1975

£

iy
Assignment
Commencement

201128
Dec 2021

202111 A
Nov 2021

20208 A
Aug 2020

202111 A
Nov 2021

2020 F 4 A
Apr 2020

2018 12 B
Dec 2018

2022 %3 A
Mar 2022

202078
Jul 2020

2020 6 B
Jun 2020

202498
Sep 2022

2020 % 8 B
Aug 2020

2019%3 A
Mar 2019

2016558
May 2016

e

Highest Academic Degree

HAEZRERAF IHEENT
Master of Business Administration
The University of Waikato

AEEUNERAS BRI ESEMmT
Master of Business Administration

Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers, France

TTAREEFEFTREFFE T
Bachelor of Economics and Laws
Liaoning University

MASIEARPRITEEFM LT
Master of Management in Banking
Massey University

REMFERERFERITESHF LT
Bachelor of Accounting and Finance
University of Hertfordshire, UK

BIREIEAFBFIEF L
Bachelor of Electrical Engineer
Harbin Engineering University

BHAAFEFFEL
Doctor of Public Finance
Nankai University

REP=AEAFESEHMABERHSHL

Master of Business Finance and International Business

University of Central Lancashire,UK

SEAMERETHFFEL
Bachelor of Marketing
Yunnan University of Finance and Economics

RN AFERFEFM LT
Master of Science in Finance
City University of Hong Kong
LFERBAFENAESFML
Master of Applied Linguistics
Shanghai Jiao Tong University

EBETAFHENRMFESRAF T

Bachelor of Engineering (Science and Technology)

The University of Shanghai for Science and
Technology

LR S Fmhk T EEmLt
Master of Business Administration
United Business Institutes,Belgium

HEXRER
FR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

17

22

21

16

15

28

20

16

16

28

14

14

20
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Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB China aims to provide
competitive remuneration package and ensure the bank is
able to appropriately attract, retain and motivate high quality
talents who not only fit the Bank’s culture and share the
same values but also meet the competencies the positions
require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy outlines how our
remuneration entitlement links to the Bank’s performance,
long-term benefits and risk management. This remuneration
policy applies to all of the full-time employees with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the
employee’s salary is mainly linked to the individual
performance, the Group's and function’s performance. The
performance target setting clearly shows the requirements
and expectations of the Bank for risk management and
long-term and short-term performance of the function
and the individual. In addition, the compensation review
of the employees who are taking compliance and risk
management's roles is independent with the performance
of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes performance bonus and
restricted shares, which links the staff variable pay to the
Bank's performance and current and future risks. In line
with the Supervisory Guidelines on Sound Compensation
in Commercial Banks issued by China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission, senior management
and employees whose roles have material impacts on the
Bank's risk exposure would have a portion of their variable
pay deferred. Under the Bank’s latest deferral framework,
the 50 per cent deferral rate will be applied to the variable
pay for key senior managements whereas for other
senior managements and employees whose roles have
material impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure, the 40 per
cent deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay. This
deferral will be in the form of deferred shares or deferred
cash (where applicable).

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and
an effective remuneration management, UOB China has
established a Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC), which consists of four Board Directors. The chairman
of NRC is an independent director. During the reporting
period, the committee held one meeting in total.

ER. LFENSHEEAHN

2022 ERITARBRFHERSHMAZANESTESHAIAR
M 693,000 75, MBEEXIHSEERLSITAART 400,000 7T,

BHE2022F12831H, xTTHABESREEAZRIIN
RMEEEXMRAULNRT, E2022FXTWERMH
Megmn ART 88621184 75, HPEEFHMETANART
52294977 7o, EIZEHMEHAART 36,326,207 7T

FTERITEEFE. BEHI S REMR MR,

Compensation for Board Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

In 2022, the Bank paid a total of RMB693,000 directors’
fees to the members of NRC, and paid a total of
RMB400,000 supervisors' fees to the supervisors.

As of 31 December 2022, there are total 33 senior
executives and material risk takers whose roles have
material impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure. The total
compensation for these executives and material risk takers
in 2022 was RMB88,621,184, including RMB52,294,977 fixed
pay and RMB36,326,207 variable pay.

The Bank currently has no explicit and/or implicit
adjustments to the deferred pay and/or remained pay.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit
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Internal Control

UOB China has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group's policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework and systems that enable the Bank to set strategic
and practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control framework
and systems through the review of risk management reports
and analysis, operational and budget reports, internal audit
reports tabled at regular meetings, discussions at various
internal committees and from the exchange of insights with
industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement on the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to,
strengthening risk identification/assessment, monitoring
processes and risk mitigation techniques; and constantly
reviewing communication/feedback as well as evaluation/
correction mechanisms. The internal control framework and
systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance
on the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee ("AC") and Group Audit,
while administratively reports to the President and Chief
Executive Officer ("“CEO") of UOB China.

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services to improve the Bank's
operations. It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives
by having a systematic and disciplined approach to
provide an independent assessment of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Bank's internal financial controls,
operational and compliance controls, and to improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes. During 2022, as led by Group Audit, Internal
Audit continued its implementation on Enhanced Risk
Assessment in its monitoring on the Bank’s internal risk &
control management process, applied more technology-
enabled techniques such as data visualisation, data
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analytics and automation tools to empower audit, and
broadened the adoption of Continuous Auditing into key
business controls assessment, for improved effectiveness
and efficiency in audit assessment. Internal Audit also
proactively collaborated with various business and support
functions for better mutual understanding, deepened
its appreciation of new business products and process
changes to support & improve audit evaluation, and
strived to recommend process enhancement and/or
automation solutions to business and support functions.
In 2022, Internal Audit participated in UOB China's
Country Talent Programme, by working with colleagues
from other functions and/or Branches on the “Guest
Auditor Programme”. The programme, through sharing on
audit methodology, data analytics and operational risk
management framework and practical application, helped
these guest auditors gain better understanding and
appreciation on the Bank's Third Line.

Internal Audit performs its function according to the
Internal Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as
governed by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission and Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
Internal Audit adopts a risk-based prioritisation approach
to develop its strategic audit plan to determine audit
frequency. This approach also adopts a comprehensive
assessment of inherent risks, controls, management
concerns and regulatory hotspots. The audit scope covers
all businesses, operations as well as the infrastructure and
applications of systems across UOB China’s headquarters
and branches. The strategic audit plan is annually reviewed
and approved by the AC prior to its implementation.

Internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the
internal audit plan approved by the AC, and carries out
investigations or reviews that may be ad hoc requested
by the regulator, the AC, the CEO or senior management.
All internal audit reports are provided to the AC, the
CEO, relevant management and/or the Board (where
required) with significant issues highlighted. Internal Audit
is responsible for closely monitoring and assessing the
follow-up actions taken by the management on the issues
raised by Internal Audit, external audit and regulators, with
reporting to the AC and the regulator on quarterly basis.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

69



70

I Risk Management

X EIE

2022&EIB&E S | 2022 HIGHLIGHTS

2022 &, BHNEFARH T AMTUBEZERNEE, 945
RERITERA LW ETRA TR 60%. B ARERITERRE
2039 FZHNRH BT IEE, HTF 2022 FFELEX
BRRASEREFUHFMERE. SERABE-X, ®RITT
2022 R TIFEXPOEIRESR, SEH—DMENIFE,
HaRAE (ESC) KPEMSERREINASEEES. &
TR4SMRSSERAZAXERE, HEEAREWSHX
ESG M EIERYRE NN RIFSLEL.

2022 &, BT T XX ZEEMAEERRIMBAE, A%k
K ER IR M = A B CRITRPUA I K EX S 5 B IBADED
BIUBANRREAR, RITEEMRT 2023F181HESR
TR XERKRZ ZEEMEER, HET 3 81 BLEHE
AISEILAM E R LR TR .

2022 &, HITEREHE—H BoIUHIERMRE (P&L) REEE
DEVEH, BIER RS MG RE T XA E 88
FNsEAEHRERERIZAREM, HLINEIERET X5 HIT
i, P ARAERBARZRITRENSMER, HYHEX™
MR SRAER A1 2 52 e o

REEEER SRR AT SRR ER. RITHNRERES ZEETHRESNUSREMENNETRANEMBX S FHEAR
i1, FENEREZLHFRHEEERESEMENEN. HMNBAOTRIESMENATRE. B2XNREERMMI SR, L
SCHLFISE KRG Ko BT RIS N LMREXPLEERR, LSRR BRRISST,

In 2022, our Group has announced Net Zero targets and
commitments for six sectors, making up approximately
60% of UOB Group's corporate lending portfolio. UOB
Group will exit financing for thermal coal sector by 2039
and cease new project financing for upstream oil and
gas projects approved after 2022. In line with group, we
rolled out environmental risk management framework
and further strengthened our knowledge and capacity
on environmental, social and governance (ESG) risk and
climate risk management, we will remain actively involved
in various relevant Group initiatives to collectively uplift ESG
risk management capabilities/practices in the day to day
business operation.

In 2022, we have set up the Project Steering Committee
(PSQC) for the implementation of new Connected Party
"CP" Transaction Management Guidelines for Banking &
Insurance Intuitions by CBIRC, with established governance,
updated policies & procedures, and cut off of practice
starting from 1 Jan 2023 for early compliance.

In 2022, we kick-started initiatives to further automate and
enhance the profit and loss (P&L) reporting capabilities
with plan for new system enhancement catering to risk-
based P&L attribution to enhance the robustness of the
daily P&L reporting process. We also enhanced our Trade
Surveillance monitoring capabilities with increased product
scope coverage for the wash trades monitoring process
and implemented front run monitoring process for relevant
products.

Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating business
opportunities in a fast-changing environment. We are committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance, sound
risk management principles and robust business practices to achieve sustainable, long-term growth. We continually strengthen

our risk management practices to support our strategic objectives.
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As part of UOBC's commitment to fostering a strong risk
culture and to help colleagues understand the role of risk
management, we developed a new series of UOBC's Risk
Management Showcases in 2022. Through the showcasing
of best practices in risk management and different leaders’
perspectives, the series discussed sustainability issues,
ESG risk management and the outlook of green credit, and
dynamic liquidity risk management by using liquidity matching
ratio (LMR) projection.

We have strengthened our third-party and outsourcing
risk management practices and controls, and continued to
strengthen management of data protection risks, including:

* Enhance and strengthen Operational Risk Management
Committee's oversight over the end-to-end management
of both third-party and outsourcing risks;

* Introduced a register of third-party non-outsourcing
arrangements. This register complements our
outsourcing register and helps to improve our third-
party risk management by providing a bank-wide view
of all outsourcing and third-party non-outsourcing
arrangements; and

* Enhanced management reporting of third-party
and outsourcing risks to reinforce more effective
management oversight and governance;

* Enhanced our breach reporting process to data leakage
incidents are highlighted, especially when there is public
scrutiny; and

» Highlighted the mandatory reporting for data breaches
in the bank to raise awareness of escalation protocols
for data breaches.
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Maintaining A Sound Risk Culture

A strong risk culture is vital to the long-term sustainability of the
Bank’s business franchise. Specifically, risk culture refers to the
norms, attitudes and behaviours related to risk awareness, risk-
taking and risk management, and controls that shape decisions
on risks . At UOB, our risk culture is based on our values. A
strong risk culture ensures that our decisions and actions are
considered and focused on our stakeholders, and that we are
not distracted by short-term gains.

UOB's Risk Culture Statement

Managing risk is integral to how UOB creates long-term
value for our customers and other stakeholders. Our risk
culture is built on four principles:

» Enforcing robust risk governance;

» Balancing growth with stability;

 Ensuring accountability for all our risk-based decisions and
actions;

* Encouraging awareness, engagement and consistent
behaviour in every employee.

Each of these principles is based on our distinctive set of
values that guides every action we take. In entrenching
our risk culture further across our franchise, we uphold
our commitment to financial safety and soundness; fair
outcomes and appropriate support for our stakeholders;
sustainable and prudent approach to business and
performance based on integrity, ethics and discipline.
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Demonstrating our unique set of values through consistent behaviour

# Frils ]
Enterprising [\ United

Committed

Our risk culture is embedded in our risk management
strategy across the Bank so as to facilitate ongoing
effective discovery, management and mitigation of risks
arising from our business activities and external factors,
and to use capital efficiently to address these risks. Risks
are managed within levels established by the senior
management committees and approved by the Board
and its committees. We have put in place frameworks,
policies, methodologies, tools and processes that help us
to identify, to measure, to monitor and to manage material
risks faced by the Bank. These enables us to focus on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.
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Risk Governance

Our risk frameworks, policies and appetite provide the
principles and guidance for the Bank’s risk management
activities. They guide our key decisions for capital
management, strategic planning and budgeting, and
performance management to ensure that the risk
dimension is appropriately and adequately considered.
Risk reports are submitted regularly to senior management
committees and the Board to keep them apprised of the
Bank’s risk profile.

UOB China has adopted the Basel Framework and
observes capital management measures on commercial
banks by China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (CBIRC). We take a prudent and proactive
approach in navigating the evolving regulatory landscape,
with emphasis on sound risk management principles in
delivering sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount
of capital necessary to support our activities. We review
the ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains
well-capitalised taking into account all material risks.
Stress testing is conducted to determine capital adequacy
under stressed conditions.

UOB China's responsibility for risk management starts with
Board oversight of Bank’s governance structure, which
ensure that the Bank’s business activities are:

» conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

* subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

Our Board is assisted by the Executive Committee (EXCO)
and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) in the
oversight of risks. The Board also reviews the overall risk
appetite and level of risk capital to maintain for the Bank.

Our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has established senior
management committees to assist him in making business
decisions with due consideration for risks and returns.
The main senior management committees involved in
this are the Management Committee (MC), Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO), In-Country Credit Committee
(ICCC), Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC),
Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC), Risk and
Capital Committee (RCC), and Information & Technology
Committee (ITC). These committees also assist the Board
committees in specific risk areas.
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BSR4 | Risk Governance Structure

Management and the senior management committees are
authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business lines
and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is the responsibility of every employee in
the Bank. We strive to instill awareness of the risks created
by their actions and be accountable for the consequences
of those actions in our employees. We have an established
framework to ensure appropriate oversight, accountability
and management of all risk types encountered in the
course of our business.

Our organisational control structure is based on the Three
Lines model as follows:
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First line - The Risk Owner: The business and support units
own and have primary responsibility for implementing and
executing effective controls to manage the risks arising
from their activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and to
highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

Second line - Risk Oversight: The risk and control oversight
functions (i.e. Risk Management and Compliance Function),
and the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) as the Second line, support
the Bank’s strategy of balancing growth with stability by
establishing risk frameworks, policies, appetite and limits
within which the business functions must adhere to comply
with in their operation. They are also responsible for the
independent review and monitoring of the Bank's risk
profile and for highlighting any significant vulnerabilities
and risk issues to the respective senior management
committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions
from business functions ensures the necessary checks and
balances are in place.

Third line - Independent Audit: Internal auditors conduct
risk-based audits covering all aspects of the First and
Second lines to provide independent assurance to the CEO,
the Audit Committee (AC) and the Board, on the adequacy
and effectiveness of our system of risk management and
internal controls. The internal auditor’'s overall opinion
of the internal controls and risk management system is
provided to the AC and the Board annually.

Risk Appetite

UOB China has established a risk appetite framework to
define the amount of risk we are able and willing to take in
pursuit of our business objectives. It ensures that the Bank's
risk profile remains within well-defined and tolerable
boundaries. The framework was formulated based on the
following key criteria:

» alignment to the Bank’s key business strategy;

* relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

» practical, consistent and easy-to-understand metrics for
communication and implementation; and

* analytically-substantiated and measurable metrics.

RPEmSF EX T XETUHRIE L HEMRE, SEERRTER
R, ERIXE. THXE. REERE. BEXR. FEEEHE
RPRMAEENL. HMNEZNENLRERETHTN THER
BRENREERNINEITS, BIXMEZE, HMNVERZE
REIFHBRREHMEFENR, BRIRITRENERITR 7
RNBANBENRERRSERE. XERINEBETLEL
BV AEET, RARIIZEFHEENGIFUNH.

BTN RIFEZRMN R S EERERHBEESHESE
oo RITERR AR EIR XL KL i FRETRY B R
IREFENEFENOEEZRZNE.

BERX

RERTHEONL SR, =, FRAGHNEEFRERIE
I ERFIAEERINEL, IR SITERNIL R AT ER S
BB ER Y. EIREHIREBXIEMRITHITIE AT EH AR
RENVEFRER X LN, TRYET TR mRITAK BT
SMPNEANR, BEARNRHNAFANRESERESEET!

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across
key areas of credit risk, country risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, technology risk and conduct risk. Our
risk-taking approach is focused on businesses which we
understand and whose risk we are well-equipped to manage.
This approach helps us to minimise earnings volatility and
concentration risk, and ensures that our high credit ratings,
strong capital and stable funding base remain intact. This
way, we will remain a steadfast partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB China’s risk appetite framework and risk appetite
are reviewed and approved annually by the Board.
Management monitors and reports the risk profiles and
compliance with the risk appetite to the Board and BRMC
on a regular basis.

Material Risks

UOB China's business strategies, products, customer
profiles and operating environment expose us to a number
of financial and non-financial risks. Identifying and
monitoring key risks are integral to the Bank’'s approach to
risk management. It enables us to make proper assessment
and to mitigate these risks proactively across the Bank. The
table below summarises the key risks that could impact the
achievement of the Bank’s strategic objectives. Details of
these key risks can be found on the following pages.
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Credit Risk
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Market Risk
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Liquidity Risk
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Conduct Risk
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Operational
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The risk of loss arising from failure by a borrower or
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when
they are due.

TR EIEHR THEXZSNHHNEER (FIA0F =,
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ERIRAKBINL, BEFRITKS FEFIRXEL, X2
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The risk of loss from movements in the market rates
or prices (such as changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and
credit spreads) of the underlying asset. It includes
interest rate risk in the banking book which is the
potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due
to changes in interest rates environment.

MR RIERIT L ARG REA SN EUASIER
FIRIGTE R A T AR B = 1B KB BIEAG S5 AR R,

The risk that arises from the Bank's inability to
meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as
they fall due.

TARKRERTFRTIAFTHAIMSBNEA~E
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The risk of improper employee behaviour or
action that results in unfair stakeholder outcomes,
negative impact on market integrity and other
issues that damage the reputation of the Bank.
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The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Such loss may be in the form of
financial loss or other damage, for example, loss of
reputation and public confidence that will impact
the our creditability and/or ability to transact, to
maintain liquidity and/or to obtain new business.
Operational Risk includes banking operations risk,
technology risk, regulatory compliance risk, legal
risk, reputational risk, outsourcing risk, third party
non-outsourcing risk and fraud risk but excludes
strategic and business risk.
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X EE
How risk is managed
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Through the Bank’'s credit risk management
framework, policies, models and limits.

FTHIE T N EEER, BER. XEMEREN
RPEIRENHIT XL ET. FIE T HE= RGN EEESR,
TRITIK A1 X B B BB SR AT XU P PR AU 1T $R1T I 7
KR LEE,

Through the Bank's market risk management
framework, policies, Value-at-Risk (VaR) models
and limits. Interest risk in the banking book is
managed through the Bank's balance sheet risk
management framework and interest rate risk in
the banking book management policies and limits.

KTHIE T A X BRBERAITXRER, 88
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Through the Bank’s balance sheet risk management
framework, liquidity risk management policies, ratios
and limits.
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Through a multi-faceted approach leveraging
on the frameworks, policies and procedures in
operational risk management, internal fraud
management, whistle-blowing, employee
discipline, individual accountability, code of
conduct, remuneration, fair dealing, and anti-
money laundering.
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Through the respective risk management frameworks,
policies, and operational risk management
programmes including Key Risk and Control Self-
Assessments, Key Operational Risk Indicators,
Incident Reporting, Management Risk Awareness,
Outsourcing Risk Assessment, Third Party Non-
Outsourcing Risk Assessment and Scenario
Analysis.
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Material Risk

RBEAD
M=l
Strategic and
Business Risk

BB RS
Model Risk

g, sk
BIEXG
Environmental,
Social and
Governance
Risk

EX
Definition
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Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective
negative impact on earnings, capital or reputation
arising from adverse strategic decisions,
improper implementation of decisions or a lack of
responsiveness to industry, economic or technological
changes. Business risk refers to the adverse impact
on earnings or capital arising from changes in
business parameters such as volumes, margins and
costs.
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This is the risk arising from:

* the use of inappropriate model which cannot
accurately evaluate market prices, or which is
not a mainstream model in the market (such as
pricing models); or

e inaccurately estimating the probability or
magnitude of future losses (such as risk
measurement models) and the use of those
estimates.

iR, HRREENEIEEERXM, BIE ESG R

(BFESRNE) SIRNERANKE, THRE, Rk
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ESG risk refers to financial risks, i.e. credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk, and
non-financial risks, such as reputational damage,
arising from ESG issues, including climate change.
While a key component of ESG risk arises indirectly
from the financial services we provide to our
customers, it can also result directly from our own
operations.
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How risk is managed
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Through overall risk governance framework and
oversight by senior management committees.
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Managed under the respective material risk types
for which there is a quantitative model.
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The different aspects of ESG risk are managed
through the relevant frameworks, policies and
guidelines, including the Environment Risk
Management Framework and Responsible
Financing Policy.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when they are due. It is the single largest risk that we face
in our core business as a commercial bank, arising primarily
from loans and other lending-related commitments to retail,
corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury and capital
market operations and investments also expose the Bank to
counterparty and issuer credit risks.

We adopt a holistic approach towards assessing credit risk
and ensure that managing credit risk is part of an integrated
approach to enterprise risk management. Integral to the
management of credit risk is a framework that clearly
defines policies and processes relating to the identification,
measurement and management of credit risk. We continually
monitor the operating environment to identify emerging risks
and to formulate appropriate mitigating actions.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC support the CEO and board committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures and
serve as executive forums for discussions on all credit-related
matters. The RCC approves the Bank’s credit risk management
policies, and also reviews and assesses the Bank'’s credit
portfolios and credit risk profiles. The ICCC is delegated with
credit discretionary limits by the EXCO to approve credit
facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or counterparties.

The Credit Risk Management Division develops bank-
wide credit policies and guidelines and facilitates business
development within a framework that results in prudent,
consistent and efficient credit risk management. It is
responsible for the reporting, analysis and management
of credit risk to the relevant management committees. The
comprehensive credit risk reports cover business segments
at the overall portfolio level by various dimensions including
industry, product and country.

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

We have established credit policies and processes to
manage credit risk in the following key areas:
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Credit Approval Process

Credit origination and approval functions are segregated
to maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process. Credit approval authority is delegated to
officers based on their experience, seniority and track record.
All credit approval officers are guided by credit policies and
credit acceptance guidelines which are reviewed periodically
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank’s business
strategy and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review
and monitoring, credit stress-testing, limits setting, pricing
and collections. The credit risk models are independently
validated before they are implemented to ensure they are
fit for purpose. The robustness of these rating models is
monitored on an ongoing basis, and all models are subject to
annual reviews conducted by model owners to ascertain that
the chosen risk factors and assumptions continue to remain
relevant for the respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Unlike normal lending risk where the notional amount at risk
can be determined with a high degree of certainty during
the contractual period, counterparty credit risk exposure
fluctuates with market variables. Counterparty credit risk is
measured as the sum of current mark-to-market value and
an appropriate add-on factor for potential future exposure
(PFE). The PFE factor is an estimate of the maximum credit
exposure over the remaining life of the foreign exchange (FX)
/derivative transaction and it is used for limit-setting and
internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing
transactions are typically mitigated through agreements such
as the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA)
Master Agreements, and the National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII) Master Agreements
or Derivatives Trading of China Securities and Futures Market
(SAC) Master Agreements. Such agreements help to minimise
credit exposure by allowing us to offset what we owe to
counterparty against what is due from that counterparty
in the event of a default. We have also established policies
and processes to manage wrong-way risk, i.e. where the
counterparty credit exposure is positively correlated with its
default risk.
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In addition, derivative transactions are cleared through
Central Counterparties, where possible, to reduce
counterparty credit exposure further through multilateral
netting and the daily margining process.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large
exposure or from multiple exposures that are closely
correlated. We manage such risks by setting exposure limits
on borrowers, obligor groups, portfolios, industries and
countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s
eligible capital base. We manage our credit risk exposures
through a robust credit underwriting, structuring and
monitoring process.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is a core component of our credit
portfolio management process. We conduct stress tests to
assess if our capital can withstand credit portfolio losses
resulting from stress scenarios, and their impact on our
profitability and balance sheet quality. Stress tests also help
us to identify the vulnerability of various business units and
enable us to formulate appropriate mitigating measures.

Our internal stress test scenarios consider potential and
plausible macroeconomic and geopolitical events in varying
degrees of likelihood and severity. These are developed in
consultation with relevant business units and approved by
senior management committees.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety of
instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. The Bank would generally not grant
credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided.
All requests for credit facilities are assessed based on the
credit standing, source of repayment and debt servicing
ability of the borrower.

The Bank takes collateral whenever possible to mitigate the
credit risk assumed. The value of the collateral is monitored
periodically and the frequency of valuation depends on
the type, liquidity and volatility of the collateral value.
The collaterals are mostly in the form of properties. Cash,
marketable securities, equipment, inventories and receivables
may also be accepted. We have policies and processes
to monitor collateral concentration. Haircuts that reflect
the underlying nature, quality, volatility and liquidity of the
collaterals would be applied to the market value of collaterals
as appropriate.
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When extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we often take personal guarantees to
secure the moral commitment from the principal shareholders
and directors. Corporate guarantees are often obtained
when the borrower’s creditworthiness is not sufficient to
justify an extension of credit.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

We regularly monitor credit exposures, portfolio performance
and emerging risks that may impact our credit risk profile. The
Board and senior management are updated on credit trends
through internal risk reports. An early alert process has also
been put in place whereby vulnerable accounts are escalated
by the business units to senior management for discussion on
account strategy and remedial actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We closely monitor the delinquency of borrowing accounts,
a key indicator of credit quality. An account is considered
delinquent when payment has not received by the payment due
date. All delinquent accounts, including revolving credit facilities
with limit excesses, are closely monitored and managed through
a disciplined process by officers from business units and risk
management function. Where appropriate, such accounts are
also subject to more frequent credit reviews.

Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower's
ability to repay the credit facilities from their normal source
of income. There is an independent credit review process to
ensure the appropriateness of loan grading and provisioning.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into ‘Pass’ ‘Special
Mention’ or ‘Non-performing’ 'Non-performing’ or impaired
accounts are further sub-divided into ‘Substandard,
‘Doubtful’ or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the guidelines of
CBIRC. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess of the
approval limit for a revolving credit facility) for more than
90 days will automatically be categorised automatically
as '‘Non-performing’ In addition, any account that exhibits
weaknesses which are likely to adversely affect repayment
on existing terms may be categorised as 'Non-performing’.
The accounting definition of impaired and the regulatory
definition of default are generally aligned.

Upgrading and de-classification of a ‘Non-performing’ account
to 'Pass’ or ‘Special Mention' status must be supported by a
credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows and
financial position of the borrower. We must also be satisfied
that once the account is de-classified, the account is unlikely to
be classified again in the near future.
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A credit facility is restructured when a bank grants concessions
(usually non-commercial) to a borrower because of a deterioration
in the financial position of the borrower or the inability of the
borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.

A restructured account is categorised as ‘Non-performing’
and placed on the appropriate classified grade based on our
assessment of the financial condition of the borrower and the
ability of the borrower to repay under the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with the Bank’s impairment
policy and CBIRC guidelines after careful consideration of the
future recovery value including liquidation of collateral of the
non-performing account. A non-performing account is written
off when the prospect of a recovery is considered poor or
when all feasible avenues of recovery have been exhausted.

Special Asset Management

Special Asset Management functions are in place with
independent units that respectively manage the restructuring,
workout and recovery of Bank’s corporate and retail
mortgage non-performing portfolios. The primary objectives
are to nurse non-performing accounts back to financial
health whenever possible for transfer back to business unit
for management; and to maximise recovery of such accounts
that the Bank intends to exit.

AR® (Bh7T)
Outstanding (RMB'm)

40,855 99.41%

136 0.33%

66 0.16%

50 0.12%

127 0.31%

41,098 100%

(For "Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region', please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report.)
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As at 31 December 2022, total non-performing loans
amounted to RMB 242.6 million, representing 0.59 per cent
of the Bank’s total loans portfolio. Non-performing loan
coverage ratio was 424.9 per cent and provision-to-loan ratio
was 2.5 per cent, above the regulatory minimum requirement
of 120.0 per cent and 1.5 per cent respectively.
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Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss from movements in the
market rates or prices (such as changes in interest rates, FX
rates, equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads) of
the underlying asset.

Market risk is governed by the ALCO, which meets monthly
to review and provide directions on market risk matters. The
Market Risk Management and Product Control (MRPC) and
Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) Divisions support
the BRMC, RCC and ALCO with independent assessment of
the market risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk policies,
practices, and the control structure with appropriate delegation
of authority and market risk limits. We employ valuation
methodologies that are in line with sound market practices and
validate valuation and risk models independently. In addition,
the Product/Service Programme process ensures that different
risks, including market risk issues, are identified and adequately
addressed prior to launch.

One of our main objectives in undertaking trading activities is
to provide customer-centric products and services to support
our customers' business and hedging needs. We continually
review and enhance our management of derivatives risks
to ensure that the complexities of the Bank's business are
appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced with targeted
revenue at the Bank and business unit levels and takes into
account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures that the
Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress conditions.
The risk appetite is translated into risk limits that are
delegated to business units. These risk limits are set based on
expected returns that are commensurate with the risks taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure within
the Bank and the Bank’s non-trading FX exposures. The Bank
is mainly exposed to market risk in its trading portfolios that
arises from changes in interest rates, FX rates and commodity
prices from the Bank’s client-driven market making and product
structuring activities as well as trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital.
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The Internal Models Approach is used to measure and to
control trading market risks. The Bank estimates a daily
Expected Shortfall (ES) within a 97.5 per cent confidence
interval over a one-day holding period, using the historical
VaR simulation method, as a control for market risk. This
method assumes observed historical market movements can
be used to imply possible future changes in market rates. ES is
the average of the worst losses in the distribution, assuming
that the losses exceed the specified percentile.

To complement the ES measure, we perform stress and
scenario tests to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event
risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible
extreme losses.

The Bank’s daily ES on 31 December 2022 was RMB 10.47 million.

Trading Backtesting Chart
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For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within
a 99 per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding
period. VaR uses the same loss distribution as ES. The
backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions
are due to model deficiencies or market volatility.
All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with
recommended actions and resolutions.
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Interest Rate Risk In The Banking Book

Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) is defined as the
risk of potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due to
changes in the interest rates environment.

In the course of our core banking activities, the bank strives to
meet customers' demands and preferences for products with
various interest rate structures and maturities. Mismatches in
repricing and other characteristics of assets and liabilities give
rise to sensitivity to interest rate movements. As interest rates
and yield curves change over time, these mismatches may result
in a change in the bank's economic net worth and/or a decline
in earnings. Our primary objective of managing IRRBB is to
protect and to enhance capital or economic net worth through
adequate, stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings
under a broad range of possible economic conditions.

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure including approval
of policies, controls and limits. The BSRM Division supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book. Behavioural models used are independently
validated and governed by approved policy. Management
and mitigation of IRRBB through hedging instruments and
activities are governed by the Bank's IRRBB policies which
are subject to regular review. Monitoring of positions
against mandates, limits and triggers approved by relevant
committees and delegated to relevant business units provide
alerts for timely discussions to control potential risks.

The Bank’s banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified
on a monthly basis using dynamic simulation techniques. The
Bank employs a holistic approach towards balance sheet risk
management, using an in-house enterprise risk management
system to integrate liquidity risk and IRRBB into a single platform
for the Bank’s reporting in a timely manner.

Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods,
currencies and embedded options and interest rate basis.
Embedded options may be in the form of loan prepayment
and time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic Value of
Equity (EVE) sensitivity simulations, we compute the present
value for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in
EVE under different interest rate scenarios. This economic
perspective measures interest rate risks across the full
maturity profile of the balance sheet, including off-balance
sheet items. We estimate the potential effects of interest
rate changes on Net Interest Income (NII) by simulating the
possible future course of interest rates and expected changes
in business activities over time. Mismatches in the longer tenor
will experience greater change in EVE than similar positions
in the shorter tenor while mismatches in the shorter tenor will
have a greater impact on NIl. Interest rate scenarios used in
simulations include the six standard scenarios prescribed by
Basel including positive and negative tilt scenarios.
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We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest
rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests are also
performed to provide early warnings of potential extreme
losses, facilitating the proactive management of interest rate
risks in an environment of rapid financial market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
FX rates and equity prices are managed and controlled under
the market risk framework.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from our inability to
meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as they
fall due. We maintain sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
that addresses known as well as unanticipated cash funding
needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework
of policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These
policies, controls and limits enable us to monitor and to manage
liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources of funds are
available over a range of market conditions. This is done by:

* minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying
the sources and terms of funding, and

* maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable
debt securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank's liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet potential cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is actively managed to ensure a
balance between cost-effectiveness, continued accessibility
to funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the Bank's core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and
trigger points to signal possible contingency situations. Our
Liquidity Ratio (LR), High Quality Liquid Asset Adequacy Ratio
(HQLAAR) and Liquidity Matching Ratio (LMR) are above the
regulatory requirements.
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We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators.
Crisis management processes and various strategies
including funding and communication plans have been
developed to minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.

We have established a Liability Quality Management
Framework for the effective management and monitoring of
its liability. The purpose of the framework is to ensure that
the bank achieves profitability, sufficient liquidity and safe
operating of business. Based on our business strategy, risk
appetite and business' characteristics, we manage our liabilities
with consideration of multiple factors including cost, liability
structure and the source of liability. The board undertakes
the responsibility of the liability quality management and the
management carries out the liability management activities.
We manage the stability, diversity and, structure of the liability
by monitoring and managing a series of ratios, including but
not limited to Core Liability Ratio, Deposit Deviation, Inter-bank
Funding Ratio, Top Ten Depositors, High Quality Liquid Asset
Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR), Liquidity Matching Ratio (LMR),
Liquidity Gap, Liquidity Ratio for major currencies, Net Interest
Margin (NIM), and Economic Value of Equity (EVE). Several ratios
are imposed with internal limits for management purpose. We
ensure that our liabilities are legitimate and authentic. The bank
has a fair and comprehensive FTP mechanism to determine
its liabilities’ cost. Furthermore, business units will proactively
improve funding capability and capacity so as to meet our
business and management needs. We will execute assessment
on market funding capacity under stressed scenarios to make
sure the bank still has the capacity to fund at a fair level when
encountering unfavourable situation in the market.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. Operational risk includes banking operations
risk, technology risk, regulatory compliance risk, legal risk,
reputational risk, outsourcing risk, third party non-outsourcing
risk and fraud risk but excludes strategic and business risk.

Our primary objective is to foster a sound reputation and
operating environment. Operational risk is managed through
a framework of policies and procedures to help business
and support units properly identify, assess, monitor, mitigate
and report their risks. The ORMC meets monthly to provide
oversight of operational risk matters in the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the Three
Lines Model. The Operational Risk Management Division,
as part of the Second line, provides overarching governance
of operational risk through relevant frameworks, policies,
programmes and systems. The division also monitors
operational risk incidents, key risk and control self-assessment
results, outsourcing and third-party non-outsourcing matters,
key operational risk indicator breaches, product and services
programme matters and operational risks identified by the
First Line. Any material risks are then reported to the relevant
senior management committees and the Board to ensure they
are promptly escalated and addressed.

Two key components of the operational risk management
framework are risk identification and control self-assessments.
These are achieved through the Bank-wide implementation of
a set of operational risk programmes. Several risk mitigation
policies and programmes are also in place to maintain a
sound operating environment.

Our business continuity and crisis management programmes
ensure prompt recovery of critical business and support units
should there be unforeseen events. An annual attestation
is provided to the Board on the current state of business
continuity readiness of the Bank.

Our insurance programme covers crime and civil liability, cyber
liability, property damage, terrorism, public liability, as well
as directors’ and officers’ liability. The programme reduces
operational losses through adequate insurance coverage.

We adopt the Basic Indicator Approach for the calculation of
Operational Risk Capital.

The subject-specific key risks that we focus on include but are
not limited to the risks discussed below:
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Technology Risk

Technology risk is defined as any potential adverse outcome,
damage, loss, violation, failure or disruption arising from
the use of or reliance on information and communication
technologies. The governance of technology risk rests
with the ORMC, which facilitates a holistic oversight of
operational risk matters across the Bank. Our technology risk
management framework ensures that technology and cyber
risks are managed in a systematic and consistent manner.
The scope of technology risk management covers many
aspects, including technology asset management, technology
resiliency and the service continuity aspects of business
continuity management, cybersecurity management and
information security management.

Our Technology Risk Management Division, as part of the
Second Line, has governance and oversight of technology
risk management across the Bank. The team works closely
with business and support units, including the technology
and information security teams, to oversee, to review and
to strengthen their current practices in technology risk
management. We adopt a risk-based approach in assessing
and managing technology and cyber risks. The Board,
senior management and the ORMC are briefed regularly on
technology risk appetite and technology risk matters.

Regulatory Compliance Risk

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or damage to the Bank’s reputation
and franchise value that may arise when the Bank fails to
comply with laws, regulations, rules, standards or industry
Codes of Conduct applicable to the bank’s business activities
and operations, or the risk that a change in laws and
regulations can increase the cost of operation and the cost
of capital for the Bank thereby impacting the Bank’s earnings
or returns. To mitigate such risks, we identify, monitor and
manage risk via the Regulatory Compliance Risk Governance
framework, supported by policies, procedures and guidelines.

Sanctions Risk

Sanction risk refers to the risk of potential threats or
vulnerabilities that, if ignored or not properly handled, can lead
to violations of sanctions regulations and negatively affect an
organisation’s reputation and business. The Bank is committed
to complying with the sanctions laws and regulations and do
not engage in any activity involving sanctioned individuals,
entities, countries or territories, subject to the extent permissible
by sanctions laws or if these activities fall outside the Bank's risk
appetite. There is no material change in the Bank’s risk of being
subject to any Sanctions Law.
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Legal Risk

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective
or unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments
in laws and regulations, or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Business and support units work with
both internal and external legal counsel to ensure that legal
risks are effectively managed.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank's business practices,
activities and financial condition. We recognise the impact
of reputational risk and manage the risk through the Bank’s
Reputational Risk Management Framework and Policy, which
sets the guiding principles for risk identification, monitoring,
reporting and mitigation of risk exposure, and communication
with our stakeholders.

Outsourcing Risk

Outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational,
reputational, legal, and compliance impacts arising from
the failure of a service provider to provide the outsourced
service or to comply with legal and regulatory requirements,
or a service provider's breaches of security. We manage
this risk through the Bank’s Outsourcing Risk Management
Framework, policy, procedures and guidelines, supported
by the outsourcing module in the Governance, Risk and
Compliance (GRC) system.

Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk

Third party non-outsourcing risk arises from arrangements
where a third party provides a product or service to us or
our customers. This risk could result in adverse financial,
operational, reputational, legal, and compliance impacts
arising from the failure of a third party to provide the product
or service, or the third party's breaches of security, including
data leakages. We manage this risk through the Third Party
Non-Outsourcing Risk Management Policy and Guidelines,
supported by the GRC system.
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Conduct Risk

Conduct risk is the risk of improper employee behaviour or
action that results in unfair stakeholder outcomes, negative
impact on market integrity and other issues that damage the
reputation of the bank. We manage conduct risk through a
multi-faceted approach leveraging the frameworks, policies
and procedures on operational risk management, internal
fraud management, whistle-blowing, employee discipline,
individual accountability, code of conduct, remuneration,
fair dealing and anti-money laundering. The corporate
governance oversight of conduct risk is provided by the BRMC
and is supported by the ORMC.

Fraud Risk

Fraud is defined as an act with an element to deceive or to
conceal facts, and it is not restricted to the gain of monetary
or material benefits.

We manage fraud risks actively. The corporate governance
oversight of fraud risk is provided by the BRMC at the Board
level and primarily by the ORMC at the senior management
level, supported by Anti-Fraud Working Group set up in
headquarters and branches to drive and co-ordinate Anti-
fraud tasks in accordance with regulatory requirements.

The Integrated Fraud Management (IFM) Division, as part
of the Second Line, drives strategy and governance and
oversees the framework and policy of fraud risk management
across the country, which covers Anti-Fraud tasks as well.
All employees are required to comply with the UOB China
Code of Conduct, which has anti-bribery and anti-corruption
provisions. The UOB China'’s fraud hotline managed by IFM
provides a safe channel to report suspected fraud. IFM
conducts independent fraud investigations and develops
Anti-fraud training and fraud advisories. The division also
works closely with business and support units to strengthen
its practices across the five pillars of prevention, detection,
response, remediation and reporting.
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Environmental Social and Governance
Risk

ESG risk includes both financial risks, i.e. credit risk, market
risk, liquidity risk and operational risk, and non-financial
risks, such as reputation damage, arising from ESG issues
such as climate change. While a key component of ESG risk
arises indirectly from the financial services we provide to our
customers, it can also result directly from our own operations.
ESG governance and control process are put in place to
identify and review ESG factors material to the Bank, and
ensures that sustainability factors are considered in aspects
of our operations (including day-to-day decision-making
processes). The specific risk associated with each factor is
monitored and managed in accordance with the respective
framework, policy or guidelines.

Specific to our wholesale financing and capital market
activities, the Bank ensure that ESG considerations are
integrated into the credit evaluation and approval processes.
To this end, we have incorporated our Responsible Financing
Policy (approved by the RCC) a part of the Bank's Corporate
Credit Policy.

Account officers are required to conduct due diligence on
all new and existing customers during the client onboarding
process and annual credit review. Under our Responsible
Financing Policy, customers are assessed for material ESG
risk, including alignment with the Bank's responsible financing
exclusion list, as well as their capacity for, commitment to
and track record in ESG risk management. Customers in the
ESG-sensitive industries per responsible financing guidelines
are subject to enhanced due diligence with sector-specific
guidelines. All customers are classified based on the level of
ESG risk in their business and are monitored on an ongoing
basis for any adverse ESG-related news. Those with any
known material ESG-related incidents would trigger an
immediate review to address the ESG risks appropriately.
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BRZZF, AEMRMTURSELSIHFRENEL, Hlnh
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1TRYAZHANL 35 B 1R,

ROTEFSNBLERRZR SN RS RITUWSEXNES
B, B THRITERSNBESTS VMR XL S5 XSE
BEH, TKREFENTE, IaXEERERENXET, 7
RIBTHEEE, HERTHNRBEARTLSREK, E£EE
AR FHROBERT, NTORBRCNEENSER, 7
S E WS HASEM LS F R SSERIT AR

Strategic and Business Risk

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative impact
on earnings, capital or reputation arising from adverse strategic
decisions, improper implementation of decisions or a lack of
responsiveness to industry, economic or technological changes.
[t is the risk of not achieving the Bank’s strategic goals.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or
capital arising from changes in business parameters such
as volumes, margins and costs. The sources of business
risk include uncompetitive products or pricing, internal
inefficiencies, and changes in general business conditions
such as market contraction or changes in customers’
expectations and demand. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank'’s short-term business objectives.

The Board of Directors and senior management committees
are responsible for managing risks associated with the Bank's
business. The Executive Committee assist the Board in relation
to the management of strategic and business risks. The CEQ,
supported by senior management committees oversee the
day-to-day management of the Bank and make business
decisions within the Bank's risk appetite. The Bank’s strategy
is then translated into annual financial targets, taking into
account the macroeconomic environment, and cascaded to
specific business for development and implementation.
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1)

Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were

no split or merger activities or other
major corporate developments during
the reporting period.

(3) Noneofthe Bank's directors, supervisors

or top management was penalised by
the regulatory authorities during the
reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

In January 2022, UOB China received RMB?2 billion capital
increase from UOB and completed the capital verification
therewith. As such, UOB China’s registered capital
increased from RMB5.5 billion to RMB7.5 billion.

In February 2022, Chongging Branch was relocated.

In September 2022, Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone Sub-
branch was relocated.

In December 2022, registered address approved by China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Committee Shanghai
Office has been changed to: Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5
(Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15 (Actual
Floor 13), Room 1601 of Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17
(Actual Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual
Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No 116 and No
128, Yincheng Road, Pudong New Area Shanghai 200120

BT

LEHERITX RIS

M6 =. 128 =

B4R : 200120

FBiE : (86) (21) 6061 8888
f&H : (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

PI3E - www.uobchina.com.cn
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EIBTE R X IR IR

M6 5. 128 5102 =
#RZR : 200120

BBIE : (86) (21) 6061 8288
f£H : (86) (21) 68861113
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HRZR : 200040
FBIE : (86) (21) 6080 9366
f2E : (86) (21) 6289 1001
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B4 : 200030
BBiE : (86) (21) 6091 5788
f£H : (86) (21) 6323 3015
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849, 855% 85 408 =

Hik4 : 201306

BBiE : (86) (21) 6061 8176

f2E : (86) (21) 6886 0906

Head Office

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Areq,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Areq,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing'An Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Room 1P01-02, 201-203,
United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jing'An District,
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366
Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xujiahui Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Unit 01-03, 30 Floor,
Grand Gateway Tower 1,
1 Honggiao Road,
Xuhui District,

Shanghai 200030

Tel: (86) (21) 6091 5788
Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3015

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade
Zone Sub-branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 408, No. 8, Gangzheng
Building,

No. 849 and No. 855
Huanhuxiyi Road,

Pudong New District
Shanghai, 201306

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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27 |8 2701, 2707, 2708,
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B84 : 100020

EBIE : (86) (10) 5879 2626
f£H : (86) (10) 8590 6725
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fEE : (86) (28) 86531878
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B84 : 650000
EB1E : (86) (871) 6555 0777
£E : (86) (871) 6361 6191
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FBi%E : (86) (20) 28813688
£H : (86) (20) 8755 8830
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FBIE : (86) (24) 3121 2168
f£E : (86) (24) 3116 2078

Branch Network I

M=

Beijing Branch

Unit 2701, 2707, 2708, 2709, 27 Floor
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8, 9, 10, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No 1 Section 3 Hongxing Road,
Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Kunming Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 2105 and 2106, 21 Floor,
East Tower, MASTER,

No 1 Chongren Street,
Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777
Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Guangzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Suite 3801, TaiKoo Hui Tower 1
385 Tianhe Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510620

Tel: (86) (20) 2881 34688

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch

Unit 06/07, 21 Floor,
Fortune Plaza Tower A,
No 61, Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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I Branch Network
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EB1E : (86) (571) 2809 0666
£H : (86) (571) 8190 9619

Shenzhen Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey 100,

No 5016 Shennan Road East,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688
Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor,

United Overseas Bank Building,
No 19 North Hubin Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208 and 2209,
RongHui Plaza,

Changjiang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 87017070

Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203,

Skyline Plaza,

No 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District,

Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS
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Chongging Branch

26F Unit 08-09,

Tower T4N, Raffles City
Chongging,

No. 2 Changjiang Binjiang Road,
Yuzhong District, Chongging
400011

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Suzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1801, Tower 1,
Jinghope Square,

No 88 Huachi Street,
Suzhou Industrial Park,
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200
Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Zhongshan Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1,2 and 12, 37 Floor,
Zhisan International Financial
Centre,

No 16 Zhongshan San Road,
Zhongshan 528400

Tel: (86) (760) 8770 7666
Fax: (86) (760) 8989 2900

KERTT (PE ) BIRAF

2022 F 12 B 31H
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
31 December 2022
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Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2023) Shen Zi No 60658622_BO1
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited:

(I) Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (hereinafter
referred to as"the Bank"), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2022, the income statement, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited's financial position as at 31 December
2022 and United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises ("ASBEs").

(II) Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China
Standards on Auditing ("CSAs"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited in accordance with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants (the"Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

(1) Responsibilities of the management and
those charged with governance for the
financial statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of

the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and
for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the
management either intends to liquidate United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's
financial reporting process.

(IV) Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with CSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are generally considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Balance Sheet I
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2022 FE Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

104

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement a material uncertainty exists related to events or WsE
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud conditions that may cast significant doubt on United Notes VI 31-12-2022 31-12-2021
or error, design and perform audit procedures Overseas Bank (China) Limited's ability to continue AP B ASSETS:
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence as a going concern. If we conclude that a material AERERRRETTR Cosh and deposit with the Central Bank ! 6,466,567,706 6,204,494,006
nEE Precious metals 3,069,452,064 1,285,539,961
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention EREN T Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 2,754,411,843 3,544.261,854
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in IFHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 4,281,810,991 8,608,835,079
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for the financial statements or, if such disclosures are R ERMAT Financial assets held for trading 4 1,837,337,491 2,197,434,189
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ﬁi\ﬁmii Derivative financial ossets 5 4,490,365,337 4.541,743,724
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the %)\ﬁj’éﬁﬁmﬁi Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 4,096,388,908 1432,434,176
. . BTN Loans and advances to customers 7 40,352,251,714 39,160,105,030
the override of internal control. date of our auditor's report. However, future events or EERSE Other debt investments 8 8,151,488,340 10.436,771,937
conditions may cause United Overseas Bank (China) BEE & Fixed assets 9 33,227,568 32,862,776
(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant Limited to cease to continue as a going concern. ERE Right-of-use assets 10 28,709,172 74,878,636
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that AR Intangible assets 1 65,388,551 73,046,606
. . . . . . IBIEFTISI R Deferred tax assets 12 237,172,755 145,986,701
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the  (5) Evaluate the overall presentation including the oy Other assets 13 1,338,782,906 481,724,649
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness disclosures, structure and content of the financial mE st Total assets 77.203,355,346 78.220,119,324
of internal control. statements, and whether the financial statements fafk: LIABILITIES:
represent the underlying transactions and events in a ELl R EERAEFRFIN  Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 3,511,122,636 1,946,271,700
(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies manner that achieves fair presentation. i Placements from banks and other financial institutions 19 3,294,009,825 12,014,965,224
. . MM G Financial liabilities held for trading 16 9,652,095,856 6,899,748,675
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates TTHESRAGR Derivative financial liabilities 5 4,547,848,726 4,303,446,588
and related disclosures made by the management. We communicate with those charged with governance FHEIME AR Repurchase agreements 17 - 1,190,494,609
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and RUTFR Customer deposits 18 40,925,778,377 41,712,748,009
(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's  timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including RS T A Employee benefits payable 19 167,259,630 155,636,635
. . . L .. L VAT Tax payables 20 166,327,638 71,696,037
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
R AT 555 Bonds payable 21 3,553,115,045 1,720,431,429
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether identify during our audit. Tt s Provisions 22 52,766,476 46,111,016
A £ ik Lease liabilities 23 26,276,656 73,207,755
Hithta & Other liabilities 24 1,387,622,892 629,606,260
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch Chinese Certified Public Accountant:Zhou, Mingjun Eat Total liabilities 67,284,223,757 70.764,363.937
FRE&ENE: EQUITY:
Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Huang, Beiyi SRUREA Paid-up capital 25 7,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
v VN Capital reserve 26 21,593,798 18,674,334
. . Hitzm e s Other comprehensive income 27 23,481,333 68,035,109
Shanghai China 10 March 2023 BRI Surplus reserves 28 222,176,787 171,675,736
—RE B General reserves 29 881,039,371 878,275,849
RO BCFE Unappropriated profit 30 1,270,840,300 819,094,359
FEEN&E ST Total equity 9,919,131,589 7,455,755,387
N ENE ST Total liabilities and equity 77,203,355,346 78,220,119,324

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

[EMINA SRR F AN AW SIRFRAVAKE
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

AMSIRRAUTALEE:

The financial statements have been signed by:

TERREFRITE. BF: U8 i

President and CEQ, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan

BEVEE : K i
CFO: Brian Zhu Xuan
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Statement of Changes in Equity I

FrEENmEr&

2022 FE Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

I Income Statement

>\
FiER
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

3£ LEE HBEQTR Hgels BRATR —RRNES RIEFIE &it
Notes VI 2022 2021 Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Unappropriated Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves profit
—. Bl 1.0perating income income
FEUWN Interest income 31 2,189,160,581 2,092,226,597 REFYREN Opening balance 5,500,000,000 18,674,334 68,035,109 171,675,736 878,275,849 819,094,359 7,455,755,387
p 9
FlEZH Interest expense 31 (1,002,169,920) (980,043,356) FER BT ST i\ﬁovements during  2,000,000,000 2,919464  (44,553,776) 50,501,051 2,763,522 451,745,941 2,463,376,202
e year
1Sy Net int ti 31 1,186,990,661 1,111,283,241 . .
TR o merestincome (—) ZAEWES (i) Total _ - - (44,553,776) - - 505,010,514 460,456,738
FEBERBEMAN Fee and commission income 32 231,938,574 212,060,158 i comprehensive
income
EETES F issi 32 51,203,567 47,999,761 L
FoAKFERE e and commission expense ¢ ) ( ) (Z) FFEEBA (i) Injection of 2,000,000,000 2,919,464 - - - - 2,002,919,464
FHRERASEFRAN Net fee and commission income 32 180,735,007 164,060,397 ML %A funds by and
distribution of
Al G Investment income 33 386,484,206 41,163,804 funds to the
investor
YN BT EhH S Gain/(l fi h in fai | 34 250,334,720 148,369,007
BAMHEZ A ain/(loss) from changes in fair value ¢ ) 1. BBZ A AFF 1. Share-based - 2,919,464 ; ; ; - 2919464
L5 las Foreign exchange gain 35 272,673,500 130,196,787 BENGENEE  payment
B ERT Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets (15,713) 151,917 2. FREERNA E, Ctﬁpi_w' in{ection 2,000,000,000 - - - - - 2,000,000,000
y the investor
bl Otherincome 36 2,028,553 2,316,243 () FEEHE (i) Profit - - . 50501051 2,763,522 (53,264,573) -
=L NS Total operating income 1,778,561,494 1,597,541,396 appropriation
e . REBERATR . jati - - - 50,501,051 - 50,501,051 -
Z. Bl 2. Operating expenses L RRERR luf\pplﬁgorzggrt\l/ce)z to ( )
Bz R0 Tax and surcharges (15,892,617) (15,614,473) 2.42E—fBRIE 2. Appropriation to - ; ; - 2763522 (2,763,522) ;
W R BB General and administrative expenses 37 (1,092,045,518) (1,048,954,297) & general reserves
- a . . SREN Closing bal 7,500,000,000 21,593,798 23,481,333 222,176,787 1,039,371 1,270,840, ,919,131,
ERRERE Credit impairment losses 38 (29,890,702) (132,363,908) HEERRR osing balance 6,78 881,039,3 0,840,300 9,919,131,589
Bl HAT i 1,137,828, 196,932,
WZH&ET Total operating expenses (1,137,828,837) (1,196,932,678) 2021 £E5 Year ended 31 December 2021
=. EAFE 3. Operating profit 640,732,657 400,608,718 ARMIT Expressed in RMB Yuan
pIR=I 2N ON Add: Non-operating income 134,854 138,753 LA A BENE  Hivesuss BEATE —RRBES R4 ERFE ait
e ) Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Unappropriated Total
B BT Less: Non-operating expenses (466,823) (2,326,955) capital reserve comprehensive  reserves reserves profit
income
M. BiEiFEESm 4. Profit before income taxes 640,400,688 398,420,516
WEFEHREN Opening balance 5,500,000,000 17,337,049 2,191,618 138,385,488 849,267,920 548,490,064 7,055,672,139
B PiSHiERA Less: Income tax expenses 39 (135,390,174) (65,518,044)
REEHLNEE  Movements during - 1,337,285 65,843,491 33,290,248 29,007,929 270,604,295 400,083,248
. 2FE 5. Net profit 505,010,514 332,902,472 the year
7N HthR SRt E % 6. Other comprehensive income, net of tax (=) ZEaWlEe () Total _ - - 65,843,491 - - 332,902,472 398,745,963
Zn comprehensive
e se - L ) income
(—) FREEDEHIRFMEME (1) Other comprehensive income that will not be
Sl reclassified to profit or loss (Z) FrE&ERAN (i) Injection of funds - 1,337,285 - - - - 1,337,285
MR L&A by and distribution
Bl BB ERRNRAANEZ  Change in the fair value of the Bank’ s own credit 27 (216,484) - of funds to the
of) risks investor
(Z) BREHLHIGmAEMER (2) Other comprehensive income that may be 1. BB fIENFT 1. Share-based - 1,337,285 - - - - 1,337,285
s reclassified to profit or loss BENGNEE  payment
UAANMEITEREZEIT AN  Change in the fair value of debt instruments at 27 (17,894,412) 38,550,600 (=) MiEmE  (iDprofit N N - 33,290,248 29,007,929 (62,298,177) -
Hih B UWRmES TAE®RE  fair value through other comprehensive income appropriation
RRMNEE 1 IER&ERAT 1. Appropriation to - - - 33,290,248 - (33,290,248) -
UAANETEEETEN Credit impairment losses of debt instruments at 27 (26,442,880) 27,292,891 surplus reserves
HAGSWENRSTRRKRE  fair value through other comprehensive income 2.12E—RER&E 2. Appropriation to - - - - 29,007,929 (29,007,929) -
ERMEES % general reserves
. ZENE R 7. Total comprehensive income 460,456,738 398,745,963 EEFRSER Closing balance 5,500,000,000 18,674,334 68,035,109 171,675,736 878,275,849 819,094,359 7,455,755,387

JEPIIT S 1RZMTE H9 250 55 IR 2 BI2A PG B8 57
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I Statement of Cash Flows

MERER

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

F3ES
Notes VI 2022 2021
—., ZEED (FER)/ FENMERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FRARREBITRIUER DR Net decrease in due from the Central Bank 456,990,512 674,300,706
TEREL RIS R D& Net decrease in due from banks and other - 22,320,169
financial institutions
FHESRRLDE Net decrease in placements with banks and other 597,541,374 1,455,220,768
financial institutions
U fEsR AR R Bt ERaATE  Net increase in customer deposits and due to 3,117,275,075 5,583,605,731
RIS IR banks and other financial institutions
IERIF B, FEBRAEMIME  Cash received from interest, service fee and 2,247,041,401 2,074,655,244
commission
AR ZENMFENESRAST S Net decrease in financial assets at fair value 519,893,495 -
DER through profit or loss
R HEt 525 EmE XN E Cash received from other operating activities 2,162,227 634,448,579
ZREFRMES TN Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 6,940,904,084 10,444,551,197
FREN SRS INER Net increase in due from banks and other 140,292,481 -
financial institutions
VNG il Net decrease in placements from banks and 9,631,921,024 636,276,831
other financial institutions
RGN TSI AR Net increase in loans and advances to customers 1,193,782,358 3,012,966,812
TRNFE. FEBRAEMIME Payments made for interest, service fee and 920,233,986 952,474,637
commission
FHARMINARIZANIME  Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 722,082,930 648,216,975
FAT R A 2R Cash paid for all types of taxes 220,653,501 211,789,012
N ZENMIZENERIAF S Netincrease in financial assets at fair value - 743,690,638
hn&m through profit or loss
FHHEMSEEEEXNNE Cash paid for other operating activities 2,039,896,689 274,859,508
FEEIEREINT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating 14,868,862,969 6,480,274,413
activities
FEES (ER)/ FEMBER  Net cash flows from operating activities 40 (7,927,958,885) 3,964,276,784

5

JEMTIT 55 1R 2T £ 79 80 55 1R R YA I B 57
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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[LipE AN
Notes VI 2022 2021
Z. BRAEMEENNERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
W ERAEREINIE Cash received from maturity of investments 8,578,222,000 5,222,486,000
S IR AN EIEII& Cash received from investment income 537,784,163 427,972,164
WEBETEARMEMKEIAE~/E]  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other 410,112 255,133
& long term assets
SRR E RN T Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 9,116,416,275 5,650,713,297
KARMZAMIE Cash paid for investment 5,680,000,000 5,090,000,000
WEEEARMEMKEA%t Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long 23,570,659 41,548,882
B term assets
RFRFDIE R E T Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 5,703,570,659 5,131,548,882
AR A I TR AN Net cash flows from investing activities 3,412,845,616 519,164,415
=, EXFEHTE [(ER)NIERE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
R 8 B EI I Cash proceeds from investments by others 2,000,000,000 -
RITHRHREINME Cash received from debt securities issuance 4,020,577,310 709,187,530
ERFEDIERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 6,020,577,310 709,187,530
RR RSN E Cash repayments for debts 2,240,000,000 1,000,000,000
DERF. FIESNEMFEZGH  Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit 48,000,000 97,300,000
M and interest expenses
S HMEERENEXNNE Cash paid to other financing activities 60,480,227 67,160,791
ERFEIMES RNt Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 2,348,480,227 1,164,460,791
ERENFEE /(ER) WIEAR  Net cash flows from financing activities 3,672,097,083 (455,273,261)
255
O, CETHNUERNESFNYH 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 396,232,912 79,490,697
A AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
. WERMEZNY4E (FZL )/ 18I0 5. NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 40 (446,783,274) 4,107,658,635
i EQUIVALENTS
mn: FENMERREENIRT Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 14,687,795,608  10,580,136,973
N ERNERASENIRT 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE 41 14,241,012,334  14,687,795,608

YEAR

JEHII S IR E 2N 55 1R 2 BIAE e AF 57

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

— AENEIE

RERTT (FE) BRAE UTEF A8 8 “KERT (h
E) 7 ) BREAERITERAR (LUTEF “KERIT ) EF
e N\RHME LB RERITo

SPERTRELEEEEZRS (UTHENF “RERER" ) T
2007 £ 4 B 5 B#tAE, KERITIR (FEARHEMESNERTT
BIEEAFD) (CUTER “ (BEEKGD 7 ) « (FEARHXNE
SNERITEEEAILEAND (UTEMR “ (EEAN) ") 8
BXME, ELETEFRRERIRHAENIINERERIT —AE
®17 (PE) BRARE, HBEPERANAERIT LEDT.
ERPIT RNDIT TMRTT. BT #2117 LD
Thibidiixis UTET “BRPEXSTRZIT ) SHlH
RERTT (FE) B2,

ERBERFERRESMAN SR FATIE, NHHEERN:
BO308H2310000018, H A LEFT I HTHERER
ZEMENELEAELRE £#—HsEHKLERN:
913100006694147236, F Mt ARE (L£&) BHESZIA
WXERIMEE 116 5. 128 SKERITRKE=RE. AR 501 E (£
REE) « =8B (EfFR+ZR) « +REE (ER+H=B) «
+AREB 1601 E (Lhr+mE) « +tB (EF+ERE) « +A
B EEfR+7E) « T8 (EFr+tB) « Z+2 (SE25+/\R) »
AMEARNART 75 1Z27T.

RIBARABEWHBRONE, FRARLEPRATIESRR. &
RNEETBNEEEXEENARENIIMNOLSMARTDIL S,
2008 £ 18 2 HAERARSRHFER DTS HE.

BE2022F 128318, BRELBRINKERT (RE) &
RABSITIHN, FARBEELBE. LR RN TN BT BER.
VORR. KB ML BR. AN BEASHUNRIIT 13 RNT
& 3 K470

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

I. General Information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred
to as The Bank or UOB (China)) is a wholly foreign-owned
bank established in Shanghai, People's Republic of China

(PRQ), by United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation),
and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of
Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-
funded Banks (the Implementation), China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Committee (CBIRC) granted
approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai by converting
its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen Branch,
Guangzhou Branch, Xiamen Branch, Chengdu Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing'an sub-branch (collectively
known as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting
financial transaction from the CBIRC (Institution Code:
B0O308H231000001) and obtained its business licence
(Uniform Social Credit Code: 913100006694147236) from
Shanghai Administration for Industry and Commerce. The
registered address is Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual
Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor
13), Room 1601 of Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual
Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual Floor
17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No.116 and 128 Yincheng
Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB 7.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the
Bank are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as
approved by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of
business covnversion from former PRC branches to UOB
(China) was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2022, besides the Head Office
incorporated in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 13 branches
and three sub-branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging, Suzhou, Kunming and
Zhongshan.

. ZmiHEht

KW SiRFEBREAREINEMEE (UTET “WEER” )
MAE (Bl HEN —RAEN) LUKk ESMH & EITH
BN, ZAEmR. BRUNRAEMEXAE (B ‘&
WHEN” ) 4R,

KM SIRERUSFSEE ENEMT IR,

RBIANM SRR, BRELESRMITAN, HURERENIHNER
Mo FFEMREERE, WIZRBXME RN EES,

= EEE =T EN AR
AMSREGEEURIHENNER, HR. REHRRT EA

8] 2022 12 B 31 BN SRR UK 2022 FEMEZERRMN
WEmE,

M. EEZRITEENZIHET

AT 2022 FEMSIREFAEM SE BRETIIKREL =it
ENFFIENEE R TBRMSIHE TR,

1. 2itHAE

EARNSTEEXAAREE, ISFE1R1HEE12A
31 Hik

2. BRI

EATEK A AR AU SIREFARABOEMIIAAR
Mo BRERRIRIAN, BMUARMITARMIRT.

3. MERIMEENY)
NE, BEAARNNEFNTURAURENBTFZNER;

NEENY), BEAQBFENHARE. Roptta. 5FER
AEMETOME. NMEZHXLR/DITRE,

Il.Preparation Basis of the Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises-Basic Standard and the specific standards,
the implementation guidance, interpretations and other
relevant provisions issued and revised subsequently by the
Ministry of Finance of PRC (MOF) (collectively referred to as
"Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises").

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for some financial instruments. If the
assets are impaired, corresponding provisions should be
recognised in accordance with relevant standards.

lll. Statement of Compliance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial
position of the Bank as of 31 December 2022 and the
financial performance and the cash flows for the year then
ended.

IV. Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

The 2022 financial statements of the Bank have been
prepared in accordance with the following significant
accounting policies and estimates under ASBEs.

(1) Accounting year
The accounting year of the Bank is a calendar year, i.e.,
from 1 January to 31 December of each year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank's functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all
amounts are stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Bank's cash on hand and bank
deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand;
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

4. Shm Ak SFSMRITE

(4) Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency
translation

KRB FRENIND R B R 2T E AR EE, . S

The Bank translates foreign currency transactions into

its functional currency.

MBI R BIEVRTRIAR, RARX S &4 BRAECEEIN DR
B RIEMAMN T EM FREHHRRE, S FIHERMEmE
RARFAGRBRIPCERITE, At FENEEMEm M4 E
TEED, FETSMERSRAUEKHNR=EXNIITE]
B EMETIRREREARRNRULIEZ b, i+ N ZER
Do MU RAITTENIMIEE RIS, MRAXZLEH
HBNEC RIS, AR EHIEKA I T 8. LA RN EITEN
SNRAESHMTE, REAANERTE B BN CRITE, mitt of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, with

R E SRR S T B R A\ Y RN e e the exception of those relating to foreign currency
et borrowings specifically for the construction and

acquisition of qualifying assets, which are capitalised
in accordance with the guidance for capitalisation
of borrowing costs. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in
the functional currency using the spot exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions. Monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the spot exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Differences arising on settlement or translation

5. BIEZH™

BE R RESHAEXNEFH @ RAIERNETQE, BEME
BEIS P ST BRI A F LI SRE R A XNELZH, 7
BIEBIAFR, ITANBE R R, HAREHIARERE D6
IKE N E; B0, TERERSTHN SRR .

B B R A HITHIA T B B B E H - HI A BRI

are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions, and the amount denominated in
the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is measured. The resulting exchange

differences are recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income depending on the nature of the

non-monetary items.

MR ABKFLEE BEIE B AT FE Al RS HI AT A £ 1A
HEARFZm AN EMSZ H . BE ST B R B FRTY
FIHR S REERFNERASEFS I ARERRFRIEENT:

(5) Fixed assets

A fixed asset is recognised only when the economic
benefits associated with the asset will probably
flow into the Bank and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Subsequent expenditures incurred
for a fixed asset that meets the recognition criteria
shall be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the
carrying amount of the component of the fixed asset
that is replaced shall be derecognised. Otherwise, such
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
relevant taxes and any directly attributable expenditure
for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method. The useful lives, estimated residual
value rates and annual depreciation rates of each
category of the fixed assets are as follows:

fER&E T ETRESR FTIAEK

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value rate Annual depreciation rate

EHIgE Motor vehicles 54 - 20%
VAYNL 3= Office equipment 3-10 & - 10%-33%

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

FRAEDTEBEFERLT, MEER-HNERSFN. it #k
BT EETER, BEHITRE,

6. EEIE

R TREMAREMG TR HAE, SR RN R EHETL
ETEXHUNEMEXTERS.

EEIREATE IERRSHENEE AR TR SHE
fthEAE

7. TWHEF

TR RIS EE XA FHERATERAEAT, BEMZA
BEBSA] SEtiT E RS F LAIA, H LU A #ITHIGIT &,

TR AP IRRERE NN QB HREFF IR E RS,
AR E RN R QBRI FH = HRBF N ER S R HE
LR EF,

ERBWERAR R R, EERERRN 8 &,
BREGARNTR R, THERERNRAEL EMH, &

REEVDTFEFEEERT, WEAFBRNELANERS
an M PREHTT A EITE R, W ERHITRE,

8. KHAfF IR A

KEFF B AR A E LA H.

KR Z ARIE S RSN S 52 i HA PR A RS R Y B € i s HA
MR, HF I H.

MRKEAMER 2R AT B TR ELUERITTHRIE R A0, K s kb
T B BIRER N E BN S ER .

The Bank reviews the useful life and estimated residual
value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method
applied at least at each year end, and make adjustments
if necessary.

(6) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined
according to the actual expenditure for the construction,
including all necessary construction expenditures
incurred during the construction period and other
relevant expenditures.

An item of construction in progress is transferred to
fixed assets, intangible assets or other long term assets
when the asset is ready for its intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognised only when it
is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Bank and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
measured initially at cost.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined
according to the period over which it is expected to
generate economic benefits for the Bank. An intangible
asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life
when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic
benefits for the Bank.

The Bank's intangible assets comprise computer
software with 8 years' useful lives.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised
using the straight-line method over its useful life. For an
intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Bank reviews
the useful life and amortisation method at least at each
year end and makes adjustment if necessary.

(8) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised by the
straight-line method.

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of lease period and
useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is
charged to profit or loss if the expenditure does not
bring benefits to subsequent accounting periods.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

o

TRTH, BEEA—INEVHNERES, FRREMBAIR
ERIAGRIANEETENER.

FHR TSN, RIEBASRES (HERME~H—D,
F—ARMUERATHN—5 ), BIMEKRF MR~ RHRKRAT
PURRSH:

(1) WREN R A= B IR & ;

(2) ®#BTWNERMAFNTRENNF, HE “LFMYL
TEETMEGRERNNERESMZTAE=FX
55; #E () KR T ERAEFPAEN ELFRER
REPeFIRE, B (b) RAER RSB RBHEERES
REFFIANR ENLFPRER XM, EBFT X ZE
T Nl

MREMAGHNREIERET. BEEIER, NWWERA AT
LKL MRMBEMAGRE—FENAUERL/LF 2
FRZFRHNSZ—EMAGEN, HMBARNFR/LF 2
WSRBEIERE, MR EE R E LR EIAR G GATHIA
MR, ZET SRR,

EMA AL EZEMES, B 5 BT HITHIANZ LA
EMANLERERET, BRIERREBFRNIE, EENK
BITIRGIMENARABWBMIR A EME X5H, BiEE
NERBEIANHEZH EREHIE .
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(9) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

The Bank recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Bank's balance sheet) when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset have expired;

(ii) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through" arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised using trade date
accounting. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. The trade date is the date that the
Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.

SEA DA

AT ERE = FEFEIANRBRATD R BB EmMA™
NI SREMNERA~NEERNEREFEDLN: UHERA
AHENTRES. UAANETERRZHMITARMEGE
HHERE. UQANETEEETSITASPRENER
Him, YENEARARRTER MRS SERE, 75t
PRERFMIMBEXERMAHITED K,

WNFURANEITEREETHIT AN SBRENERER, BX
R ERERIT NG, HtERNERMABXZ55E
Bt ANEeHIAE T,

EREFHESITERRATHDE:
LR AR It BRI 55 TR

EMAFRNFETIFREN, DEAURRASITENETR
#e EEZEREFNISKRAZRUBRERNERENE
1T ZEMEFNERFRAE, EHEARFENATRE
AN EEMURBANEESTABRMBOF ST XS
RRZR = R SEFR AR A IAF SN, HERIEHIA BELE0R
BEFERFISERL, TS5,

URAGMHETTE BRZ AR ML SR i1 5 TRRKE

EMAFRNFETIFREN, PEAURANETERRR
It NEMS SR ERIE . ARAREERZERAFAL
SEAZRRURNERANSRENBFXUHESHATNE
15 ZEMEBFNERFRAE, EHEARFENATRE
AN EEMURBAEESTABEMBOF ST XS
RO = SR B SERR A SEBIAFI B IR BRFISURN. RERK
NCREGHINI SRS, ERAANEZITANEMER
B, HEMAFAREBHINN, ZEHTAEMESWENER
SRR MEMGE W H, TTA SR,

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Bank's business model for
managing them: financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. All affected financial assets will be reclassified
only if the Bank changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in profit
or loss, and transaction costs relating to other financial
assets are included in the initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

The Bank measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met: the financial
asset is held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Bank measures debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met: the financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling; the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income is recognised using the effective interest method.
The interest income, impairment losses and foreign
exchange revaluation are recognised in profit or loss.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets other than the above financial assets
measured at amortised cost and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Except for financial guarantee contracts, commitments
to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate and
financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies, the Bank's
financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. For
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in
profit or loss, and transaction costs relating to financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost are included in the
initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading (including
derivatives that are liabilities) and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities held for trading (including deriva-
tive instruments attributable to financial liabilities) are
subsequently measured at fair value. All changes in fair
value of such financial liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except for the derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge. Financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are sub-
sequently measured at fair value and gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except for the gains or losses
arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are pre-
sented in other comprehensive income. If gains or losses
arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are present-
ed in other comprehensive income will lead to or expand
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank will in-
clude all the changes in fair value (including the amount
affected by changes in the Bank's own credit risk) of such
financial liabilities in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Impairment of financial instruments

The financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, loan commitments and financial guarantee are
subject to credit loss provisioning which is made on an
expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component, the Bank
applies the simplified approach to recognise a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs.

Except for financial assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which apply the simplified
approach as mentioned above, the Bank assesses
whether the credit risk has significantly increased since
the initial recognition at each balance sheet date. If the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition (stage 1), the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs and the interest
income is calculated according to the carrying amount
and the effective interest rate; if the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but are not
credit-impaired (stage 2), the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs and the interest
income is calculated according to the carrying amount
and the effective interest rate; if such financial assets are
credit-impaired after initial recognition (stage 3), the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs and the interest income is calculated according to
the amortised cost and the effective interest rate.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether
the credit risk on the relevant financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition. The Bank
compares the risk of a default occurring of a single
financial instrument or a group of financial instruments
with similar credit risk characteristics as at the balance
sheet date with the risk of a default as at the date of
initial recognition, to determine changes in the risk of
a default occurring of the financial instrument in the
expected lifetime. If the credit risk of financial instruments
is low at the balance sheet date, the Bank assumes that
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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The Bank measures expected credit losses on a financial
instrument in a way that reflects: (a) an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes; (b) the time
value of money; and (c) reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the balance sheet date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

When there are one or more events that have adverse
effects on the expected future cash flows of a financial
asset, the financial asset is credit impaired.

When the Bank no longer reasonably expects to collect
part or all of the contractual cash flows, the Bank writes

down the carrying amount of the financial assets.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts; and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that
require a payment to be made by the issuer to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are measured, on initial recognition, at fair value. After
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher
of: (i) the amount of provisions for ECLs at the balance
sheet date, and (ii) the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the guidance for revenue recognition.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly in profit or loss, except for
those related to the hedge accounting.
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Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Bank retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, it either (i) derecognises the financial asset and
recognises the assets and liabilities created in the transfer
when it has not retained control of the asset; or (ii)
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Bank's continuing involvement, in which case, the
Bank also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred financial asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the financial
asset and the guarantee amount. The guarantee amount
is the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank
could be required to repay.

(10) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
("Repos") continue to be recognised, and are recorded
as financial investments. The corresponding obligation is
included in "Repurchase agreements". Securities and bills
purchased under agreements to re-sell ("Reverse repos")
are not recognised. The receivables are recorded as
"Reverse repurchase financial assets', as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is
recognised as interest expense or interest income in the
profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method.
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(11) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals
acquired by the Bank for trading purposes are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair
value are recorded in the profit or loss.

(12) Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets other than the impairment of
financial assets and deferred tax assets is determined in
the following way:

The Bank assesses at the balance sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired;
if any indication exists that an asset may be impaired,
the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asset
and performs impairment testing; Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
at each year end, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that the asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. The Bank estimates the recoverable amount on an
individual basis.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group
is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount. The reduction in the
carrying amount is treated as an impairment loss and
recognised in profit or loss. A provision for impairment
loss of the asset is recognised accordingly.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it cannot be
reversed in the subsequent accounting period.

(13) Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency shall be
recognised as a provision when all of the following
conditions are satisfied, except for contingent
considerations and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination not involving entities under
common control:

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;
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(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
from the Bank will be required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation, taking into account factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money as a whole. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date. Where there is clear evidence
that the carrying amount of a provision does not reflect
the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted
to the current best estimate.

(14) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

"Interest income" and "interest expense" item in the
income statement of the Bank are the interest income
and expense calculated by using the effective interest
method on financial assets at amortised cost, financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation
of the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and in the allocation and recognition of the
interest income or interest expense in profit or loss over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through
the expected life of a financial asset or financial liability
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
expected credit losses. The calculation includes all
amounts paid or received by the Bank that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, the Bank calculates the interest income
by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial asset to the
amortised cost of a financial asset that is a purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial asset.
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For those financial assets that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets but
subsequently have become credit-impaired financial
assets, the Bank calculates the interest income by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a
diverse range of services it provides to its customers. For
those services that are provided over a period of time, fee
and commission income is accrued in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service agreement. For other
services, fee and commission income is recognised when
the transactions are completed.

(15) Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of one or more identified assets for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Bank recognises lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

If the contract contains both leased and non-leased
parts, the Bank shall not split the leased assets of the
means of transportation category, and will merge the
leased parts and the related non-leased parts into leases
respectively. In addition to the above categories of leased
assets, the Bank apportioned the contract in proportion
to the relative price of each part.

Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank
recognises a right-of-use asset. Right-of-use assets are
initially measured at cost. The cost of the right-of-use
asset comprises: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date of the lease less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct cost
incurred; and (iv) an estimate of costs incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
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underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease. The Bank remeasures the
lease liability for the revision to the lease payments and
adjusts the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
accordingly. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis subsequently by the Bank. If the Bank
is reasonably certain that the ownership of the underlying
asset will be transferred to the Bank at the end of the
lease term, the Bank depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the
asset. Otherwise, the Bank depreciates the assets from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the asset or the end of the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank measures
the lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank
exercising the option to terminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the
Bank uses the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. The
Bank calculates the interest expenses of the lease liability
in each period during the lease term using the constant
periodic rate of interest, and recognises such interest
expenses in profit or loss, except those in the costs of the
related asset as required. Variable lease payments that
are not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, except those
in the costs of the related asset as required.

After the commencement date of the lease, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the Bank remeasures the lease liability at the present
value of revised lease payments upon a change in any of
the following: in-substance fixed payments, the amounts
expected to be payable under residual value guarantees,
the index or rate used to determine lease payments, or the
assessment or exercise of the purchase option, the renewal
option or the option to terminate the lease.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank considers a lease that, at the commencement
date of the lease, has a lease term of 12 months or
less, and does not contains any purchase option as a
short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of the
individual underlying asset is not more than USD5000
when it is new as a lease of low-value assets. If the Bank
subleases an asset, or expects to sublease an asset, the
head lease does not qualify as a lease of a low-value
asset. The Bank does not recognise the right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for buildings and vehicles short-term
leases and low-value assets. The Bank recognises lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets in the costs of the related asset or profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(16) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can
receive government subsidies and meet the conditions
attached to government subsidies. If government
subsidies are monetary assets, they shall be measured
in the light of the amount received or receivable. If a
government subsidy is a non-monetary asset, it shall be
measured at its fair value; and if its fair value cannot
be obtained in a reliable way, it shall be measured at
a nominal amount. Government subsidies associated
with income which are used as compensation for future
costs, expenses or losses are recognised as deferred
expenditures and shall be recorded in future profits and
losses to reverse the related costs where the relevant
costs, expenses or losses are recognised. Government
subsidies associated with income which are used to
compensate the related costs, expenses or losses incurred
by the Bank are directly included in current profit and loss
or used to reverse the related costs. Government subsidies
associated with assets shall set off the book value of
related assets or be recognised as deferred expenditures.
Government subsidies related to assets are recognised
as deferred expenditures to be distributed over the useful
lives of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the
profit or loss by stages in a reasonable and systematic
manner. Government subsidies measured in nominal
amounts, shall be directly recognised in current profits
and losses. Where relevant assets are sold, transferred,
scraped or damaged before the end of their lives,
balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures shall be
recognised in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

17. BRI 13
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LI SRR RN R TIRMARSH, MIRTFRING
TENAANEITE. RFRIUAFTITNG, ERTFEERR
AMETNEXER, BMEMERATR; TRFFHARNR
SHREME L SFZAATITNG, EFFHRS A AR
xH, UNATINGE TRHENSEMGITT AEM, REBRT
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(17) Share-based payment

The Bank's share-based compensation programme is
measured as an equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. Where the equity instruments granted vest
immediately, the Bank recognises the expense in full at
the fair value on grant date with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve. Where the equity instruments granted
vest upon the fulfilment of service period or performance
conditions, the Bank makes a best estimate at the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, at
each financial reporting date of the vesting period, and
recognise the expense pertaining to the current period at
the fair value on grant date with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve. The fair values of the equity instruments
are estimated using the Trinomial valuation methodology.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified. In additional, an expense is
recognised for any modification which increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled share-based award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Bank or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award.
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(18) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration or
compensation given by the Bank in exchange for
service rendered by employees or for the termination of
employment, including short-term employee benefits,
post-employment benefits, termination benefits and
other long-term benefits. Benefits given by the Bank to
an employee's spouse, children and dependents, family
members of deceased employees and other beneficiaries
are also employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and
other short-term employee benefits are accrued in the
period in which services have been rendered by the
employees of the Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)

Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement
insurance plan, and unemployment insurance plan
administered by the local government, and the
contribution is recognised to profit or loss of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of
employees' salary, and recognises the cost in the profit or
loss accordingly.

(19) Deferred income tox

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes at the balance sheet
date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each financial reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
financial reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
when fulfilling of the following conditions: A legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; The deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are related to the income tax levied
on the same taxpayer by the same tax administrative
department or are related to different taxpayers but,
within each future period of reversal of important deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the taxpayers
involved intend to settle current tax assets and current tax
liabilities or acquire assets and liquidate liabilities at the
same time.

(20) Fair value measurement

At each financial reporting date, the Bank measures its
derivatives, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, other debt investments and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at
fair value, the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance
sheet date that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Bank continues to make assessment as to
whether there is transfer between different levels of the
fair value hierarchy.

(21) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships
do not constitute related parties.

(22) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon
together with related undertakings to return such assets
to customers are excluded from the financial statements.

(23) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Bank. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provisions will be made.

(24) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities
at the balance sheet date. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements which
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Bank's business model for managing
financial assets. When determining the business model,
the Bank considers the ways to evaluate and report the
performance of financial assets to key management, to
manage the risks affecting the performance of financial
assets, and to determine the remuneration. When
assessing whether the objective is to collect contractual
cash flows, the Bank needs to analyse and judge the
reason, timing, frequency and value of the sale before the
maturity date of the financial assets.

Characteristics of the contractual cash flows

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics, and the judgements on whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
including when assessing the modification of the time
value of money, the judgement on whether there is any
significant difference from the benchmark cash flow
and whether the fair value of the prepayment features
is insignificant for financial assets with prepayment
features, etc.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the future accounting periods, are
described below.
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Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to assess
the impairment of financial instruments. The Bank is
required to perform significant judgement and estimation
and take into account all reasonable and supportable
information, including forward-looking information. When
making such judgements and estimates, the Bank infers
the expected changes in the debtor's credit risk based
on historical repayment data combined with economic
policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and
other factors. The different estimates may impact the
impairment assessment, and the provision for impairment
may also not be representative of the actual impairment
loss in the future.

Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets

The Bank assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for all non-current assets other than financial
assets at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indication exists.
Other non-current assets other than financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indications
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
the present value of the future cash flows expected to
be derived from it. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the assets. When the calculations of the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from an asset or asset group are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or asset group and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments
with reference to a quoted market price in an active
market or, if there is no active market, using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques include the use
of recent arm's length transactions, observable prices
for similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis
using risk-adjusted interest rates, and commonly used
market pricing models. Whenever possible these models
use observable market inputs and data including, for
example, interest rate yield curves, foreign currency rates
and option volatilities. The results of using valuation
techniques are calibrated against the industry practice
and observable current market transactions in the same
or similar instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
instruments for the transferred transactions entered into,
and make relevant accounting treatments accordingly.

Lessee's incremental borrowing rate

The Bank measures the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate. According to the economic
environment, the Bank takes the observable interest rate
as the reference basis for determining the incremental
borrowing rate, then adjusts the observable interest rate
based on its own circumstances, underlying assets, lease
terms and amounts of lease liabilities to determine the
applicable incremental borrowing rate.
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. BT

KRB AFETERINERRIIRIOT

EEH
Value-added tax (VAT)

WA RIS
Urban maintenance and
construction tax

BB

Educational surcharge

BALPRISH
Corporate income tax

RINZD AFRISH

Withholding Individual Income
tax

V. Taxation

follows:

RIAEUINIZ 13% Bf 6% BB SR SHIAL, FHZINRR HEA A RN B0 AR SE W E ST SUE ERL.
VAT payable is the difference between VAT output and deductible VAT input for the current period. VAT
output has been calculated by applying a rate of 13 per cent or six per cent to the taxable value.

REFRBMBOREETBT 7% 1156

It is levied at seven per cent on the turnover taxes paid.

REFRBMBOTREERRDI 3% 15

It is levied at three per cent on the turnover taxes paid.

FNAATHFRISEREY 25% 1150

It is levied at 25 per cent on the taxable profit.

AREZARBERNTE, BEANTRGEINE N AMSEH.
In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on
salaries paid to its employees.

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

The Bank is mainly subject to the following taxes and the
respective tax rates of the Bank for the current year are as

7~ MSIRREETAMNE

1. M RAFRPRIBITRI

VI. Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

2022 2021

EEE Cash on hand

FRARBITEEEES - AR

Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB

1,008,691 2,039,982

2,506,775,632 2,884,753,084

FRAPREBITEAEESS - 4D Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - 488,694,872 616,431,269
foreign currency

FRPREITINCXCES S Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 48,723,337 -

FRARREITHE MR Other deposits with the Central Bank 3,420,630,756 2,700,435,288

MZiHFI S Interest receivable 1,406,092 1,479,297

B R REBITRIUR B ES Less: allowance for impairment losses (671,674) (644,914)

&1t Total

6,466,567,706 6,204,494,006

RIEFEARBITNERME, TRBBITIE—ELLEHAER
EEETHEARET. F2022F 128318, xAAART
KSR EETHTFLL AN 7.5% (202112 A 31 H: 8%)
B 6% (2021 F12 B 31 B: 9%).

M 2015 F10 B2, RIBPEARBITINEXRNE, A2F%KA
SNCRPLESES, SRR EATRECENTN—ELLFIS
FINCREESES, 2022 F 9 B 28 Bife, INCRIRESEZHIE
FEEBIER 0% JAEEE 20%.

F2022%12A31B& 2021512 A 31 B, AAREEFHF
FERITRIANINER—, EARFR 12 NARTHRERRKITER
BEE.

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the
People's Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant
regulations issued by it. As at 31 December 2022, statutory
deposit reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at
7.5 per cent (31 December 2021: eight per cent) and six per
cent (31 December 2021: nine per cent) of qualified RMB
deposits and foreign currency deposits from customers
respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the
PBOC monthly in accordance with relevant regulations
since October 2015. The foreign exchange risk reserve
is calculated at a certain percentage of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding
month. The foreign exchange risk reserve ratio increased
from zero per cent to 20 per cent since 28 September 2022.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Bank
included all deposit with the Central Bank in Stage |, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).
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2. FIRENL TR

(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

2022 2021

FRIERRITE R EMERT  Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions
L]

1,488,021,028 1,417,603,620

FRURSMRITEY Due from overseas banks 1,274,590,295 2,139,513,851
RZIHFIR Interest receivable 110,194 353
/Nt Sub-total 2,762,721,517 3,557,117,824
R ERENREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (8,309,674) (12,855,970)
FREEER Net amount of due from banks and other financial 2,754,411,843 3,544,261,854

institutions

FRENEEEENEATIREREXL [2010145 5 (FERE
ZXTFEHXR < RITUERIEER XNPLEIRES| > B9@51) B9
EMitRAIER XEREES UNIRR 12 MR ERBRKITR
BURE S,

F2022F 12831 HX2021F 12 A 31 H, ZREELEHF

TREIMLRBEANI R —, 1RERK 12 DA RTHERRKITER
BEES,

3. iFh AR

Impairment provisions for due from banks and other
financial institutions represented the country risk reserve
provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 "Circular of
the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and
Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of
the Banking Financial Institutions" issued by CBIRC, and the
provision for impairment measured according to 12-month
expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Bank
included all due from banks and other financial institutions
in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on
expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions
2022 2021

R EHIERERITEL REME  Placements with domestic banks and other financial

ROAIAE institutions
R (8 HIRSMRIT R Placements with overseas banks
RzitFIE Interest receivable

/Nt Sub-total

R RRENREEE

Less: allowance for impairment losses

B EFE

financial institutions

Net amount of placements with banks and other

1,975,465,141 6,054,302,937

2,306,686,600 2,561,523,000

17,118,645 11,663,341
4,299,270,386 8,627,489,278

(17,459,395) (18,654,199)
4,281,810,991 8,608,835,079

FREREEENRQBRIEREL [2010]45 5 (hERE
ZXTFEHER GRITILERIAERXEEES) FER) B
TE Mt A E R KPR E & U RIRER 12 N AT E BRI
RAREES.

F20225%12831B&R 2021 %12 B 31 B, xABRKLEIF

REMNNE—, ZEKRE 12 NAAFHRERRKITERE
)E%O

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Impairment provisions for placements represented the
country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa
[2010] No. 45 "Circular of the China Banking Regulatory
Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines
for Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial
Institutions" issued by CBIRC, and the provision for
impairment measured according to 12-month expected
credit loss.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Bank
included all placements with banks and other financial
institutions in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses
based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months
(12-month ECL).

4. RZMERAT

(4) Financial assets held for trading

2022 2021
UARMNEITEBEETRHITAN
LR SR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
FREBITERENER Central Bank bills and government bonds 854,373,700 772,023,120
BRI RTT IR Policy bank bonds 280,748,530 1,059,577,750
el fR Corporate bonds 190,240,560 136,479,810
5 BT R Local treasury bonds 10,048,770 -
[EINZc:] Negotiable certificates of deposit - 198,590,600
AL ERITHR Commercial bank bonds 471,392,980 -
MNitF 8 Interest receivable 30,532,951 30,762,909
ait Total 1,837,337,491 2,197,434,189

5 7TEEmMTIA

TEERITRE S~ 6, ENEIURTEPMKITEIS

Bt SRS REREMTENNE, BEXE Bt
FREERE. ARBM. BGEHN. BEEHNICERRMES,
FAREANTTESMTAESETREY. =8, BN,

TESRTANS XETEEHMKNE Bt ZFNaR
NE, FIAFARRERGENED. ZEENERMKRT &I
BEIRARTNITE SR TANKREOMmIFAANE,

AR EAERREENMEEENERTANTESRMT A,

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another "underlying" financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
"underlying" financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate.
The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
swaps, options and futures.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at
the end of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging
instruments.
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FABRTFAEFAGRAMFANTTESRMITANT:

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank's derivative

instruments are as follows:

6. ENREERIZE™ (6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

2022 2021
BRZWNFHE: Clossified by counter-party:
BN Financial institutions 4,097,430,000 1,432,091,000
RMitF 8 Interest receivable 609,889 413,153
BUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,650,981) (69,977)
ait Total 4,096,388,908 1,432,434,176
FEEIRmI K Clossified by type of pledged assets:
5355 Bonds 4,097,430,000 1,432,091,000
RZiFIE Interest receivable 609,889 413,153
B OREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,650,981) (69,977)
Hit Total 4,096,388,908 1,432,434,176

F2022%12831BK2021%F 12831 H, AARKLEX
NEEERABFMNNER—, HERK 12 MEATHEHARKT

BREES,

7. RIEIRRAI R
VAR NS Ba sl

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Bank
included all reverse repurchase financial assets in Stage |,
and measured the impairment losses based on expected

credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(7) Loans and advances to customers

(7.1) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and

corporate

2022

2021

2022 2021
AFME Fair Value
BXEE % ff BYEH #i= faf
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities Notional Assets Liabilities
Amount
SNCITETA: Foreign exchange
contracts:
mHAELY Forward 11,960,636,230 139,073,831 183,620,933  11,839,604,341 173,886,669 223,208,451
HHAEL Swaps 195,883,926,169 1,916,354,954  2,070,114,617 234,785740,892  1,723,924,057  1,697,919,391
ALY Options 31,178,008,869 288,035,992 211,483,135  19,690,815,679 168,398,208 167,560,334
It Sub-total 239,022,571,268  2,343,464,777  2,465,218,685 266,316,160,912  2,066,208,934  2,088,688,176
FIEGTETA: Interest rate contracts:
=AY Swaps 205,223,694,107 865,770,067 867,001,612 207,500,634,604  1,369,704,794  1,359,902,742
It Sub-total 205,223,694,107 865,770,067 867,001,612 207,500,634,604  1,369,704,794  1,359,902,742
BRNEEBTIA:  Commodity contracts:
IHAELY Swaps 3,505,836,561 96,445,053 95,739,664 8,112,500,694 376,568,008 375,331,551
ALY Options 61,288,480 2,408,588 2,408,572
Nay Sub-total 3,567,125,041 98,853,641 98,148,236 8,112,500,694 376,568,008 375,331,551
BREMEEBNTA:  Equity contracts:
HAELY Options 485,125,475 127,428 148,756 353,015,412 416,203 433,453
it Sub-total 485,125,475 127,428 148,756 353,015,412 416,203 433,453
RERITETA: oS metd
mHAELY Forwards 22,864,249,257 1,043,472,626 927,693,238  18,925,150,995 641,014,969 428,974,340
IHHAELY Swaps 7,932,222,061 129,821,593 151,898,075  10,556,889,956 85,079,444 44,925,011
&L Options - - - 34,037,749 15,919 15,921
H5EY Futures 1,851,631,714 8,099,222 37,166,605 789,187,270 2,735,453 5,175,394
it Sub-total 32,648,103,032 1,181,393,441  1,116,757,918  30,305,265,970 728,845,785 479,090,666
ERTETA: Credit derivatives:
RIS Swaps 55,762,766 755,983 573,519 - - -
N Sub-total 55,762,766 755,983 573,519 - - -
Ait Total 481,002,381,689  4,490,365,337  4,547,848,726 512,587,577,502  4,541,743,724  4,303,446,588

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

=

N AGIRRAER:
EREZIB
Hith

RE A

NI

WU MET 2 EHT oI NHEA
SFEWE BRI TR RN
UARNEITTEEETHIT AL
it B9 R METTRAN LR

&if

RzitFE

RIRERMER DI
B BERRE RS
RIBERRMERKENME

PR R A AT BB R BT RAI

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

Retail loans and advances:
Mortgages
Others

Sub-total

Corporate loans and advances:
Loans
Trade finance

Sub-total

Loans and advances to customers at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Loans and advances to customers at fair value
through profit or loss

Total

Interest receivable

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

4,226,952,758
534,164

4,846,248,142
759,808

4,227,486,922

4,847,007,950

19,372,438,648

14,755,048,609

18,407,383,395

12,704,846,050

34,127,487,257

31,112,229,445

696,434,857

2,561,239,526

2,099,061,672

1,396,034,236

41,150,470,708

39,916,511,157

231,565,899

208,821,950

41,382,036,607

40,125,333,107

(1,029,784,893)

(965,228,077)

40,352,251,714

39,160,105,030

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

137



138

I Notes to Financial Statements

%S5 MTE

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

72 Tk %h (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
industry
2022
TKERE 4]
Amount Percentage
a4 Manufacturing 10,153,064,203 25%
Bl Real estates 8,594,829,608 21%
HERAMEBE Wholesale and retail 6,427,561,324 16%
RiBIEH. CEMBBELL Transportation, storage and post 2,662,316,600 6%
THEMESARS W Leasing and commercial services 2,338,700,051 6%
EREHPENESRARSL  Telecommunication, software and information manage- 2,250,934,397 5%
ment services
SR Finance 1,172,467,731 3%
EBEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,148,436,984 3%
RMEOE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 930,466,901 2%
fﬁ\iﬂﬁ\%ﬁ’—:\&ﬂ(iyﬁﬁﬁi\ﬁi Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 528,541,197 1%
N
BERREFTRER Health, social security and social welfare 289,979,367 1%
L Construction 279,721,106 1%
BRI ARRS W Scientific research and technical services 98,310,000 -
EERRS.BEMEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 46,670,000 -
Ha Education 984,317 -
NAE Retail loan 4,227,486,922 10%
‘it Total 41,150,470,708 100%
RZHFIE Interest receivable 231,565,899

ERAFRER B
B ERUREES
BB BRIKE HME

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

41,382,036,607

(1,029,784,893)

40,352,251,714

2021
TREREN 44|
Amount Percentage
BBl Real estates 9,864,293,248 25%
HAEMSEL Wholesale and retail 8,176,231,053 20%
HE Manufacturing 7,480,104,680 19%
BT CAEFIRRELL Transportation, storage and post 2,251,512,258 6%
Bl N4 Finance 1,864,687,594 5%
FEEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,208,102,264 3%
FAEMESRS W Leasing and commercial services 1,031,760,236 3%
EEEH. REMEREARRSL Telecommunication, software and information 1,022,884,651 2%
management services
RMBOE A Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 700,206,742 2%
il Construction 571,003,408 1%
BB, #0. S RKEFFIMER Y Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 455,998,256 1%
B4, AR FRENT SRR Health, social security and social welfare 379,718,817 1%
BF AR ARRSS W Scientific research and technical services 61,000,000 -
Ha Education 2,000,000 -
PAGTR Retail loan 4,847,007,950 12%
‘it Total 39,916,511,157 100%
RZitFI & Interest receivable 208,821,950
RGN BIREE Total amount of loans and advances 40,125,333,107
B ARUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (965,228,077)

RGN ERIKE 1B

Net value of loans and advances to customers

39,160,105,030

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

7.3 WX N (7.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region

2022 2021
il Northeast 743,909,523 592,574,132
R East 17,834,612,983 17,381,224,792
k=] North 7,963,219,174 7,805,262,173
ek Centrall 1,750,995,723 2,138,159,691
=t South 8,646,007,118 5,703,995,669
i3] Southwest 2,528,261,065 3,837,574,057
[iE|d Northwest 532,885,807 349,880,467
BIMIX Overseas 1,150,579,315 2,107,840,176
&it Total 41,150,470,708 39,916,511,157
MNitF 8 Interest receivable 231,565,899 208,821,950
V35 Gt SO ST Total amount of loans and advances 41,382,036,607 40,125,333,107

e BEORE RS
RIRGTRAERIKE 11ME

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

(1,029,784,893)

(965,228,077)

40,352,251,714

39,160,105,030
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74 #BIBERARD B (74) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral 7.6 BRI ER (7.6) Loan impairment provision
orguarantee 2022 2021 R ASEIT BN AR R EESIREBAAT 12 ™A The allowances for loans and advances measured at amortised
= e AT L =m\tg EITENIEI RS £ ; _
R Unsecured loans 8,934,179 658 7.243.408.307 THRERRARNENFERTEERIRA DR, BEESH cost olre measured according to the 12-month expected
T : redi nd lifetime ex| redit loss r ively. Th
FRIEETR Guaranteed loans 8,560,289,400 7,996,640,037 LEIF credit loss a _d e,t ee pe?t?d c.ed t loss respectively. The
) movement of impairment provisions is as follows:
MHB R ETRR Loans with collaterals 23,656,001,650 24,676,462,813
Hrh: Of which: 2022
HIRETFR Secured by mortgages 18,840,151,008 19,029,865,181 E—MER BB BE=MER
. Stage | Stage ll Stage Il
FURETRR Secured by pledges 4,815,850,642 5,646,597,632
. REK12418 BAOGEESE  BIOEFESHERE ait
ait Total 41,150,470,708 39,916,511,157 FRERIE IR FRHAE iRk EERESSEE
Rz 3+ £ Interest receivable 231,565,899 208,821,950 lip“;g?:g '—'fet'mecfggﬁclgig Cfed't'gi':‘%?:f:: Totall
BIREIRARRR S5 Total amount of loans and advances 41,382,036,607 40,125,333,107 credit loss assets (Lifetime
expected credit
B BRREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,029,784,893) (965,228,077) P loss)
RREFRARRIKENME Net value of loans and advances to customers 40,352,251,714 39,160,105,030 2022 %18 1 55 At 1 January 2022 801,848,305 75,054,473 88,325,299 965,228,077
Opening balance on 1 January
2022 1 B 1 BREESRSE 2022
A HpAS L
7.5 RBETR (7.5) Overdue Loan 2022 - ENBIMER Transfer to Stage |l (1,097,507) 1,097,507 - -
- EBNE=ME Transfer to Stage Il (13,987,923) - 13,987,923 -
BHH1RE BHRENXETE WHA1EE3F A 3 & AEn
N - — T fer to St | 7,316,165 7,316,165 - -
90 % &1%) & 3%) BLE ait ¥ [o|E—NER ransfer to Stage ( )
Overdue 1day  Over 90 days to Overdue1 Overdue 3 years AEIHRSHEM Charge/(reverse) during the year 3,930,828 (11,283,161) 67,210,471 59,858,138
to 90 days 1year (inclusive) year to 3 years above Total
(inclusive) Recovery of loans and advances
W B AR EEIZ previously written off - - 320,349 320,349
FRIEETRR Guaranteed loans - 117,147,694 - - 117,147,694 CELE) Exchange rate difference - - 4,378,329 4,378,329
HHBRI BTN Loans with collaterals 38,191,501 10,378,000 64,243,816 8,197,920 121,011,237 FERRE Closing balance 798,009,868 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,029,784,893
Hep: Of which:
HERETER Secured by mortgages 514,606 10,378,000 54,477,571 8,197,920 73,568,097 2021
BRI Secured by pledges 37,676,895 - 9,766,245 - 47,443,140 E—ME EZMER FB=MER
Stage | Stage Il Stage lll
‘it Total 38,191,501 127,525,694 64,243,816 8,197,920 238,158,931 KK 1248 AN BAEEHIE A &5t
ZRF ZRT [=]
FRER(S FRIRR FEAERIRL ERRESRME
12-month  Lifetime expected  Credit-impaired Total
2021 expected credit loss financial
credit loss assets (Lifetime
BH1XE  BEIXE1E  BMI1EE3E A 3 & expected Cjed'g
90 X (B15) (83%F) Uk ait 0ss
Overdue 1day  Over 90 days to Overdue1 Overdue 3 years 202141 81 B&%H At 1January 2021 633,874,579 165,762,745 70,747,875 870,385,199
to 90 days 1year (inclusive) year to 3 years above Total
(inclusive) Opening balance on 1 January
2021 1 B 1 HRFEAE 2021
RIEETRR Guaranteed loans - - 41,570,926 - 41,570,926 CEEANE Transfer to Stage Il (21,295,801) 21,295,801 ) )
MHBIRYIETRR Loans with collaterals 222,825 4,477,571 76,862,910 838,661 82,401,967 -BNE=ME Transfer to Stage Il (13,715) - 13,715 -
) e _ _
Eoh: Of which: HEIE—MEL Transfer to Stage | 71,766,207 (71,766,207)
AEITRSH(D Charge/(reverse) during the year 117,517,035 (40,237,866) 18,572,204 95,851,373
HIRETRR Secured by mortgages 222,825 4,477,571 67,807,487 838,661 73,346,544 Recovery of loans and advances
N AR FEEIZE i i - -
R Secured by pledges ) ) 9,055,423 ) 9,055,423 U Bl LA 5 FE EAZ S previously written off 2,505 2,505
P3| Exchange rate difference - - (1,011,000) (1,011,000)
=y’ Total 222,825 4,477,571 118,433,836 838,661 123,972,893 . .
il ota FERRE Closing balance 801,848,305 75,054,473 88,325,299 965,228,077
BHATR R e A E A 28R 1 R ERYETRR. Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related

interests are overdue for one day or above.
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RN ETE BT NEMERS IR R TRk
EIRRANE 12 P BT ERIRAR R BN ST E AR 25|
IR, FIRIE:

The allowance for loans and advances at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured according to the
12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit
loss respectively. The movement of impairment provisions is
as follows:

E—ER BIMER HEEMER

Stage | Stage ll Stage Il
FEK121H BAGFEHE BIOFSHERE ait

FRERIS AR K TRERE AL ERRESRES~
12-month Lifetime expected Credit-impaired Total

expected credit loss financial assets

credit loss (Lifetime expected

credit loss)
2022% 128 31H At 31 December 2022 711,725 204,933 - 916,658
2021512831 H At 31 December 2021 26,917,763 9,484,937 - 36,402,700

8. HthiAuR & (8) Other debt investments

2022 2021

RIRITERIB R E R Central Bank bills and government bonds

3,234,988,930 6,087,558,170

Bonds issued by policy banks and commercial

BERIERIT B RITHES:  banks

kR Corporate bonds
ER1ZE:] Negotiable certificate of deposits
HAh G R 28 Total amount of other debt investments

RHFIR Accrued interest

HithEsu R WENE Net value of other debt investments

2,178,516,610 2,220,682,062

250,204,560 20,061,920

2,407,915,513 1,979,906,386

8,071,625,613 10,308,208,538

79,862,727 128,563,399

8,151,488,340 10,436,771,937

F2022%F 128 318K 2021512831 H, xREELHHE
HEAIRBMNNER—, IRERFK 12 PBRTBERRKITE
BB,

REFEMEEREPHIANFEESTAART 6451237 T

(2021 F: AR 51475157 75) , ELXRIEHIAR ME ML
BERENSBERENFESFNART 30,081,585 5T (2021
F: AR 86,536 7T) -

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
Bank included all other debt investments in Stage |, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

The amount of gains recognised in other comprehensive
income in 2022 was RMB6,451,237 (2021: RMB51,475,157),
and the amount transferred from other comprehensive
income to the current profit was RMB30,081,585 (2021:
RMB8,536).

9. BEIEE™ (9) Fixed assets
2022
TRgE NRIgE &it
Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
R Cost:
FXRE Opening balance 2,482,091 110,607,223 113,089,314
AFIE N Additions 413,343 11,452,783 11,866,126
Transfer from construction in progress (Notes
KREFRTIREN (KEEA. 132)  VI13.2) - 229,442 229,442
EERE Disposals (368,213) (3,934,564) (4,302,777)
FRRE Closing balance 2,527,221 118,354,884 120,882,105
Kit#rIR: Accumulated depreciation:
FERE Opening balance 1,750,480 78,476,058 80,226,538
KEITHR Depreciation provided during the year 210,143 11,210,134 11,420,277
ERE Disposals (368,173) (3,624,105) (3,992,278)
FRREN Closing balance 1,592,450 86,062,087 87,654,537
KEMNE Carrying amount
FR At end of year 934,771 32,292,797 33,227,568
F1) At beginning of year 731,611 32,131,165 32,862,776
2021
TRgE DRIgE &it
Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
B Cost:
FERE Opening balance 2,553,823 104,975,571 107,529,394
ZREEHEIN Additions 409,046 15,176,515 15,585,561
Transfer from construction in progress (Note
REFTETIRZEN (MR 13.2)  VI13.2) - 75,929 75,929
RELE Disposals (480,778) (9,620,792) (10,101,570)
FRREN Closing balance 2,482,091 110,607,223 113,089,314
KitirIA: Accumulated depreciation:
FERE Opening balance 2,074,404 75,525,444 77,599,848
KEITHR Depreciation provided during the year 156,854 12,176,269 12,333,123
TEXE Disposals (480,778) (9,225,655) (9,706,433)
FRREN Closing balance 1,750,480 78,476,058 80,226,538
KEMNE Carrying amount
FR At end of year 731,611 32,131,165 32,862,776
F9) At beginning of year 479,419 29,450,127 29,929,546
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10. fERIEF

(10) Right-of-use assets

M. TR AR

(11) Intangible assets

2022 2021
BigE Software
R Cost:
FXRE Opening balance 249,036,644 235,618,418
TEWE Additions 2,444,601 6,910,127
EREIREEAN Transfer from construction in progress (Notes
(FEER 13.2) VI13.2) 12,213,618 6,894,436
RELE Disposal - (386,337)
FRREN Closing balance 263,694,863 249,036,644
RITHH: Accumulated amortisation:
FYRE Opening balance 175,990,038 154,048,004
RETHE Amortisation provided during the year 22,316,274 22,328,371
EERE Disposals - (386,337)
FRRE Closing balance 198,306,312 175,990,038
WENE Carrying amount 65,388,551 73,046,606

2022
EERRERY BWIA ait
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
% Cost:
FYIREN Opening balance 185,987,885 3,912,206 189,900,091
AEFIZIN Additions 9,100,757 768,308 9,869,065
AEFFHLD Disposals (139,825,319) (681,026) (140,506,345)
FRRE Closing balance 55,263,323 3,999,488 59,262,811
KitirIA: Accumulated depreciation:
FHREN Opening balance 113,079,236 1,942,219 115,021,455
Depreciation provided
AEIHE during the year 54,678,197 1,360,332 56,038,529
wEFHD Disposals (139,825,319) (681,026) (140,506,345)
FERREN Closing balance 27,932,114 2,621,525 30,553,639
EMNE Carrying amount
FXR At end of year 27,331,209 1,377,963 28,709,172
F9) At beginning of year 72,908,649 1,969,987 74,878,636
2021
EENERY EmIA Ait
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
B Cost:
EERT Opening balance 185,122,554 5,857,870 190,980,424
AEIEM Additions 17,730,139 637,399 18,367,538
ERL Disposals (16,864,808) (2,583,063) (19,447,871)
FRREN Closing balance 185,987,885 3,912,206 189,900,091
KitirIA: Accumulated depreciation:
FEHREN Opening balance 66,096,869 2,808,852 68,905,721
AEHE Depreciation provided
during the year 63,847,175 1,716,430 65,563,605
ARERD Disposals (16,864,808) (2,583,063) (19,447,871)
FRREN Closing balance 113,079,236 1,942,219 115,021,455
WE N E Carrying amount
FR At end of year 72,908,649 1,969,987 74,878,636
F4) At beginning of year 119,025,685 3,049,018 122,074,703
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12, BREPRIS IR A

(12) Deferred tax assets

2022
BIEFRSHIRF Deferred tax assets FENRE FETNRE  FEHNAEENE FERRT
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance

13. HfthZ = (13) Other assets
3
Notes 2022 2021
KHEAREER Long-term deferred expenses 13.1 47,460,179 56,048,880
TETE Construction in process 132 390,063 11,760,356
ELARIUR Other receivables 13.3 1,272,960,442 343,166,464
FRMNBHI R S B AR Input VAT to be verified and VAT retained 17,972,222 70,748,949
aif Total 1,338,782,906 481,724,649
131 KERRFPEZR R (13.1) Long-term deferred expenses
2022
L ONE T {52 Hth ait
Leaseholdimprovement Others Total
FEYRT Opening balance 52,381,224 3,667,656 56,048,880
ARG Additions 3,104,365 2,398,404 5,502,769
Transfer from construction in progress
KREFRTIREN (HEEA. 13.2)  (Notes VI13.2) 2,582,509 - 2,582,509
rERE Disposal (157,823) - (157,823)
D Amortisation (14,354,825) (2,161,331) (16,516,156)
FERRE Closing balance 43,555,450 3,904,729 47,460,179
2021
L ONE T {52 Hth &it
Leasehold improvement Others Total
FIRE Opening balance 60,098,179 6,346,663 66,444,842
RGN Additions 1,786,435 - 1,786,435
Transfer from construction in progress
REFRTIREN (MER. 132)  (Note VI13.2) 2,441,839 - 2,441,839
RERE Disposal (15,490) - (15,490)
ARERETH Amortisation (11,929,739) (2,679,007) (14,608,746)
FRRE Closing balance 52,381,224 3,667,656 56,048,880

to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses
SRR BN IR on loan and placement 177,930,069 31,621,134 - 209,551,203
Allowance for impairment losses
HihEmA=REES on other financial assets 22,723,914 (7,301,559) - 15,422,355
it ta i Provisions 11,527,754 1,663,865 - 13,191,619
Unrealised profit or loss of
UAAMETEREZTEITAE  financial assets at fair value
R EWEIEREEFRIAREI  through other comprehensive
bk income (13,154,865) - 5,964,804 (7,190,061)
Changes in the fair value of the
B B AN Bank's own credit risks - - 72,161 72,161
Changes in fair value of
TEEMTARANERNRGE  derivatives (58,742,734) 43,167,972 - (15,574,762)
HtAaMEITEEETET  Changes in fair value of other
NHBERENERTAEN AN  financial instruments at fair value
BT xh through profit or loss (1,515,980) 19,477,256 - 17,961,276
Accrued employee salary and
TR T TANREE bonus 4,861,257 1,663,205 - 6,524,462
it Accrued liabilities 5,991,797 (4,086,094) - 1,905,703
Htty Others (3,634,511) (1,056,690) - (4,691,201)
&it Total 145,986,701 85,149,089 6,036,965 237,172,755
2021
BRI Deferred tax assets FENR AET Nz FETNFIEENE FERRT
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses on
IR RAR I ENR R R loan and placement 195,556,193 (17,626,124) - 177,930,069
Allowance for impairment losses on
Hith &Rz = REES other financial assets 5,015,845 17,708,069 - 22,723,914
it Provisions 12,515,309 (987,555) - 11,527,754
UAANETERETHITAE  Unrealised profit or loss of financial
LR BRI SRR IR assets at fair value through other
Eizbnd comprehensive income (304,665) - (12,850,200) (13,154,865)
TESMTANANETMHE  Changes in fair value of derivatives (2,340,821) (56,401,913) - (58,742,734)
HitARMEITEREETENT Changes in fair value of other
NSHRENSRMTRENARMN  financial instruments at fair value
EZh through profit or loss (19,056,928) 17,540,948 - (1,515,980)
Accrued employee salary and
FRER T T A M & bonus 4,607,512 253,745 - 4,861,257
St Accrued liabilities 8,127,591 (2,135,794) - 5,991,797
Hith Others (1,181,465) (2,453,046) - (3.634,511)
ait Total 202,938,571 (44,101,670) (12,850,200) 145,986,701
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Hth WU FIR BRI 12 N AT BIRA RN ZLEEATEAEA  The impairment provisions are measured according to the
WKDFITHERREES TN T 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss.
The movement of allowance for impairment losses is as follows:

132 HEIRE (13.2) Construction in progress
2022 2021
FYIREN Opening balance 11,760,356 4,070,698
AFIBIN Additions 3,757,163 17,266,759
BAEER™ (MHER. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Notes VI. 9) (229,442) (75,929)
BALHEEE (MbER. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Notes VI. 11) (12,213,618) (6,894,436)
Transfer to long-term deferred expenses Notes VI.
BANKEAERER (MEER. 131 131 (2,582,509) (2,441,839)
BENEEER Transfer to administrative expenses (101,887) (164,897)
FRREN Closing balance 390,063 11,760,356
13.3 EAthRz IR (13.3) Other receivables
2022 2021
VL9 &= A NE/I Other receivable and prepayments 1,277,366,086 344,804,494
REES Allowance for impairment losses (4,405,644) (1,638,030)
FRREN Closing balance 1,272,960,442 343,166,464

NEREMNFMTIECAENRFEEREESRT., NIWRE R Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in the process of
clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is as follows:

TREIMKES D AT F R4 T -

N Aging 2022 2021
1EMA Within 1 year 1,247,319,424 310,075,733
128 1-2 years 1,727,845 4,911,725
2-34F 2-3 years 3,836,291 8,787,623
3FEUE More than 3 years 24,482,526 21,029,413
/Nt Sub-total 1,277,366,086 344,804,494
B OREEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (4,405,644) (1,638,030)
‘it Total 1,272,960,442 343,166,464

148  KR4&ER(T (PE)BMRAFE 2022 FERS

2022
F—E EMER HE=ME
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
BENFEHERERER ait
KRR 12 NETHERE ARk BEMFEERTHAE AR REERET
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected creditloss  Credit-impaired financial assets Total
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
FIRE Opening Balance 1,638,030 - - 1,638,030
KEIHE Provision during the year 2,767,614 - - 2,767,614
FRRI Closing Balance 4,405,644 - - 4,405,644
2021
E—ER FZMER BEMER
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
BAMFESHER%EER &it
F3K 12 N AFEAERIRR BAFEHERTHAE AR BRI
12-month expected credit loss  Lifetime expected creditloss ~Credit-impaired financial assets Total
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
FERE Opening Balance 3,703,469 - - 3,703,469
R[] Reverse during the year (2,065,439) - (103,304) (2,168,743)
Recovery of other
WREILLET  receivables previously
FEERZSE  written off - - 103,304 103,304
FERRE Closing Balance 1,638,030 - - 1,638,030
14. Bl K EL & BN A F RFR I (14) Due to banks and other financial institutions
2022 2021
RRERITEN R E M SR ER Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 3,256,042,641 1,770,957,679
IFIMRITREILFR Due to overseas banks 252,253,487 173,226,751
(AR g1} Interest payable 2,826,508 2,087,270
&It Total 3,511,122,636 1,946,271,700
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15. IfFNE® (15) Placements from banks and other financial institutions 17. EHEIE SRR (17) Repurchase agreements
2 ZZENI £=3 i
BERRITENRAREN Placements from domestic banks 558,938,000 2,069,448,500 AR Classified by collateral:
i) TRk & Pl ts fi 2,727,944,229 9,852,710,798 _ . .
FIMRITRIM IR N BN acements from overseas banks P~ Financial bond i 1.180,000,000
RZHFIE Interest payable 7,127,596 92,805,926 .
RZIHFIE Interest payable - 494,609
ait Total 3,294,009,825 12,014,965,224
ait Total - 1,190,494,609
16. XZ MR R (16) Financial liabilities held for trading 18. TRURTFR (18) Customer deposits
2022 2021
FsE
Note 2022 2021 JERRERR Current deposits:
UARMETERBEZ T ANYER  Financial liabilities at fair value through ASIES S Corporate customers 17,750,864,364 17,104,694,702
R profit or loss:
PMAER Individual customers 960,008,942 970,968,328
Placement from banks and other financial
[BRIZ/IN institutions 6,151,309,352 6,716,486,197 Nt Sub-total 18,710,873,306 18,075,663,030
S2H BRI Repurchase agreements 1,042,752,685 180,148,501 R Time deposits:
Nt Sub-total 7,194,062,037 6,896,634,698 NEEF Corporate customers 22,647,550,072 22,244,327,659
EEAUAANEITEBEZHIT AN Financial liabilities designated at fair value TAER Individual customers 1,717,436,514 1,202,705,826
LA RIE RS 5 (MHE75.18) through profit or loss (Notes VI.18) 161 2,457,069,665 - .
INF Sub-total 24,364,986,586 23,447,033,485

it Sub-total 9,651,131,702 6,896,634,698 . . . , 4 4 _

Hep: 5@ AUAANMETEBEZRIT  Including: Deposits recognised at fair value

NSERERITER (MHER. 1671) through profit or loss (Notes VI.16.1) (2,457,069,665) -
RZHFI2 Interest payable 964,154 3,113,977

/it Sub-total (2,457,069,665) -
ait Total 9,652,095,856 6,899,748,675 .

MitF 8 Interest payable 306,988,150 190,051,494

ait Total 40,925,778,377 41,712,748,009

F202212A8318, s UAANMETTEER TR AN SR
NERN 6, BB SERRRENSENEFRANEZHETN
AE™288,6457, RMREcIEEMN AR 288,6457T0

At 31 December 2022, the fair value change on the financial
liabilities designated at fair value due to the Bank’ s own
credit risk was RMB288,645, and the accumulated amount

of change was RMB288,645.

19. RZAFER T 3B

(19) Employee benefits payable

2022 2021
ESNEZ ] Amount unpaid
THE. B, ZENAS Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 143,870,769 131,192,966
161 EBEAURANEITEEET T ARG ER A6 (16.1) Financial liabilities designated as at fair value HERBE Social insurance 2,431,173 2,457,510
through profit or loss EEARE Housing fund 11,338 -
2022 2022 RERTFITH Defined contribution plan 20,946,350 21,986,159
ENET NiHE Heh: BEAFERIE Of which: Pension fund 4,547,686 4,256,560
A Fair Value A ESHE Annuity 16,398,664 17,729,599
EMMHTER Structured deposits 2,448,930,000 2,457,069,665 &1t Total 167,259,630 155,636,635
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2022 2021

VAR Amount payable
T&H. ZE. EWEML Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 591,523,422 562,046,332
HERIER Social insurance 28,846,047 28,284,048
EEARE Housing fund 30,182,542 28,632,066
TREBENMTHELLE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 3,164,389 4,475,582
&EREFI Defined contribution plan 64,535,627 62,152,599
Hep: BEAFERME Of which: Pension fund 42,149,240 39,696,550
il F B R Annuity 22,386,387 22,456,049
Hith5 R THEXMER Other staff related expenses 18,585,880 14,499,350
&ait Total 736,837,907 700,089,977

20. RZ3XFt % (20) Tax payables
2022 2021
HER Value added tax 35,270,509 25,466,334
BN Tax surcharges 3,099,704 3,047,746
VRIS Corporate income tax 97,828,829 16,176,790
AINREBIR Withholding tax 29,259,489 26,757,644
Hth Others 869,107 247,523
ait Total 166,327,638 71,696,037
PANVANLGEES (21) Bonds payable

2022 2021

EER

Financial bond
Tier-two capital bond

Negotiable certificates of deposit

1,008,207,443
1,004,325,682

1,540,581,920

1,003,792,375

716,639,054

Total

3,553,115,045

1,720,431,429

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

F2022% 12 A 31 H, HAFEFHFREIITNOT:

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of bonds payable is
listed below:

RiTHHA fESFHAMR RITEH ERTT AEHRAE AERE /ZERS FERRE

Issue date Tenor Issue amount Issue amount Accrued Repayment Closing balance
during the year interest

2019/11/15 10 £F (10 years) 1,000,000,000 - 48,000,000 (48,000,000) 1,004,325,682

2022/08/24 3 £ (Three years) 1,000,000,000 998,107,717 10,099,726 - 1,008,207,443

2019 11 B 15 HEITWE— - RARRRET 10 FHETE
FEESL, EEIART 100 T, EEFEN 4.8%, SEM
B—R, ATERBAXEHTENRERES 5 EREEER
BI— R M EB 9 o & EPR Bl A< HA 55

2022 £ 8 A 24 BATTHNE—HERMGRET 3 FHEEM R
%, EEANART 100 7T, REFERN 2.88%, BFEME—Ro
FEFHEAEERBHESFIMALTNERITAZRER RO
ST

AATTF 2022 FEGELEFTARHET 12 DARTRELE
@, MENART 100 75, WEET.

AAFRMESREHMERE S, FE, RRERTEEL
R

The tier-two capital bond issued on 15 November 2019 is a
10-year bond with RMB100 par value and interest is paid
annually at a fixed rate of 4.8 per cent per annum. The bond
is redeemable at par at the option of the Bank, in part or
in whole, at the end of the 5th year subject to the relevant
conditions.

The financial bond issued on 24 August 2022 is a 3-year
bond with RMB100 par value and interest is paid annually
at a fixed rate of 2.88 per cent per annum. The bond holder
does not have the right to redeem the bond before maturity.

12 negotiable certificates of deposit were issued in 2022.
The par value was RMB100 and the interest rate was zero.

The Bank did not default on any principal, interest or
redemption amounts with respect to its bonds payable.
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22. Fit

(22) Provisions

2022 2021
ERARERVSIERRERES: Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts:
FVRE Opening balance 46,111,016 50,061,234
A /R ) Increase/(decrease) during the year 6,655,460 (3,950,218)
FRRE Closing balance 52,766,476 46,111,016

ERAERMSIBRZR 12 DA ERARKE N ENFEET
HERRKIHERELES, RMEESEHNZHNT:

The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts are measured according
to the 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected
credit loss. The movement of allowance for impairment losses
are as follows:

23. FAR AR

(23) Lease liabilities

2022
E—ME BMER B=MER
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
FEK12 1A BAFLEH BAFEHERE ait
B EEEEAES FREA{E IRk ERREEME™
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired financial assets Total
credit loss credit loss (Lifetime expected credit loss)
FXREN Opening balance 41,895,339 735,506 3,480,171 46,111,016
Accrue
AEIHE /(#%E)  /(Reverse) during the year 994,729 (727,269) 6,388,000 6,655,460
FERREN Closing balance 42,890,068 8,237 9,868,171 52,766,476
2021
FE—FE B HBEME
Stage | Stage ll Stage Il
FEK12 1A BAFEHE BANFEHERE ait
FRERE AR FRER(E IRK ERREEmME™
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired financial assets Total
credit loss credit loss (Lifetime expected credit loss)
FHRE Opening balance 39,748,390 6,832,673 3,480,171 50,061,234
Accrue
AFEHHE /(¥E)  /(Reverse) during the year 2,146,949 (6,097,167) - (3,950,218)
FERRI Closing balance 41,895,339 735,506 3,480,171 46,111,016

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

2022 2021

BEERERY Properties and buildings 24,823,558 71,139,950

P T M= Motor vehicles 1,453,098 2,067,805

&1t Total 26,276,656 73,207,755
24, Hitafs (24) Other liabilities

2022 2021

FEERBEERIN Settlement and clearing 1,278,249,276 518,112,200

NAT IT RFRS & IT system service fee 60,911,811 54,918,061

hiitrazdze] Accrued expense 28,577,254 20,099,282

EEER Renovation payable 1,149,663 1,435,737

Hith Others 18,734,888 35,040,980

‘it Total 1,387,622,892 629,606,260
25, UEA (25) Paid-up capital

JERR R SRUR A Paid-up capital 2022 2021

EEART ZEART
RMB equivalent % RMB equivalent %
KEERITEMRAT  United Overseas Bank Limited 7,500,000,000 100 5,500,000,000 100

ERTWAABHRKERRITNES BHREREN) L8
DPTERL, HTF 2022 F 18 24 BHA T RKER (2022) ©F

% 60658622 _BO1 EWEIRE,

26. BARNRIR

AERRARRB MR TRS, FRENROHZGIHT,

R EBHRD I NBRARBIRT,

The above paid-up capital has been verified by Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP Shanghai Branch with Ernst & Young Hua Ming
(2022) Yan Zi No. 60658622 _B01 capital verification report
issued on 24 January 2022.

(26) Capital reserve
In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-

based compensation program which is equity settled with a
corresponding charge to the capital reserve.
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27. Hfther B Uas

AR P RS S E R AR

(27) Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the

balance sheet:

B ETRTT ANE RS U

R

1-1-2022 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2022
UARNEITEBEHETENT  Change in the fair value of debt
NEMGZREWERNHRSTE  instruments at fair value through other
BRARNETED comprehensive income 39,464,594 (17,894,412) 21,570,182
UanETEBRHETHIT  Credit impairment losses of debt
NEMSZEEWERNHRSTE  instruments at fair value through other
RAGERRKES comprehensive income 28,570,515 (26,442,880) 2,127,635
®IESERRKRARMNE Change in the fair value of the Bank’ s
T own credit risks - (216,484) (216,484)
ait Total 68,035,109 (44,553,776) 23,481,333

by R

1-1-2021 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2021
UARMEITEBETEIT  Change in the fair value of debt
ANEMEERENESIA  instruments at fair value through other
BEAANRNELLH comprehensive income 913,994 38,550,600 39,464,594
AN EITEBEETENT  Credit impairment losses of debt
ANEMEERENERSIA  instruments at fair value through other
KRAEHRKRES comprehensive income 1,277,624 27,292,891 28,570,515
‘it Total 2,191,618 65,843,491 68,035,109

2022

FiRPEMSE RS SR TR

Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

HEiEE
Before tax

R ETET AR RS U
I N\
Less: Transfer to RS H
profit orloss Less: Income Tax

HEEEM
After tax

TR B SRS
G

EUASERRBARN

Tif

RBEDEHBHBEMLER

Bl

UannEit8EET )
THNEAMER S UREE R 55
TAERAAANELD
UaanEit8EET )
THNEAMER S UREERI iS5
TARAERIRKNES

Ait

Other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss

Change in the fair value of the
Bank’ s own credit risks

Other comprehensive income that
may be reclassified to profit or loss

Change in the fair value of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Credit impairment losses of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

(288,645)

6,222,369

(35,257,174)

- 72,161

(30,081,585) 5,964,804

- 8,814,294

(216,484)

(17,894,412)

(26,442,880)

Total

(29,323,450)

(30,081,585) 14,851,259

(44,553,776)

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

L PN
TR Less: Transfer to R FRS R HEET
2021 Before tax profit orloss Less: Income Tax After tax
BESEHRENEME  Other comprehensive income that
alla may be reclassified to profit or loss
UARMEITEBETE Change in the fair value of debt
TAEMSEEWEMNGRS  instruments at fair value through
TERANANEEE  other comprehensive income 51,487,336 (86,536) (12,850,200) 38,550,600
UARMETEBETE  Credit impairment losses of debt
TAEMSEEWEMNGRS  instruments at fair value through
TEKRAERRKES  other comprehensive income 36,390,521 - (9,097,630) 27,292,891
&it Total 87,877,857 (86,536) (21,947,830) 65,843,491
28. BRAR (28) Surplus reserves
2022 2021
FYIREN Opening balance 171,675,736 138,385,488
AEHEM Increase 50,501,051 33,290,248
FRREN Closing balance 222,176,787 171,675,736

RIFQBENERBDEENMNE, HE2023F3810HESE
SR, RABIZEFIEN 10% REVEEBRRAIRE, ZEE
RAMRIUTENEREEMEA 50% U LR, BIRBIRE.

TRABERIEZEEFANER, JRESEFRANRE. &ft
#, FEBRRARMETA TR UAFEESRIIGMRR. RIE
TRBEFZINRN, FEEFRERESERARE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank's
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution
passed by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2023, the
Bank has appropriated 10 per cent of its net profit to the
statutory surplus reserves. The Bank should appropriate
until the reserve balance reaches 50 per cent of its
registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated,
the Bank may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves.
Discretionary surplus reserves can be used to compensate
for the accumulated losses of previous years or convert
to capital upon approval. It has been determined by the
Board of Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus
reserves are to be appropriated this year.
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29. — RN

(29) General reserves

2022 2021
FHRE Opening balance 878,275,849 849,267,920
ZREEIE AN Increase 2,763,522 29,007,929
FERREN Closing balance 881,039,371 878,275,849

RABMKIEN & [2012]20 SX (I EESITHREEED
E) BIRE, MBEFEFIREN AR KRR R
1.5% BILL TR —MRN L ES, (FAFEDERE. AAFIRE
2023 3 10 HNEFEZ R, BRE—MRAEEITARD
2,763,522 75, —RRNFEERIIEARINPLEHARRE1.5%.

30. ROECFE

According to the regulation Cailin [2012] No. 20 "Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline", the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per
cent of its total risk assets at year end from net profit.
The Bank appropriated general reserve amounting to
RMB2,763,522 according to the resolution passed by the
Board of Directors on 10 March 2023 and the amount has
been up to 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets.

(30) Unappropriated profit

2022 2021

FEFERKDEFE Unappropriated profit brought forward 819,094,359 548,490,064
EFE Net profit for the year 505,010,514 332,902,472
B REUVEEBRRAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (50,501,051) (33,290,248)
REN— RN Less: Appropriation to general reserves (2,763,522) (29,007,929)
FERFDEFE Closing balance of unappropriated profit 1,270,840,300 819,094,359

RIE (PEARKNMEREE) REATNQBERER, £AFF
aE () BREAPEMSHEE (2 FHLEFEESHR;, Q)
REVEEBRARE; (4) #R—RNEES; 6) REER
BRAMER, AIUMEIELRDELRER. —RRREER
BEMEERILLFAEFTEAERXEMIAIRET, HEQBRESES
AE. NEFENREREIQBDERTIRE, HEEETER.
SRR EMERNREMEE,

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only
be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses;
(3) making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves;
(4) making appropriation to the general reserves; (5)
making appropriation to discretionary surplus reserves.
The appropriation ratios of the general reserves and
surplus reserves are decided by the Bank's Board of
Directors in compliance with relevant regulations. The
profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors
of the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.

31, FE AN

(31) Net interest income

2022 2021
FIEBN: Interest income:
FRB AR R Due from and placement with banks and other financial institutions 176,394,094 113,954,499
FRAHREIT Deposit with the Central Bank 45,066,778 55,672,971
KRG Loans and advances to customers 1,663,644,499 1,604,933,622
ENRERH Reverse repurchase financial assets - bonds 57,033,351 23,038,447
s kEFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 247,021,859 294,627,058
/it Sub-total 2,189,160,581 2,092,226,597
FEZH: Interest expense:
Bl R Efth&REMAMER  Due to and placement from banks and other financial institutions 172,549,437 248,801,190
U TERR Customer deposits 725,834,114 657,740,939
RERENFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 102,106,305 70,833,195
HEAR Lease liabilities 1,680,064 3,568,032
it Sub-total 1,002,169,920 980,943,356
SR Net interest income 1,186,990,661 1,111,283,241

32. FEERAZ AN

(32) Net fees and commission income

2022 2021
FHEERMAEWA: Fees and commission income:
FE5ERFEER Settlement and clearing fees 25,877,068 32,039,881
RIS F4R2% Agency brokerage fees 15,651,281 12,829,743
SRAIEFERE Credit commitment fees 55,819,389 54,151,273
5B EEXINEAN Credit related income 99,616,318 47,338,880
REREMSFRISHES Commissions of trusteeship and others 32,834,836 62,019,036
Hith Others 2,139,682 3,681,345
/it Sub-total 231,938,574 212,060,158
FEBRASIH: Fees and commission expense:
FaBZH Fee expenses 51,203,567 47,999,761
/it Sub-total 51,203,567 47,999,761
FEBERAERBAN Net fees and commission income 180,735,007 164,060,397
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33. A WS

(33) Investment income

38. [EAREIRK

(38) Credit impairment losses

2022 2021
TESMTABEISRE  Net realised gain/loss on derivatives 299,815,102 (39,967,146)
HmEREIEFSRERSEKE  Netrealised gain on bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 79,476,268 65,072,094
Hith Others 7,192,836 16,058,856
‘it Total 386,484,206 41,163,804
34, RANMEL R (34) Gain/(loss) from changes in fair values
2022 2021
TTEFBI SN - 2ARNESTENRE  Changes of fair value of derivatives (172,118,541) 223,636,584
R MERA R Financial liabilities held-for-trading (104,071,294) (24,654,990)
RIMETHRIBR - (EHES Loans and advances to customers-gold lending 35,767,160 22,744,865
R EERE~ Financial assets held for trading (9,912,045) (73,357,452)
ait Total (250,334,720) 148,369,007
35. L5 eE (35) Foreign exchange gain

LR BEINTRZ FCRE oM EREURINCETES  Foreign exchange gain includes gain/(loss) of foreign
business related to the changes of exchange rate and gain /

BT R ERRE,

36. Hithlras

(loss) arising from derivative financial instruments.

(36) Other income

2022 2021

FRAHAREBITRIURERK Impairment losses for deposit with the Central Bank 26,760 158,798
Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial

FERENLRERL institutions (4,546,296) (2,812,857)

i ENDEAEERES Impairment losses for placements with banks (1,194,804) 9,030,023

HRUBERIR Impairment losses for loans 24,372,096 132,254,073

ERAEREIRK Impairment losses for credit commitment 6,655,460 (3,950,218)

HEAIg RR AR Impairment losses for other debt investments 228,868 (12,179)
Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial

ENREERE = RERK assets 1,581,004 (134,989)

HtZEF=RERK Impairment losses for other assets 2,767,614 (2,168,743)

a1t Total 29,890,702 132,363,908

39. PRiSHiZE A (39) Income tax expenses

2022 2021

LHAPRISHL Current income tax 211,724,969 30,514,004

BRI Deferred income tax expenses (76,334,795) 35,004,040

&it Total 135,390,174 65,518,044

RSB A SFASTXATIRNT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before
tax is as follows:

2022 2021
FUE S5 Profit before tax 640,400,688 398,420,516
EERER 25% i+ EFREH Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 160,100,172 99,605,129
Xt AR HAIB] 1S Bt 2 AR RV TR 28 Adjustment in respect of prior periods (49,490) 476,415
FRE RSN Tax-free interest income of government bonds (35,810,426) (44,154,684)
AN EE A Non-deductible items 11,149,918 9,591,184
FriSfizE B Income tax expenses 135,390,174 65,518,044

2022 2021
S =B aENEY) Income-related on government subsidies 2,028,553 2,316,243
ait Total 2,028,553 2,316,243

37 WS NEEE (37) General and administrative expenses

2022 2021
RIT#HA Staff costs 736,837,907 700,089,977
Einl|=E: Depreciation 67,458,806 77,896,728
TR AR Amortisation of intangible assets 22,316,274 22,328,371
KHBFF MR A 2R Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 16,516,156 14,608,746
NE=E3E Other operating expenses 248,916,375 234,030,475
&ait Total 1,092,045,518 1,048,954,297

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS
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40. MEmERITAR 4. RERMEENY)

(40) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows

(41) Cash and cash equivalent

2022 2021
R s i . b ; . 2022 2021
1. BRRERNEEENNTeRE: 1. Recondiliation of net profit to cash flows from operating
TAL%E i = activities: me Cash 1,008,691 2,039,982
I-I (/\ . T .
ey ilp Net profit 505,010,514 332,902,472 AEH: Cash equivalents:
[RERPRTE=NF LAWK With original maturity less than three months
mn: ERRERK Add:Credit impairment loss 29,890,702 132,363,908
FERELFRI5 Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,436,104,796 3,370,903,425
o . .
BRI Fixed assets depreciation 1420277 12,333,123 s Placements with banks and other financial 3,206,399,741 7,032,532,563
institutions
ERANEFITIE Right-of-use assets depreciation 56,038,529 65,563,605
ENREEREF Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,097,430,000 1,432,091,000
IR PR Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 22,316,274 22,328,371 EERELESRE (MEXZBR=/8A Bond and negotiable certificate of deposit 989,438,350 149,793,350
ZIHA) investments (tenor within three months from
KEASME R A Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 16,516,156 14,608,746 purchase date)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long- FHRPRBITEATRIN Other deposits with the Central Bank 3,420,630,756 2,700,435,288
WABEERF [ AMKEARS K term assets 160,097 320,391
/it Sub-total 14,240,003,643 14,685,755,626
5. BELFRRBEAGHE Interest expenses of bond, negotiable certificates .
FH of deposit and lease liabilities 103,786,369 74,401,227 &it Total 14,241,012,334 14,687,795,608
NANET R (Gain)/loss from changes in fair value 250,334,720 (148,369,007)
JAW/VAN N _ H
BRI Investment income (689,339,382) (432,190,208) 42. Bfnsef (42) Share-based compensation plans
NS E D b M B EE NI == i K _ . .
T s Foreign exchange gain (272,673,500) (130,196,787) ZK\AQE’JH:LT%?ZT\‘J#*Z'J@EFE%UI““I*Hzm,%&l?ill‘l'%'ﬁl]%mia{ﬁ&/%& Share bo§ed compensation plans of the Bank comprise
Bhit®le FERITRS MBI R ARLERITHIRMD. T 2022 F  the Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation
BEFEFRISHIER (Hh0)/ (Increase) /decrease in deferred tax assets/liabilities (76,334,795) 35,004,040 12 B 31 B RITEINIBR S MR Zmh it R B BR (9 #58 309103 Rights Plan. All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As
%, FIREEPRTEEATEISE;, F2022F12 831 HATT  at 31 December 2022, the number of outstanding grants of
zg=tuamdlesy=|:obeyi| Increase in operating receivables (1,504,204,099) (980,649,828) BB EIZENN 0 15, Restricted Shares was 309,103, the remaining contractual
period of 1~3 years. As at 31 December 2022, the number of
SEMNAIME N CRL )/ 18 (Decrease) /increase in operating payables (6,380,880,747) 4,965,856,731 outstanding grants of Share Appreciation Rights was zero.
KEES (ER) FENRE R
=501 Net cash flows from operating activities (7,927,958,885) 3,964,276,784
2, MERAESENYETHER: 2. Netchange in cash and cash equivalents:
WMEWERRT Cash on hand at end of year 1,008,691 2,039,982
B MENEVIREN Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 2,039,982 4,163,644

n: MEFENYHERREN Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 14,240,003,643 14,685,755,626

B MEFNYIRERE Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,685,755,626 10,575,973,329

MERMEFNYE O )/ 1IN Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (446,783,274) 4,107,658,635

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS
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. 78RS

KRERENEERLEND. EEBRRABDRSHEHE THE
RITWS DA FERTUSDE. HIREFR S5 080 K H bk
ShADETREH 4 MEREDE. SMREDHBABRINSSH
B, ’RHARNFRNES. AAREERBERERHIRTED
MM SEELUREREEERR. TN k5.

RRERED BT EWSNT:

HRIRITALSS 7758
mERPIRHEIERR. BRME. FRRS. BEEE I
CEERSFEMIRS.

EERITI 57785
BPAFTFPRHEEDIARR. ERRS. RITFRS. PAE
A BRSS FIICRREEARSS

IS5 5758
BEFRITETZIHITES R W SHEXNRWIFERS. BB
2 BSITAERR, URINCREZRE M. FIRITEFRHNR 5.

Bk 35 KK 5 BT B 7758
EREERAB ERENDEHAREGEDENES. Afi. K
AK3z o

ATHNENDEOUERAEEERR, SAREERZEH
HFREIBEFTEDEEF. Af. WA BARZERR, XEE
BERYRHIERT

DA ETBZAEART I MNESMEME. BLE~. T

ERFMEMKRZES. 280GEREABRTEDBHNENER
R, BEEIER. FART. STNAREF.

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

VII. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating
segments, namely wholesale banking, retail banking,
global markets, and others and unallocated based on
internal organisational structure, management requirement
and internal reporting system. Every reporting segment,
which is individual business segment, provides different
products and services. Management periodically reviews
the financial information of the segments to determine
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and
services such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-
taking activities, fund management, foreign exchange
services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-
bank placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase
transactions and bond investments in the inter-bank
market, and dealing foreign exchanges, precious metals
and interest rate related derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review
the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and financial
performance of the segments, and such information is
prepared on the following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which
are attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities
mainly include deposits, borrowings and other payables
which are attributable to the segments.

DEBEERRBIEE MO MEEHRN (BEXNIZZBANRSD
EEIZZWN), MRS BRENERER (BEFERABT
BNEESRERITIBMME) | RIESZRWK D PEEIEE
REBAUREFRERK. D8 ZEWNREBZENKRSEM
IFIMZ BRI R FRITE

Segment financial performance refers to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation
of resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions
between segments are priced at similar terms as external
transactions.
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1. D8 S. HEFE Kb R

=

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2022
HERITIS FEERTLS FERESRWLS Hithll 5% Ait

ROEHE
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. BN 1. Operating income 1,158,603,713 127,282,092 321,871,217 170,804,472 1,778,561,494
FEEBN Net interest income 866,344,681 86,968,880 72,872,245 160,804,855  1,186,990,661
Hep: 35MFIERBN Of which: External interest income 752,195,748 176,431,887 401,707,626 (143,344,600) 1,186,990,661
bar=EIEXIESNE S ON Internal interest income 114,148,933  (89,463,007)  (328,835,381) 304,149,455 -
FHERMERBN Net fee and commission income 170,864,340 35,308,548  (40,051,526) 14,613,645 180,735,007
HARUN Other net income 121,394,692 5,004,664 289,050,498 (4,614,028) 410,835,826
—. BlzH 2. Operating expenses (636,695,805) (149,555,822)  (156,891,996)  (194,685,214) (1,137,828,837)
Hrh: SHRBERK Of which: Credit impairment losses ~ (107,574,675) 6,878,217 - 70,805,756 (29,890,702)

=, AEWINEZ 3. Net non-operating income/

(expenses) 125,903 (14,351) (4) (443,517) (331,969)
. ARG 4. Profit before tax 522,033,811  (22,288,081) 164,979,217 (24,324,259) 640,400,688
f. WIRSHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 17,405,798 9,921,286 3,187,930 75,776,222 106,291,236
N BRI 6. Capital expenditure 1,401,747 853,562 3,064,898 17,934,169 23,254,376
t. BFERE 7. Total assets 36,631,243,633 4,207,134,656 38,796,850,887 (2,431,873,830) 77,203,355,346
I\ TR 8. Total liabilities 44,142,437,796 2,713,760,663 18,182,884,748  2,245,140,550 67,284,223,757
2021
MERBITIS JERTLS  FEREHWS Hitll 5% ait

KOEWE
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. BN 1. Operating income 1,011,902,980 179,471,692 215,134,106 191,032,618 1,597,541,396
EIISELON Net interest income 773,518,535 107,364,661 (13,884,678) 244,284,723  1,111,283,241
Hep: 35RO Of which: External interest income 755,466,971 209,859,329 326,963,150  (181,006,209)  1,111,283,241
SIEBIEIFI S UIN Internal interest income 18,051,564 (102,494,668)  (340,847,828) 425,290,932 -
FEBERAREERN Net fee and commission income 125,110,730 66,620,785 (41,226,856) 13,555,738 164,060,397
Hith 2N Other net income 113,273,715 5,486,246 270,245,640 (66,807,843) 322,197,758
. Bl 2. Operating expenses (537,906,899) (174,896,627)  (134,777,651) (349,351,501) (1,196,932,678)
Hrep: ERBERSE Of which: Credit impairment losses (55,794,359) 9,550,015 - (86,119,564)  (132,363,908)

=, AElsNkE 3. Net non-operating income/

(expenses) 124,008 1,876,005 9 (4,188,224) (2,188,202)
. FETEE 4. Profit before tax 474,120,089 6,451,070 80,356,464 (162,507,107) 398,420,516
A, WIBSHEEERA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 21,911,111 18,609,873 1,726,935 72,585,926 114,833,845
e BAEZH 6. Capital expenditure 3,198,884 2,765,578 514,632 35,063,138 41,542,232
t. BFERE 7. Total assets 36,730,302,002 4,823,078,184 37,281,048,116 (614,308,978) 78,220,119,324
J\. AfRBER 8. Total liabilities 41,265,998,557 2,224,679,131 19,007,560,131  8,266,126,118 70,764,363,937

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

2. A58
(1) HIEER
HNE N BIRIRE P PRTEt N Bt D EE BRI E R St

X, ZABEAEMXFIREVE XESBISIIME N /(2 H)
BEEWT:

HHMVEAIRN / (ZH)

External operation income/(expense)

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography
External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The

external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

2022 2021

BN Domestic
o Overseas
ait Totall

2,344,491,818 1,502,910,522

(565,930,324) 94,630,874

1,778,561,494 1,597,541,396

FRFRGRRA, AARRETRERINIIERE .
Q) XEZFER

USRS ENURANMETTERRET I ANEMEGI
WAV, RQBRFETFERTAEWEREZ RSN
AARM129125w Q021 FE: ARM177127m) , 5424
BIRFFSWAR 8% (2021 FE: 11%) -

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers' information

Among loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income amounting to RMB129 million
comes from top 10 largest corporate loan customers (2021:
RMB177 million), which contributed eight per cent of the
total loan interest income for the year (2021:11 per cent).
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I\ BERFE AR

1. & #E

(1) Commitments

VIIl. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

RAMESE HAGE Capital commitments 2022 2021
ERUEERELN Approved but not contracted 3,205,568 1,669,485
BELNEXRIENT Contracted but not provided for 7,151,768 -
ait Total 10,357,336 1,669,485
2. {553 7A (2) Credit commitments

2022 2021
MEEERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
SRITARGICE Banker’ s acceptance 2,267,648,800 2,517,539,798
{RERFRIN Letter of guarantee 2,477,174,047 1,925,481,962
& RERIE Standby letter of credit 5,353,062,730 6,599,277,918
FFHENERS FIE Letter of credit, at sight 1,387,358,570 1,397,501,025
FrEEHRE RIE Letter of credit, usance 319,594,485 218,633,694
Nt Sub-total 11,804,838,632 12,658,434,397
RS R Irrevocable loan commitments with original

maturity of:
FRERAEE 1 FU L More than one year
Nt Sub-total

‘it Total

2,214,564,357

1,424,261,400

2,214,564,357

1,424,261,400

14,019,402,989

14,082,695,797

BERABINEE XS I EER Weighted credit risk of credit commitments

7,154,644,893

6,487,881,153

MHEERERABIERER, — BERPRRESZHmASIING
FEERERSHEITOEXSN, RITRETERS .

AR RIEA AR EHBTERR AN T P IR L0 E S5 ~REY &

o BREIE—RRINEEMEISA LR, FJREEEARIEHRET,
AR ENEREE S ETH A —EARRROTHIIME R .

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers'
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that the
Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the maturity
date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments does not
necessarily represent the future expected cash outflow.

3. ZHE S (3) Entrusted business
2022 2021
RS Entrusted deposits 10,439,999,910 10,572,884,938
ERRN Entrusted loans 10,439,999,910 10,572,884,938
2022 2021
EHEVEE Entrusted fund 1,910,277,314 2,144,798,472
EREVE Entrusted asset 1,910,277,314 2,144,798,472

ERATRIEFEREFTEAQENRI, NBTEEREREN
FBZHRBERZAB. WTREXNERNLEESETEAAIE,

ZREVIISREERARRRSE R ERYENRAT AN,

UBP XA HITRAMEZTEE, RARGEHELTRN
WREY, HRABLYRE A MISKIRR B R P S AU B Lk 55,

4. FERGR

F 2022 I, AATRMIEA. 22 ERFERMSIBREEN
REAB, HEEMRE AR,

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, there was no other contingent
liabilities except for items that have been disclosed in Notes
VI1.22.
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h. BHERE

RRERARBREBHEAATEE W SHER XN ERNEER
Nk, AENTHRANEENGHEIRNER, AREARLE
ENBERRTHERESRNERZIN, EUMRFEBRES
ENALTERNERFANGRA L. MFEFIENZHE
IRBIRBEAHE, ARABERIRARE AL,

FATRR (BURTAFERNE (R17) ) O0E, #ITE
FRELEERBLIFHBFEREEEREND. RRESER
BURTRO—RAEREEFERT 5%, —RAFRREF
BIRT 6%, AERRETGET 8%, &AL 2.5%

FABRMSH AT ALTNEHITER, L0 —RBEBELRY
B, BRLMETHAERD . AGEEWEAITAS D BRA
R —MRNLEEIRDEMNE; AQBALTEM—REE; ZF&
RAETBOFE BRI ARHEN AT ANSIABEI R FURE
o

FREER (FRITHEXREEDE (417) ) B9E, HER
BEFEREROT:

IX. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management
method to mitigate the inherent risk in the business
operation and complied with the requirements of regulatory
authorities on capital management. The Bank also targets
to maintain sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations
and optimising shareholders' value. The Bank may adjust
its capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio
according to "Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional)". CBIRC requires that a commercial
bank's core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital
adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be
lower than five per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent
respectively, and capital conservation ratio should reach 2.5
per cent.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing
the capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes
paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve, qualified other
comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves
and unappropriated profit. The Bank has no other tier-one
capital. Tier-two capital mainly includes surplus provision for
loan impairment, qualified Tier-two capital instruments and
their premium.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank
in accordance with "Regulations Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (Provisional)" are as follows:

TRBMNALRTEERRARRBIER URPESITHEN R REE
MSIREABRFITIHEN. £FEE, ZATET T HES M
ERHEEER,

t5h, ERABREFERFRESMAN (ERITITATRERD
E) RES<S20ME%H3S5) HEHRBEIIARER. &t
2022 12 A 31 H, NABHIIHER 97%, FE=IK 4.0%
BREMER, HEXEELT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed
by the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage
ratio according to "Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks" (CBIRC Ordinance [2011] No.3). As at 31
December 2022, the Bank's leverage ratio was 9.7 per cent
which was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement
of four per cent. The relevant information is as follows:

2022 2021

L —REAR Core tier-one capital

B RO —RERINRIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions

R — R B REN Net core tier-one capital

9,919,131,589 7,455,755,387

(65,099,906) (73,046,606)

9,854,031,683 7,382,708,781

68,550,460,103
19,515,948,798
9,304,420,400

4,184,887,280

72,173,237,994
15,753,932,076
10,179,423,200

1,566,510,978

101,555,716,581

99,673,104,248

R ERNARE Adjusted on balance sheet items

AR ERIMNIE R Adjusted off balance sheet items

TP mAFREN Balance of derivatives

IESRAR B R REN Balance of assets in securities financing transactions
ait Totall

TIFFER Leverage ratio

9.7%

7.4%

2022 2021
ZID—RER A Core tier-one capital 9,919,131,589 7,455,755,387
KU FEA Paid-up capital 7,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
-2 YN AEIR DN Qualified capital reserve 21,593,798 18,674,334
Hftvza U al it A2 Qualified other comprehensive income 23,481,333 68,035,109
BRI Surplus reserves 222,176,787 171,675,736
—RE B General reserves 881,039,371 878,275,849
OB Unappropriated profit 1,270,840,300 819,094,359
ZO—RERBRINE Core tier-one capital deductions 65,099,906 73,046,606
Hith TR A= Other intangible assets 65,388,551 73,046,606
HEERANREUSREAGRAANE  Unrealized fair value change of the Bank’ s liabilities
TR RAYR SR & due to its own credit risk (288,645) -

D —RELFER

Net core tier-one capital

9,854,031,683

7,382,708,781

—IRERAFHEN Net tier-one capital 9,854,031,683 7,382,708,781
A Tier-two capital 1,641,072,786 1,595,144,372
ZRARTARERNAIITNERR Qualified tier-two capital instruments and their premium 998,670,888 998,137,580
AR TR EER Surplus provision for loan impairment 642,401,898 597,006,792
BRAAE Net capital 11,495,104,469 8,977,853,153
RN E = Risk-weighted assets 58,530,607,615 56,008,171,982
Hep: SRARINRE Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 52,034,553,750 48,357,550,160
AN I E = Market risk-weighted assets 3,526,419,865 4,930,553,322
BRIEXFQINRGE Operational risk-weighted assets 2,969,634,000 2,720,068,500
BO—RERFTEE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 16.8% 13.2%
—RAKRTRE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 16.8% 13.2%
REFTEE Capital adequacy ratio 19.6% 16.0%
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+ RN ERE

TR TAXK

FAREREESNTHIESHERTAENNN, TEBERER
RS, REERBE R X (BECRRR. FIRX. EaX
K)o ARBENTEEMTABERDRES. FHRPRIBITRIL
FRENLFRI. HFHEE. TESRET. IANRESHA.
RIBEIFAER. HtEiiieEE, SXESRMTEBXAINK,
WA 2 2 B) FI PR L X B P SR ER B R B E TR AR BE 40 TPk

AAFNEMTASHNTENRREANSL. ARERLRD
G, FATHR G SR T.

1. {ERK
1 ERRKRER

EARRERS ASRRZNFEANNGE, FTEERITHIEMR
AER G F AR EFEH N EITHR AN 55 X 589
BETREN. ARATNEANRIERE T ERERMER,
FINNEERRNEEERE FHREAIE. STUE R

BRI

ERNRNEPEE. S—EHENTFAEHITHEENZEER
mheY, SAFAEERHIEME ATV AEEMREFRT
FHETEUNENSZIR—EFZTUNEM. ERXKRN
EPEERR T RITW SN R T SR B SR
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QB ROREFHEERE. RNEREEMNEEHRER
M ERH BB EME T ERAK. mATEMHRNE
FRZERRHITEE, WERREHITONHRENTEN
RRMKEE T
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X. Financial Risk Management

Risk of financial instruments

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most
significant types of risk related to financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and commodity risk). The
Bank's financial instruments mainly include cash, deposit
with the Central Bank, due from banks and other financial
institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, derivative financial assets, reverse repurchase
financial assets, loans and advances to customers, other
debt investments, and etc. These risks and the Bank's strategy
to minimise the negative impacts of the underlying financial
risks are described below.

The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. The Bank's risk management
strategy is outlined below.

(1) Credit risk
(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower's or
counterparty's inability to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. The Bank's credit risk
exposure mainly arises from loans and advances to
customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet items mainly
arises from the letters of credit/guarantees issued as
well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same
business activities, geographical location, or industry
sector with similar economic characteristics such that
their repayment ability would be affected by the same
economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration reflects
the sensitivity of the Bank's performance to such
customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies
and procedures which effectively mitigate and control
credit risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation,
credit approval, credit monitoring as well as reporting.
The Bank reviews the borrowers' business operations
periodically, analyses the quality of credit portfolio and
ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.

WA SRR K BT I KPLTE L £ 5 SR A B A RS
B Eitt, ZERXZHHRE. BEEEUMTFEIFERER
EFRESERMBRUSEE,

EABRENEMATHNRAEANLHOFTFERKETT. &
ARES—AFAGREAERNEAEARLBONRE AU
BHNEETREREEERENEH. FAARTERRHEMSER
MEIRERRE, FIMEE \F#EE.

FHRFEAGRRE, TEEEMERYNEMEBERERNR
KIEARPEHOIFENT:

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to
customers. Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies
and procedures for managing credit contingencies
which cover application, follow-up monitoring and
collateral requirements, etc.

The maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's financial
assets is equal to the carrying amount. The Bank's
maximum credit exposure at each balance sheet date is
the total amount charged to customers less impairment.
The Bank is also exposed to credit risk as a result of
providing financial guarantees, as disclosed in Notes
VIII.

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk
exposure of the Bank without taking into consideration
of collateral and other risk mitigation are set out below:

2022 2021
FHRAREITRIN Deposits with the Central Bank 6,465,559,015 6,202,454,024
RER Precious metals 3,069,452,064 1,285,539,961
TFRRELLFRIN Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,754,411,843 3,544,261,854
RHEES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 4,281,810,991 8,608,835,079
R MEMA Financial assets held for trading 1,837,337,491 2,197,434,189
TTEERAF Derivative financial assets 4,490,365,337 4,541,743,724
BN Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,096,388,908 1,432,434,176
BTN Loans and advances to customers 40,352,251,714 39,160,105,030
HEsg R Other debt investments 8,151,488,340 10,436,771,937
HithEra A Other financial assets 1,268,014,480 340,238,878
At Total 76,767,080,183 77,749,818,852

EHRAGERRXEHO (MHE/\. 2) Credit commitments (Note VIII.2)

RAERXKRHBO Maximum credit risk exposure

14,019,402,989 14,082,695,797

90,786,483,172 91,832,514,649

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

173



174

I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

12 RREPRE

MRS FERFEITUEHK, IHERERELEZFENE,
HERAXKLBESENES. I, FRTIMMKHZFE
BHEHIBENFR, RIERENTLMMXKEERRETFR
ZEI i

TRBEENRARTFREERNRVSRER. mABAKE
PABREVTIEREFS, BEEMENR 7.2

13 8RY

RRBRIER 7% FH1E B RS ITERE I R AE R 2 TR
KR, RAQENHEFIBPFRYEIL TEXER, SENERY
THESMEE T BRI E R,

BERYEEHFLT LML .

« TR, BRYEENINE REFR. RITERIS
 WFPMARR, ERVAERES.

EERERISHEXEENERYNHHNEHRERX
WEREMER, HE#ITRAOEENTRMERENTDZE
ERPBHN T,

1.4 FEME BIRKEER

RIBEANMRESAERZEMURRESEREERRE, &
RENRERERAF AR SFIER. RMERERAEFERIN
BE 251 12 BB NMFR IR TR E AR IAVREE
&, BEEMED. 9

15X B E I IIET P

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

(1.2) Risk concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the
same industry sector, geographical location or having
similar economic characteristics would tend to pose
higher credit risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the
level of credit risk may be varied from each industry or
geographical location in view of their unique economic
development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank’ s loans and
advances can be found at Notes VI. 7.2.

(1.3) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would
depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties
as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has established a
guideline on taking collateral including the frequency of
collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

* For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals
taken include cash deposits, bank guarantee and
properties;

* For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly
residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to
monitor the market value of the collaterals and follow up
with the borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the loan
agreement. The change in market value of the collateral
would also be taken into consideration when reviewing
the adequacy of loan loss provisions.

(1.4) Expected credit loss management

Depending on whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition and whether
the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the Bank
recognises loss allowance for financial assets, financial
guarantee contracts and loan commitments based
on the 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime
expected credit losses accordingly, as disclosed in Notes
V.9.

The criteria of significant increase in credit risk

YRETREER, ERNRRRKEANEEEM:

« AEHHE BERMENRE FEEHHET 30 B;

« ERABBEMWINEIRS BRI ERKREFRTLELET
FERY, FBLBIRNTWEL T IREIE;

« ERAGTURFTINABIAE KA HER D ERITR N KT,

BXREEA BB E

TRBRERERECRAAETEGEUTRE:
« AEHH S BEEMENRE FEHED 90 B;
s BHMTRRPBERAER L EERRME;

* AREAE MR ER R EL

141 A AIRARITE

WNFEREERARENERIA, ERAMERKNZERA
EEEARNKENESRRKMAER (AR EMERR
T ) FIMBOFN A BB SRV EZ B RIZE T,

WNFERANREZEIMNERTE, AARNMERERRKT
BRI BERARDINAIITL AR AR, HX KR
SEHTE YRR, UARREXZITENNER, XBEHE
EEBEOMER, BORKENZAREMO. KXQBEZEHLES
R (WURSZWFITR. BRAARBBERYZER. TR
HF) NEENHRAREES, BIEOHE, SHORKE
ReE2y KBl A=A,

BXREXIT:

o BOMERIEHRS ATERR 12 PARERENRREFLSH, T
ZRTEERNXSHAEN. AARNELORERLULEEE
HtEE Z B, BEAMELER. MXMNER, AIREMERE KR
EEEEERZH, URMAFRENEFIFRE RS AL
A=,

Credit risk is deemed to be significantly increased when
any of the following occurs:

» The principal or interest is overdue for more than 30
days;

* When the borrower's internal credit risk rating is
downgraded with its probability of default change
exceeds the pre-specified threshold;

* Internal watchlist accounts or special mention accounts.

The criteria of credit-impaired financial assets

The Bank evaluates the following factors for credit-

impaired financial assets:

» The principal or interest is overdue for more than 90
days;

* There are weaknesses exhibited which jeopardise
repayments significantly on existing terms;

» The exposure is considered to be in default.

(1.4.1) Expected credit loss measurement

For credit-impaired financial instruments, the credit
impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the balance sheet date
and the present value of the expected recoverable cash
flow discounted at the effective interest rate (or other
applicable discount rate which is available).

For financial instruments with significant increase in
credit risk, the Bank's ECL model is based on the Basel
Internal Ratings-Based Approach, with appropriate
adjustments on key parameters to meet the requirements
of relevant accounting standards. Key parameters
include Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default
(LGD), and Exposure At Default (EAD). The Bank
considers quantitative analysis of historical data
(such as counterparty rating, type of guarantee and
collaterals, repayment method, etc.) and forward-looking
information to build PD, LGD, and EAD models.

The definitions are as follows:

* PD is the likelihood that the borrower will default on
its obligation within the next 12 months or throughout
the remaining tenor. PD is derived based on the credit
cycle index Z value, cyclical ratio and correlation,
and the forward-looking adjustment is incorporated
into the credit cycle index Z to reflect the PD of the
borrower in the current macroeconomic environment;
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* LGD is the estimation of the extent of the loss if there
is a default. LGD varies depending on the type of
counterparty, the method and priority of recourse, and
the type of collateral. LGD is expressed as a percentage
of EAD;

* EAD is the total amount of exposures in the event of
default within the next 12 months or throughout the
remaining tenor.

In addition to the above model results, the Bank will
adjust the ECL results through management overlay
for identified model or data deficiencies, along with
the impact of regulatory policies. The Bank applies
management overlay prudently, and the use of
management overlay for certain risk factor should be
fully discussed by internal experts and subject to the
approval by senior management and the Board of
Directors.

The criterion of portfolio segmentation and stage
determination, Macro Economic Variables (MEVs),
scenario weightage, ECL model and its key parameters,
forward-looking model and its key parameters,
management overlay model and its key parameters
should be subject to the approval by senior management
and the Board of Directors.

(1.4.2) Forward-looking information

The assessment of the significant increase in credit risk
and the measurement of ECL involve forward-looking
information. The Bank has performed historical data
analysis and identified key MEVs that impact credit risk
and ECL of various industries and businesses, including
Gross Domestic Product (GDP), property price indices,
etc. The Bank uses regression analysis to determine the
MEVs impact on PD and LGD.

When calculating the weighted average ECL, the Bank
regularly obtains Group economists' forecasts on MEVs,
combined with macro-statistical analysis and expert
judgment to determine the scenario weightage. As at
31 December 2022, the Bank selected global stagflation
and China hard landing as the stress scenario and made
forward-looking forecasts of MEVs. Of which, the year-
on-year GDP growth rates over the next five years were
among 3.3 per cent to 4.8 per cent under the Business-
As-Usual (BAU) scenario and among 2.5 per cent to
five per cent under the stress scenario. At the same
time, based on the analysis of economic conditions, the
weightages of the BAU and stress scenarios were set at
60 per cent and 40 per cent respectively.

KRB FIESE T EMERANENEFERHAIT T NERR
M. F 2022F 12 B 31 H, HEEBFRNELINTF
10% By, FHHEME BIMKRBIZR BT 5%

The Bank conducted sensitivity analysis of the scenario
weightage in forward-looking measurement. As of 31
December 2022, when the BAU scenario weightage
increased or decreased by 10 per cent, the ECL would
not change by more than five per cent.
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1.5 EMTRAEARENH

(1.5) Credit quality distribution of financial instruments

#1E2022F12 A 31 B, AREEMTAEXKM ST (R As of 31 December 2022, the three-staging distribution of

BIENITHE) financial instruments of the Bank is as follows (excluding
accrued interest):
2022
WERE ERRKES
Principal Amount Credit impairment losses
E—ME EMER E=MER &ait E—ME B E=ME ait
Stage | Stage ll Stage lll Total Stage | Stage ll Stage Il Total
Financial assets
LABERR AN T E R B RA T measured at amortised cost
W& R IF IR R TRRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,465,833,288 - - 6,465,833,288 671,674 - - 671,674
FR R I Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,762,611,323 - - 2,762,611,323 8,309,674 - - 8,309,674
Placements with banks and other financial
IREES institutions 4,282,151,741 - - 4,282,151,741 17,459,395 - - 17,459,395
ENRESRAF Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,097,430,000 - - 4,097,430,000 1,650,981 - - 1,650,981
R Loans and advances to customers 37,675,256,586 437,138,387 242,579,206 38,354,974,179 798,009,868 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,029,784,893
Hittmar— Other financial assets 1,272,420,124 - - 1,272,420,124 4,405,644 - - 4,405,644
AR AN i 28 Total financial assets
ERMEEEIT measured at amortised cost 56,555,703,062 437,138,387 242,579,206 57,235,420,655 830,507,236 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,062,282,261
2021
RERE b GIREEEES
Principal Amount Expected Credit Losses
E—ME B B=MER &it HF—MER B E=MEE ait
Stage | Stage ll Stage lll Total Stage | Stage ll Stage lll Total
Financial assets
LUPERRANITEMERIZE™  measured at amortised cost
& RFRPREITRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,203,659,623 - - 6,203,659,623 644,914 - - 644,914
Due from banks and other financial
FRENLFRIN institutions 3,657,117,471 - - 3,557,117,471 12,855,970 - - 12,855,970
Placements with banks and other financial
IFEES institutions 8,615,825,937 - - 8,615,825,937 18,654,199 - - 18,654,199
ENREERAF Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,432,091,000 - - 1,432,091,000 69,977 - - 69,977
R BRI Loans and advances to customers 35,372,619,876 460,830,569 125,786,950 35,959,237,395 801,848,305 75,054,473 88,325,299 965,228,077
HhR A= Other financial assets 341,876,908 - - 341,876,908 1,638,030 - - 1,638,030
AR AN i 28 Total financial assets
ERMEESIT measured at amortised cost 55,523,190,815 460,830,569 125,786,950 56,109,808,334 835,711,395 75,054,473 88,325,299 999,091,167
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BRURAMETEBE TR N SHRIREAI RSN, Btk
HMABR (FENIHFHE) BRARDER=MEIITMT:

(1.6) Loans and advances by three-staging classification

Except loans and advances to customers at fair value
through profit or loss, other loans and advances
(excluding accrued interest) by five-category loan
classification and three-staging classification are
analysed as follows:

17 XM ERAF

FEFHERA, XZUEEHFRANEHERE (FERITFIE)
RIBINEBIE AR DT

(1.7) Financial assets held for trading

As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of
trading bond investments (excluding accrued interest)
analysed by external credit ratings is as follows:

2022 2021
AAA 772,443,270 1,196,057,560
A+ 1,034,361,270 772,023,120
&1t Total 1,806,804,540 1,968,080,680

FHEFHRERE, XZURATHKILTFRREANEARERE

As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of the

SMEBERITRIITIOT : trading negotiable certificate of deposit investment
analysed by external credit ratings is as follows:
2022 2021
AAA - 198,590,600
&it Total - 198,590,600

2022

E—ER BIMER BEMER

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
*EK 1218 BAFSE BREGRARESRES ait

FRERME AR FREAERAIRL BAFSETEERRK
12-month expected Lifetime expected  Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
EE Pass 38,357,827,323 314,625,732 - 38,672,453,055
xF Special Mention 5,060,071 131,316,704 - 136,376,775
REK Substandard - - 65,665,267 65,665,267
AIEE Doubtful - - 50,000,000 50,000,000
Mk Loss - - 126,913,939 126,913,939
&it Total 38,362,887,394 445,942,436 242,579,206 39,051,409,036
2021

E—EL BIMER BEEMER

Stage | Stage Stage Il
FEK121MA BAFEHE BREGRARESHMES Aait

FRER{E FRIRK TREAERAIRL BANFSETEERRK
12-month expected Lifetime expected  Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
E= Pass 37,889,438,298 337,167,690 - 38,226,605,988
xE Special Mention 5,312,409 162,771,574 - 168,083,983
RER Substandard - - 25,160,601 25,160,601
AR Doubtful - - 50,000,000 50,000,000
ik Loss - - 50,626,349 50,626,349
‘it Total 37,894,750,707 499,939,264 125,786,950 38,520,476,921
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1.8 HA AR HA

FEkELEFRRAKENE (FENITFE) KINMEHITR
NFNHR(E IR KR EMN RS0 T

(1.8) Other debt investments

The carrying amounts of bond investment and
negotiable certificate of deposit investment (excluding
accrued interest) analysed by external credit ratings
and expected credit losses are as follows:

2022

E—ER BZMER B=MEE

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
FEK121A BAFEH BAFEHE ait

UL RS FRERE IRk BREGHRK
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
AAA 2,832,380,733 - - 2,832,380,733
A+ 5,239,244,880 - - 5,239,244,880
FRRIN Closing Balance 8,071,625,613 - - 8,071,625,613
2021

E—ER BEMER B=MER

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
FREK12 1A BAFEHE BANFEHEE ait

FRER(E IR FRER{E IR BREGHRK
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
AAA 4,220,650,368 - - 4,220,650,368
A+ 6,087,558,170 - - 6,087,558,170
FEREH Closing balance 10,308,208,538 - - 10,308,208,538
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(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-
day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash
funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete
framework of risk management, including the balance
sheet risk management framework and liquidity risk
appetites approved by the Board / Board Risk Management
Committee, as well as policies, controls and limits approved
by the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). These policies,
controls and limits are established to ensure that the Bank
has sufficient funding to manage liquidity risk over a range
of market conditions. These include minimising excessive
funding concentrations by diversifying the sources and
terms of funding as well as maintaining a portfolio of debt
securities with high quality and good liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity management
by continuing to gather core deposits, strictly complying
with liquidity limits and retaining adequate liquid assets to
prevent any possible cash shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits to
maintain a balance of cost efficiency, continued availability
of funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the Bank's core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected
cash flow basis. Cash flow projection is monitored under
both business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow
mismatch limits are established to limit the Bank's liquidity
exposure. The Bank has also employed liquidity early
warning indicators and trigger points to signal possible
contingency situations. Contingency funding plans
have been set up to identify potential liquidity crises by
using a series of warning indicators. Crisis management
processes and various strategies including funding and
communication have been developed to minimise the
negative impact of any liquidity crunch.
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I Notes to Financial Statements

W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

F2022%F 12 B 310, AATNERETREMAGEREZFM  The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets

HEIEAE 2T : and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 is as follows:
2022
JBHA / BIEHEIE 1™MAR 1£Z31A 3TAETE 1E5%F 5FEME TCHAMR ait
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1to 3 months 3 months to 1year 1to 5years 5 years above undated Total
BRI Financial assets:

MEMAF P RIBITRN

Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 3,422,690,096

3,043,877,610

6,466,567,706

nEB Precious metals - - - - - - 3,069,452,064 3,069,452,064
FRENE I Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,405,464,611 349,776,400 - - - - - 2,755,241,011
RHZEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 2,948,738,975 634,020,468 724,455,972 - - - 4,307,215,415
R EERR Financial assets held for trading . - 177,839,800 602,895,605 1,084,260,914 - - 1,864,996,319
e Derivative financial assets - 1,895,316,992 1,036,414,256 823,670,339 710,568,626 24,395,124 - 4,490,365,337
ENREEZRAF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 4,097,583,506 - - - - - 4,097,583,506
R ETRRANER Loans and advances to customers 64,788,885 3,503,615,699 8,031,534,167 12,069,834,871 15,786,302,715 5,295,946,663 - 44,752,023,000
H A Other debt investments - 821,118,553 330,934,220 3,140,409,160 2,520,869,101 1,584,606,052 - 8,397,937,086
Hitr SRR Other financial assets 3,703,584 1,242,488,746 21,822,150 - - - - 1,268,014,480
SRMEFFEIT Total financial assets 5,896,647,176 14,858,638,871 10,232,565,061 17,361,265,947 20,102,001,356 6,904,947,839 6,113,329,674 81,469,395,924
ERAfR Financial liabilities:

ELl R At REMATERFI  Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,360,404,264 - - 145,257,005 6,682,108 - - 3,512,343,377
RANEL Placements from banks and other financial institutions - 116,293,545 2,311,596,701 892,869,614 - - - 3,320,759,860
TSR R Derivative financial liabilities - 1,881,367,488 1,186,230,466 733,849,056 722,300,488 24,101,228 - 4,547,848,726
RULTFER Customer deposits 18,878,417,912 14,580,361,502 3,379,748,931 3,307,311,973 926,451,884 . . 41,072,292,202
AR AER Financial liabilities held for trading - 2,256,888,061 7,285,408,246 114,262,916 - - - 9,656,559,223
Sl & Rh R PR Repurchase agreements - - - . . . . .
NATERS Bonds payable - - 1,045,183,027 572,119,988 2,102,220,796 - - 3,719,523,811
Hithrata i Other financial liabilities - 819,819 1,386,803,073 - - - - 1,387,622,892
Ed =gy Total financial liabilities 22,238,822,176 18,835,730,415 16,594,970,444 5,765,670,552 3,757,655,276 24,101,228 - 67,216,950,091
TRENME SRR Net liquidity (16,342,175,000) (3,977,091,544) (6,362,405,383) 11,595,595,395 16,344,346,080 6,880,846,611 6,113,329,674 14,252,445,833
RIMEGEEI Commitments 1,196,457,077 1,157,452,871 2,395,646,167 5,953,944,106 3,239,919,578 75,983,190 - 14,019,402,989

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



I Notes to Financial Statements

%S5 MTE

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

F2021 %12 B 31 H, ARBENERETRERACKREHTH

The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets

HEIEAE 2T : and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 is as follows:
2021
JaHA / BNEHEIE 11™AR 1E341A8 31MAETE 1E5%F 5FME TCHARR &it
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1to 3 months 3 months to 1year 1to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
T Financial assets:

MERAFRPRBITRI
RER

ERENL RIS
FHES
RHMEEREF
TEERER
ENBREERA
BRI
HithFade s
HithZRE =
ERAFEIT
BRI

(B0l e E Ath R 77 BRI
FANE
TR
TRAETFR
RHMEEREA G
SEHEMERE~R
Rzf 5335
Hith& R i
RS

TRENE SR

Cash and deposits with the Central Bank
Precious metals

Due from banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

Reverse repurchase financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Other debt investments

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
Derivative financial liabilities

Customer deposits

Financial liabilities held-for-trading
Repurchase agreements

Bonds payable

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity

2,703,673,625

3,544,261,854

54,881,757

4,976,044

6,841,718,611

2,597,863

1,282,580,347

1,432,826,570

4,144,204,294

572,679,028

311,053,957

656,111,508

7,973,000

747,935,620

7,502,945,395

1,783,125,347

24,208,877

1,125,434,708

822,215,040

1,103,846,826

13,996,896,198

3,333,920,938

1,156,991,988

1,407,357,614

12,376,085,434

4,630,931,250

345,137,292

23,317

5,324,004,002

145,533,300

3,500,820,381

1,285,539,961

6,204,494,006

1,285,539,961

3,544,261,854

8,623,264,827

2,334,915,183

4,541,743,724

1,432,826,570

43,399,017,080

10,466,189,863

340,238,878

6,307,793,280

14,587,660,670

10,722,299,747

20,382,313,710

19,571,366,286

5,814,697,911

4,786,360,342

82,172,491,946

1,803,043,004

3,061,874,911

5,016,804,448

143,258,548

4,108,987,656

1,946,301,552

12,187,667,015

- 1,062,102,463 836,977,488 985,014,835 1,418,063,206 1,288,596 - 4,303,446,588
18,075,663,030 14,463,143,493 4,000,805,651 3,777,487,906 1,495,102,616 - - 41,812,202,696
- 180,333,530 5,602,141,263 1,120,394,158 - - - 6,902,868,951
- 1,190,848,225 - - - - - 1,190,848,225
- 309,680,255 218,916,542 236,042,256 1,094,006,074 - - 1,858,645,127
- 1,228,184 628,378,076 - - - - 629,606,260
19,878,706,034 20,269,211,061 16,304,023,468 10,371,185,359 4,007,171,896 1,288,596 - 70,831,586,414

(13,570,912,754)

(5,681,550,391)

(5,581,723,721)

10,011,128,351

15,564,194,390

5,813,409,315

4,786,360,342

11,340,905,532

RINEBRI

Commitments

571,585,513

1,053,362,967

2,924,320,708

7,476,937,831

2,056,488,778

14,082,695,797
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W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

3. WA

FABHEIENTZREEERBFX, CR-BNREE~mBY
Wk ARSI S RIERZE WS =ETHHN
o AARHHNLEERNBF B WA GERTFHiKE
FERNEERRK, ARFERFQARZE/ TERNERMNIENE
oMo

KTABHNEEER S E2THMZ XA, FasiiFiEx
TN ERRRIRERENRERINE, HERFRITHS
R CIRAG B NHRERSNEF NN EEER R,

FAEIRREEEREN HaEEEHKETING, HEX2ME
éﬁ&@%@@&ﬁﬁ\ﬁ%h%\ﬂ@mﬁ\ﬁﬁMﬁ%of
W mEckss EekET, & @Ak S R KR FIZIRAE
TR,

FTRBREAEKA NS BRRBERAPES AR DA %&
FEIRTIKE KA ETREEERS BHNSHER IAER

%Fﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂhﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁm %M$ﬂliﬁﬁm%10
WA FNHZREEURTRZHTR, SEFHR LXK
ENE. AR EEMNES. RITICEEERZZ KA
HttEMIT A, ROTKEPHNEENLZFNRMEEHERXK,

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from open
positions in interest rate, foreign exchange rate products
and precious metal products. Market risk arises from
both trading and non-trading business. The objective of
market risk management is to avoid excessive losses in
earnings and shareholder's fund due to market risk, and to
minimise the negative impact from inherent volatility risks
of financial instruments.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank's market
risk exposure and is responsible for setting up market risk
policies with approval by the Asset & Liability Committee.
Market Risk exposures are reported to the Asset & Liability
Committee and Board Risk Management Committee on a
regular basis.

The Bank monitors and manages market risk in accordance
with established framework and policies. The monitoring
and measurement methods mainly include sensitivity
analysis, Expected Shortfall (ES), Value-at-Risk (VaR)
and stress testing. Prior to launch of new product or
new business, market risk will be properly identified and
addressed.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities
into the trading book or banking book according to
the characteristics of different accounts. Trading book
mainly includes freely tradable financial instruments and
commodity positions held for trading purpose or to avoid
risks in other items of the trading account. The market risk
in trading book depends on the tools of the transactions,
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, stock
prices, commodity prices and credit spreads. Banking book
includes financial instruments other than trading book.
The main risks in banking book are interest rate and credit
spread risks.

31 CER

TERHTFARATREFMAGHE BB URINCRZ T ER
B FLEE RS O LA F R BT iR shm 5 R R,

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank's currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions

F 2022 F 12 B 31 B, ARAWNEXE=RAEIEHMHEIR are subject to exchange rate fluctuations.
MmF:
As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's assets and liabilities
by currency are as follows:
2022
S ARM Hith ait
usD RMB Others Total
(RMB (RMB (RMB
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
&A= Assets:
& R AF PR IR THRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 526,188,754 5,928,332,868 12,046,084 6,466,567,706
aERE Precious metals - 3,069,452,064 - 3,069,452,064
TFRUELFRIT Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,124,832,169 1,389,415,971 240,163,703 2,754,411,843

Placements with banks and other financial

FHEE institutions

R MERIE Financial assets held-for-trading
PrEERAR Derivative financial assets
ENREERIE™ Reverse repurchase financial assets
RIRETRFIER Loans and advances to customers
EhEAUE R Other debt investments
HithERiEr Other financial assets

BRI Total financial assets

faf: Liabilities:

2,587,850,386 1,434,733,044 259,227,561 4,281,810,991

- 1,837,337,491 - 1,837,337,491
200,388,559 4,289,297,066 679,712 4,490,365,337
- 4,096,388,908 - 4,096,388,908

3,583,019,224  36,098,517,080 670,715410  40,352,251,714
137,156,813 8,014,331,527 - 851,488,340

357,356,985 907,831,332 2,826,163 1,268,014,480

8,516,792,890 67,065,637,351 1,185,658,633 76,768,088,874

Nl R B S RNMEREIR  Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,455,176 3,507,667,460 - 3,511,122,636
Placements from banks and other financial
I institutions 1,924,047,581 1,324,373,355 45,588,889 3,294,009,825
RBMEERA R Financial liabilities held-for-trading 4,543,651 9,647,552,205 - 9,652,095,856
TR Derivative financial liabilities 192,999,975 4,354,153,926 694,825 4,547,848,726
R MTFR Customer deposits 7,966,218,165  32,431,299,478 528,260,734  40,925,778,377
|vARNGE=4 Bonds payable - 3,553,115,045 - 3,553,115,045
EHEIM RS Repurchase agreements - - . .
HithmA Other financial liabilities 354,832,811 1,031,723,886 1,066,195 1,387,622,892
ERAGREIT Total financial liabilities 10,446,097,359  55,849,885,355 575,610,643  66,871,593,357
AP ARk Net position (1,929,304,469)  11,215,751,996 610,047,990 9,896,495,517
Notional amounts of derivative financial
TESRTAZNEH instruments 149,631,018,864 326,550,018,693  4,821,344,132  481,002,381,689
E5TEE Commitments 1,973,721,928  10,781,338,936  1,264,342,125  14,019,402,989
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W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

F2021F 12 B 31 H, mRABNE XA RARZEHMATIR As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's assets and liabilities UTREEMTEARTHERT, IMDXRUTICETRERE Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a

M by currency are as follows: S BT X H e FEA R0 change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of
2021 the Bank is as follows:
ES ARM Hith ait 2022 2021
usD RMB Others Total
~ (RMB _ (RMB ~ (RMB B EIFE R X FE R R M
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent) Impact on profit Impact on profit
EAas Assets: TETH) Change in Foreign Exchange Rate
M R AF IR R TRRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 610,372,246 5,586,591,683 7,530,077 6,204,494,006 WARIEE 1% 1% change against RMB 13.192.565 (33,717,859)
- .
Bk Precious metols 1,285,539,961 ) 1,285,539,961 AL HFHE 1% +1% change against RMB (13,192,565) 33,717,859
TERREI R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,803,879423  1,319,538,770 420,843,661 3,544,261,854
Placements with banks and other financial N B2 e = B A A i 2R R pOLE = PR ; :
Fihae institutions 6,872,570,362  1,736,264,717 - 8608835079 %/U:@Z'\w,‘ Ea et RV NAL \ﬁﬁ?u\?’]i—rmﬁl—nf@: A The‘ sensitivity onoly5|§ obgye is performed on the
B WET7HHEMERRTEN, SIMMmARTCENSIETREER) basis that assets and liabilities have static currency
RS ERE Financial assets held-for-trading - 2,197,434,189 - 2,197,434,189 S TR B 2201 risk structure. It shows the impact of a change in other
FTESRE Derivative financial assets 535721351  4,004,837,813 1,184,560 4,541,743,724 currency rates against RMB on the Bank's profit before
s - o BRI EFTUTRIE: tax, given other variables remain constant.
ENRESRAT Reverse repurchase financial assets - 1,432,434,176 - 1,432,434,176
RIERAIEER Loans and advances to customers 6,656,367,480  31,869,272,047 634,465,503  39,160,105,030 (1) CEHREZESMHTARMFIREBEXEE (FiE The analysis is based on below assumptions:
AN STERAAHE ST EH 19% 5 RS =PV
Hithfg s Other debt investments 127,480,347 10,309,291,590 - 10,436,771,937 1) SEERAETEIRED 19% S PRAYL 5245t 5 o .
(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and
SR 1 1 N —_ N ~ - .
LS Other financiol assets 19,902,684 312,602,580 7,733,614 340,238,878 (2) BEMMCERETHMZEE MM ARTCERRNR®FE; losses caused by one per cent change of the closing
ERMATEAIT Total financial assets 16,626,293,893  60,053,807,526  1,071,757,415  77,751,858,834 rate (mid rate) of the different foreign currencies
i Liobilities 3) WLERHMOAEEE~ARERKRINIE. against RMB as at the balance sheet date;
dim. N
BNl K At SR ADIZEREI  Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,157,255 1,943,114,445 - 1,946,271,700 m?g?tfﬁ{gﬁi&, 5[%@1{%&2‘&@3‘;‘E%)%;Hfﬁ'ﬂjfmﬂg@? (2) Exchgnge rate f|Uctuotion refers to the ﬂUCtUOtiOﬂ
Placements from banks and other financial PR (LRI e 5 BRI DT IS R A Al against RMB in the same direction simultaneously;
FRANAE institutions 7,044,834,331 4,953,935,450 16,195,443  12,014,965,224
RPMERAE Financial liabilities held-for-trading 6,047,193  6,893,701,482 - 6899,748,675 (3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.
TSRS Derivative financial liabilities 489,669,609  3,812,772,021 1,004,958 4,303 446,588 Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
RUFER Customer deposits 6,302,923,954  35,016,542,225 393,281,830  41,712,748,009 exchange rate fluctuation on the Bank's earnings may
differ from above sensitivity analysis.
NAFERS Bonds payable - 1,720,431,429 - 1,720,431,429 y y
EHEIMERZE = Repurchase agreements - 1,190,494,609 - 1,190,494,609
Hiti& B iR Other financial liabilities 45,616,900 560,455,459 23,533,901 629,606,260
ERAHET Total financial liabilities 13,892,249,242  56,091,447,120 434,016,132 70,417,712,494
B R Net position 2,734,044,651  3,962,360,406 637,741,283 7,334,146,340
Notional amounts of derivative financial
FTAESRMTAZNER instruments 161,423,495609 346250271391 4913810592  512,587,577,592
SRR Commitments 3615315747  8,827,032,382  1,640,347,668  14,082,695,797
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W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

3.2 FEN L

=1

REWFETEBREARSZ BNSHE AN ZKA EMINE
REETIRENF BERZNERM T AEMBE MK . XHWKAH
NHZINREURTRZNIR, SEMNR. LR RENE.
BAmihd. EEMNES,

TR ERIERNEATEBREER TN NELR, A
WEREVEH BN ST 5 WA i XL,

TRBEARHZNEEERRRA 97.5% BEXE TUER
FREAR SRR (Expected Shortfall) B9 SEIEINE. ZATEIA
FNEMFER, CENBFRNEFRILRFERRRBIFIER
LB MEE G E MRS, FEAREHRE (ES) RRIIR
KNHHIE, IANNBEITEERATE-EGKERITEN
BERR,

FERIMIRE, ARBERAHEEME 99% EEXE THH
REEMME (VaR) o« KEEHME (VaR) STHAREHRK (ES)
BBRR D @I BN LR Z M B9 5 XL
B (VaR) WERRBIIEEHERANEUREHTHITKHDSH
HAOARRF S TG R, Framlilit Regis) K R 75 5
HELREATNRERZ.

B VoR M ES EHETZNMNEETR, BEXERENR
REE—ERGIFME, Hl0:

s EERZERT, AIE 1 1MRZ ANUEARHTERER]
FHENRIRGE, EBEDZKEHTERDETENER
T, 115 BMEIRRIL I RER T A SEFRiER;

* VoR M ES B HWHEEITE, FRARMRZZEXRFCH
BEEINS BB ;

o AEHIERFMERRERNAIETENEE, F—EER
TEAERIRERR, Ral=fIshET.
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(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading book

Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading
purpose or to avoid risks of other items in the trading
account. The market risk in trading book depends on the
tools of the transaction, including interest rates, exchange
rates, stock prices, commodity prices, and credit spreads,
etc.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach
for the calculation of regulatory market risk capital and
uses the Internal Models Approach to measure and to
control trading market risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES)
within a 97.5 per cent confidence interval over a one-
day holding period, using the historical simulation
method, as a control for market risk. This method
assumes observed historical market movements can be
used to imply possible future changes in market rates.
ES is the average of the worst losses in the distribution,
assuming that the losses exceed the specified
percentile.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR
within a 99 per cent confidence interval over a one-
day holding period. VaR uses the same loss distribution
as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether the
exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market
volatility. All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO
with recommended actions and resolutions.

Although VaR and ES are important tools to measure
market risk, there are certain limitations on the
assumptions of the model, such as:

* In most cases, the assumption that a position can be
hedged or sold within the observation period of one
trading day is reasonable, but in the case of severe
liquidity shortage in the market over a long period
of time, the assumption of the observation period of
one trading day may not be in line with the actual
situation;

* VaR and ES are calculated based on the day's
closing benchmark and do not reflect the risks that
may be faced by positions held on the trade day;

» Historical data is used as a basis for determining
the possible range of future results, and may not
be applicable to all possible situations, especially
exceptions.

AIRANTERRK (ES) MEEMTE, FABEBENL
RfESNE, HHIRITEERY R LR E R T R L IARR.
XEMH AT AT XCERRM T RATEES, URXH
BERIR IR IR

R 2022 F12 B 31 BN BFHEAHRE (ES) WART 1,047
hw (20214128 318: AKR™M 1,303 A7) -

RITKE

BEAGERIATSHRANRNEEEERNER L. B h
BRREEBHI RN GERZHRENIRITHCE TEIF =X
BB

HEAR RN IS BFRRESHUNEFFESD, B
EIRRITH SR BRNRRIFFHOHRTASNEF 1 B8
i

TRBERADITTIR, SEEENHRMIBBEITEENE
RITICER R XL o BT F R GURE = 7 FAEXS T &
TRINDH, BRHREFBRANRE TN EB TR
MERGPREZBHENIR. MRS IEIMEIR M. ELt
TREHRTEED, KHIRVRRHEEHRLTNMENTIIER,

RRBIRAMAT BN RR=EFNEEED NG EE
H TR R ENR , UEBRITHRAS M E R E
BIARIERENXTIRITA = A ARIFIE. ERY, ZEDNHBA
FRIFER T AR E ST KA R HATRE HE# IRITIER
HOR SR IR R AR EIRR R K,

To complement the ES measure, the Bank perform stress
and scenario tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to
event risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings
of plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2022 was RMB10.47
million (The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2021 was
RMB13.03 million).

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness
of the interest rate risk management structure. The
Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) Division
supports the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk
profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in
net interest earnings under a broad range of possible
economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified
using analysis tools include repricing schedules and
sensitivity analysis. They provide indications of the
potential impact of interest rate changes on interest
income and economic value through the analysis of the
sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest
rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies with different
repricing periods, currencies and embedded options
mismatches in the longer tenor will experience greater
impact in the price-value of interest rate positions than
similar positions in the shorter tenor.

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method
of net interest income and economic value of net assets
regularly to determine the adequacy of capital in
meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements
on the balance sheet. Such tests are also performed
to provide early warnings of potential extreme losses,
facilitating the proactive management of interest
rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.
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W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

BTFER, CEMRRNMEZLHERZZIKE THIRLED

7N EIRAEZ SR T E IR M

F2022F12 B 31 H, xRERITKELSHFAERNE K

AR EREENHHEAAREREEDTNT:

The risks arising from the trading book, such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices
are managed and controlled under the market risk
framework.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

2022
31NAR 3PMBE1E 1E54 5&EE e &it
Within 3 3 months to1 1to 5years 5years above Non-interest Total
months year bearing
&PFEL Assets:
MEREFHRHPRE  Cash and deposit with the
TR Central Bank 5,926,790,782 - - - 539,776,924  6,466,567,706
Due from banks and other
ERENLFRIR financial institutions 1,834,459,386 - - - 109,785  1,834,569,171
Placements with banks and
FHES other financial institutions 3,571,130,199 693,631,667 - - 17,049,125  4,281,810,991
Reverse repurchase
ENRESRE financial assets 4,095,779,264 - - - 609,644 4,096,388,908
Loans and advances to
BRI RN customers 22,269,226,869  14,951,610,202 445310,717 137,358,330 443,366,812  38,246,872,930
HERIEE Other debt investments 1,160,000,000  3,089,292,000  2,302,000,000 1,512,792,630 87,403,710  8,151,488,340
HithEmhEr~ Other financial assets - - - - 39,215,062 39,215,062
ERMEFEIT Total financial assets 38,857,386,500  18,734,533,869  2,747,310,717 1,650,150,960 1,127,531,062 63,116,913,108
fafs: Liabilities:
Bl R EMEFY]  Due to banks and other
HTF IR financial institutions 3,365,185,713 143,110,350 - - 2,826,573  3,511,122,636
Placement from banks and
RNEE other financial institutions 2,407,001,826 879,880,403 - - 7,127,596  3,294,009,825
T TE =R Customer deposits 35,921,484,823  3,226,644,107 851,541,411 - 926,108,036  40,925,778,377
SHOM SRR
R Repurchase agreements - - - - -
RfHf5ss Bonds payable 1,045,190,360 495,391,560  1,996,778,605 - 15,754,520  3,553,115,045
HtiE R Other financial liabilities - - - = 107,406,858 107,406,858
Z£MEER GE1)  Structured deposits (Note 1) 2,335,100,000 113,830,000 - - - 2,448,930,000
SREAGRET Total financial liabilities 45,073,962,722  4,858,856,420  2,848,320,016 - 1,059,223,583  53,840,362,741
Derivative financial assets
TSR (£2) (Note 2) 5,223,233,225 69,645,989 - - - 5,292,879,214
Derivative financial liabilities
TEERARCE2) (Note 2) 5,175,003,705 67,481,000 - - - 5,242,484,705
FER RO Net position (6,168,346,702)  13,877,842,438  (101,009,299) 1,650,150,960 68,307,479  9,326,944,876

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

F 2021 %12 A 31 H, £ARRITKESCSNAMENE K

AEREREEN BREFAREREEDHWT:

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's assets/liabilities of

banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

2021
31BN 3TMAETHE 1E5% 5 E itE ait
Within 3 3 months to1 1to 5years 5years above Non-interest Total
months year bearing
T Assets:
MEREFHRPRE  Cash and deposit with the
TR Central Bank 5,584,607,892 - - - 619,886,114  6,204,494,006
Due from banks and other
FRELFRI financial institutions 2,334,015,442 - - - 350  2,334,015,792
Placements with banks and
FHEE other financial institutions 7,481,829,172 1,115,367,785 - - 11,638,122 8,608,835,079
Reverse repurchase
EINREERAS  financial assets 1,432,021,043 - - - 413,133 1,432,434,176
Loans and advances to
RIREITRANERER customers 18,762,810,423  18,017,226,289 500,946,551 176,351,387 303,174,907  37,760,509,557
HEAUEE Other debt investments 2,335,937,327 3,283,926,700 4,542,811,212 145,533,300 128,563,398 10,436,771,937
HittRar~ Other financial assets - - - - 34,935,920 34,935,920
ERBEFFAIT Total financial assets 37,931,221,299  22,416,520,774  5,043,757,763 321,884,687 1,098,611,944  66,811,996,467
fafR: Liabilities:
El R E &R/  Due to banks and other
TERERIR financial institutions 1,803,042,943 141,141,427 - - 2,087,330 1,946,271,700
Placement from banks and
IKANEE other financial institutions 7,825,146,964 4,097,012,334 - - 92,805,926  12,014,965,224
U IERR Customer deposits 35,484,016,626 3,655,733,025 1,407,731,806 - 1,165,266,552  41,712,748,009
SEHEIMERAFF Repurchase agreements 1,190,000,000 - - - 494,609 1,190,494,609
RZfHERE5 Bonds payable 528,596,798 188,042,256 998,137,580 - 5,654,795  1,720,431,429
Hithm i 67 Other financial liabilities - - - - 109,023,750 109,023,750
ERAGRET Total financial liabilities 46,830,803,331 8,081,929,042 2,405,869,386 - 1,375,332,962 58,693,934,721
Derivative financial assets
TEERA~ (GE2) (Note 2) 12,435,181,560 1,917,488,750 127,514,000 - - 14,480,184,310
Derivative financial
FTESmAEGE2) liabilities (Note 2) 12,456,388,496 1,880,831,500 130,398,000 - - 14,467,617,996
FZEXERO Net position (8,920,788,968)  14,371,248,982 2,635,004,377 321,884,687 (276,721,018) 8,130,628,060
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A1 REWEERAR S WA MRITHE Z B EREL T,

E 2. ARBARTKESSHITESRE /| ARREXEE
NEREEN BRI AREREEHITOM.

ARSI RTARREENH, WEEFRTRLRE
HREEIT EEMES T EERMAGHNEENE .

UTRAEEMEEFTNERT, MERITERLENEGELRXY
AR AR,

Note 1: The structured deposits represent the position
between the trading book and the banking book.

Note 2: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of
banking book are analysed based on the earlier of re-
pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and
liabilities based on maturity date for fixed rate items or
re-pricing date for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest
rate movement on the Bank's net profit is as follows:

TETD) Change in interest rate

FIZRHEHN 100 MES + 100 basis points

FIRFL 100 MES - 100 basis points

2022 2021
X5 R AR xR AR

Impact on net profit Impact on net profit

(1,448,343) (18,123,540)

1,448,343 18,123,540

M ESEESHETFACMAGREERSHAEXKREN. &
I A HNEE—FERFET L, RMA—FAEQBETH
AMEHNERENIT R ATIRERITER BUNIEN, EFLL
T™Ri%:

) FABE=TARR="ARE—FREMEN XA
PR ERIRIRTER X HRE B EHE N HEIH;

(2) Wean R AL BEF R BT 1T858,

Q) BEFEMa Al aHEHEMETN,;

@) EFRREHOFBSHFITESRTAUIIIES AT
®IMIE

MFEF DAER, AEASHAATRESRAHIE
PR T AE S L BRI SR BV R,

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis
that assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk
structure. It reflects the impact of interest rate movement
on the Bank's net interest income over a one-year
period. The key assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less
than three months or between three months and one
year are assumed to be re-priced in the middle of the
respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other
changes;

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial
instruments are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

4. RAME

[aNE, BETHZS5ETTERRENEFRZH, HE—
A FreE R B B 2 — A BPR RSZAEIINE. AR S IER
Z2m (BRULARESFRZA) FENFZET, THHERIA
DANBEZREILER. AT, AARMBERRITZEHIERE
FERAGHES M. Flt, NFZBALEHNEIRZERHIA,
ATz UES A MG A ABEARNE. B, BRIl
EREMTZMESRERRKASREHE, HEtRKz, U
T PR B Z i IR,

FrRABZHERBIRIT:

(i) URAARNEITEEETHIT N SERENERES / MR
5 (BETESMERS [ SRHHR) DHEEAHSRZHN
HEEQANE. HETHSRZEN, WERERETN
REAANMEXSZRIZWHHIRNBEQANE. 200
BEFTIFNA ZIKEEE;

(i F12 BRIz EtER A E 57 fHTHRRE,
ENNKEMES ARNERS;

(i) NEBRTIRYERTFLEMERZ BN EREEH, HaR
NMEUZRHZMNERTEEE, SRESHERREZZN
EMELSAANERTTER, RAERNKLZZMIGER
EREFRIRR, MIKEEMRAARNERINRE;

(iv) BERERDEAE@RMERBEESF R, FERERRT
EEBBRHZEERKF RIREE BRENN ST A RN
B, BEEHRZEFRNAANEUREREFIEGLSE,
RN 5% EHFRHRRARY M BIMITERFE,

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Subject to the existence of an active market, such as an
authorised securities exchange, the market value is the
best reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As
there is no available market value for some of the financial
assets and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the
discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods
described below are adopted to determine the fair value of
these assets and liabilities. However, the value determined
by such methods would depend on the amount of future
cash flows, time period assumption and discount rates
used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair
value by reference to the quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available,
the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows
or quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying
amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at the
balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate
at the time the loans are extended shall be determined
using prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes
in the credit quality of loans within the portfolio are
not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as
impairment provision which shall be deducted from the
carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair
value of demand deposits and saving deposits without
specific maturity date is determined based on the
amount payable on demand. The fair value of fixed
deposits is estimated using discounted cash flows
method with the prevailing deposit rate for the remaining
tenor of the fixed deposit as the discount rate.
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AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

KRBEERARMMER T ERT UL LTI
() WEIN: HNEERRILIHAREERNTIZRN;
(i HETN: HNEERGHERAHTHE,

HERREARARIANEN—TMBEAR, EXRRIEZWER,
NRZNIEHTEBUBRAANEEVER M. FAREENG
BRBLZEEERITEANAER, FIUIEENEGERBMERS
BERE, UBERIHNONEEER.

FATRILT AEHEINGRBRAANENGEME. NRKA
BRANGE, BERANRIRIRABEIEREIIRIETRNAN
T, thoh, REPHNE. BASH. RigMGERES
EHREIRENES, HtbHEEEFEEELMITEE

8BS
TARRFRE#ITAANMEGENESR~RYAR=TBX:
B—RR. RFATHNE

XL ERAEBEREFMAGRERTZRNGHEES
o WIAMILR RN REER BRI LiBHAR
RBFEEATHINENEERE.

FIER HERASHALUBIHINREEINGEERA

XEEARBRIITERERE, MAANNTIESHRELEED
L EENE, IMEAGSERESRITAOT. BRENMERA
—Eh725EERERANIZERIERR RAAXMERNEH
FREBRRRSNFRRE, BOEMR, INOTH /8, 7
Bz /=8, FURXEME. MXER, KHER. SR
I AR Re 4516 14 7= o

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value
is determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter
inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject
to verification and review processes. Other valuation
control includes review and analysis of daily profit and
loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according
to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Financial instruments included in this category are precious
metals whose market prices are published by Shanghai
Gold Exchange and Shanghai Futures Exchange on daily
basis.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted by
market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly investments in bonds and
negotiable certificates of deposit, loans, foreign exchange
forward/swaps, precious metal forward/swaps, pledge-
style repo, interest rate swaps, currency swaps, commodity
options, foreign exchange options and structured products.

BZRR. AEBSHTREEENSESIRRANMGERAR
XML ERACAEGETZRIZNEM LRNEERTNUES
o, BRARABRRANRNEANER~REETESH T EE
BRI R R ARG ERANED 5 BN R RN

U EBBRIZKR T ED AR ABETRAGZ 2N ERE—HZ
HEEN. M, BFEMNEHZERTRZAERRR, &
TRNAIPTIRE 2 AR ERG T2 REE A,

TRITTUAANETENERTAENAANERR:

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-
observable inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed
on reasonable assumptions made on market conditions.
The financial instruments included in this category are
mainly precious metal options and equity options with
significant unobservable components.

All the assumptions and techniques mentioned above
provide a consistent basis for the fair value measurement
of the Bank's assets and liabilities. However, they may
differ with other institutions' practice. Therefore, the fair
values disclosed by different financial institutions may not
be entirely comparable.

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments measured in fair value:

2022
RANEITEERNBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
JEETH BEAUR EERTYR ait
S BWAE BWAE
Quoted Significant Significant non- Total
market price  observable inputs  observable inputs
(B—BR) (BZRBRR) (B=BR)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
nEE Precious metals 3,069,452,064 - - 3,069,452,064
R EREF Financial assets held-for-trading - 1,837,337,491 - 1,837,337,491
TR Derivative financial assets 1,050,213,592 3,440,106,549 45,196 4,490,365,337
UAAMETEEETITAY  Loans and advances to customers
HRIRER B R U AR at fair value through profit or loss - 2,099,061,672 - 2,099,061,672
Loans and advances to customers
at fair
UARMEITEERTEITAE  value through other
LR A U I R TR BT R R comprehensive income - 696,434,857 - 696,434,857
H{Esg R Other debt investments - 8,151,488,340 - 8,151,488,340
ERMAFEIT Total financial assets 4,119,665,656 16,224,428,909 45,196  20,344,139,761
Financial liabilities held-for-
R MEER TR trading - 9,652,095,856 - 9,652,095,856
T ERA G Derivative financial liabilities 950,364,255 3,597,401,230 83,241 4,547,848,726
ERIAGRET Total financial liabilities 950,364,255 13,249,497,086 83,241  14,199,944,582
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TEE, FREAREEULANEHENE-—BRRNE_BRE
e AL A N2

EERIAA, TER, s2RENAEMEREFNERAGHAR
MESHENNKEMEHTERESR.

FBZERI2AMNETE

RENE=—RRAANETENEMAGHFIRASERR
Mz EEETESNT:

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level
1 and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets
and liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

Management believes that the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of other financial assets
and financial liabilities is not material as at the balance
sheet date.

Level 3 fair value measurement

Reconciliation of Level 3 financial instruments is as below:

2021
A[RMEITEFERANRNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
SRR BEAUR BEERAIME &ait
S WAE WAE
Quoted Significant Significant non- Total
market price  observable inputs  observable inputs
(B—BR) (BZBR) (B=ZBR)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
nEE Precious metals 1,285,539,961 - - 1,285,539,961
R EERAF Financial assets held-for-trading - 2,197,434,189 - 2,197,434,189
TSR Derivative financial assets 639,486,133 3,902,208,479 49,112 4,541,743,724
UAsMEITEEETEhITAE  Loans and advances to customers
BRI O R U IR AN B =R at fair value through profit or loss - 1,396,034,236 - 1,396,034,236
Loans and advances to customers
at fair
UAANMETEEETEITAE  value through other
R I Ea Y& BT TR AT 2R comprehensive income - 2,561,239,526 - 2,561,239,526
HENIR A Other debt investments - 10,436,771,937 - 10,436,771,937
ERAFET Total financial assets 1,925,026,094 20,493,688,367 49,112  22,418,763,573
Financial liabilities held-for-
R MEMAGR trading - 6,899,748,675 - 6,899,748,675
TTEERA G Derivative financial liabilities 428,784,422 3,874,595,844 66,322  4,303,446,588
EFRAGRET Total financial liabilities 428,784,422 10,774,344,519 66,322 11,203,195,263

200 AT (PE)ABMRAF 2022 FERS

2022

PTEERE TSRS &it

Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total

FXRE Opening balance 49,112 (66,322) (17,210)
LHAFSEMAEE  Movement through profit or loss during

AR the year (3,916) (16,919) (20,835)

FRRE Closing balance 45,196 (83,241) (38,045)

2021

TEEREr TSR G ait

Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total

FHPRE Opening balance 2,866 (26,353) (23,487)
LIRS IMASE  Movement through profit or loss during

TR the year 46,246 (39,969) 6,277

FERRE Closing balance 49,112 (66,322) (17,210)
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FZEREMITRNBBES T
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TR,

PRGBS, KREBDERMEAFIT—FEZREI, HIK
ENEREARNE,
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(£ 7) o BFRBETRABROFEREERTHROFZX
EEHRAR LN BERRENRREES U RREATEWEH, #
R BERMBERN QAN ESKENMERL,

FITURMRRAITTNOER A G R EER W R EthERIIEEF
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Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 financial instruments

The Bank's level 3 financial instruments are mainly
precious metal options and equity options with significant
unobservable components. All level 3 financial instruments
are hedged back-to-back with the parent company in
Singapore, hence the fluctuation of valuation inputs by a
certain degree will have limited impact on net profit and
other comprehensive income. Therefore, although non-
observable inputs are used in level 3 valuation models, and
management's judgments and estimates on them lead to the
valuation uncertainties, the Bank believes that changes in the
judgments and estimates will not have significant impact on
the Bank's profit and equity.

Fair value of other financial instruments (not measured at
fair value)

Other financial assets mainly include deposits with the
central bank, due from banks, placements with banks,
reverse repurchase financial assets and loans and
advances at amortised cost.

Except for loans and advances to customers, most financial
assets are due within one year, therefore their carrying
amounts are close to their fair values.

Loans and advances to customers are presented at
amortised cost plus accrued interest, and deducted by
impairment losses (Notes VI.7). Since the interest rates
for loans and advances are adjusted timely upon loan
prime rate, and the net values of impaired loans reflect the
recoverable amount by deducting the impairment losses,
the carrying amounts of loans and advances are close to
their fair values.

The Bank's financial liabilities that are measured at
amortised cost mainly include due to banks and other
financial institutions, placements from banks and other
financial institutions, customer deposits, repurchase
agreements and debt securities issued. As at the balance
sheet date, the carrying amounts of the Bank's financial
liabilities are close to their fair values.

The above assumptions and methodologies provide the
same basis for fair value valuation of the Bank's assets
and liabilities. However, that may differ with other financial
institutions' practice, hence the fair value disclosed by
different financial institutions may not be comparable.

+—. RBEBAXAKRRS
1. XBEBRINERA

FAEE, TISHEREABRIKET:

(ORE: YA SYNCIR

(2) EREWFAFE,

() 5ERARFA—FAEHTHIBIE MBI ;

4) WERABKMEHEEHBIRES ;

(5) WERABFEMEARFZIBBIRE

6) ERENEERL;

(7) ERBEKERL;

(8) ARENEBKAENARSHXZETINKERR;

9) ARENXBEBEARNBRBXRBEEAR, UREH
KRETHRERSS

(10) ERBNEERABENA. XREBARHSHXREY]
BOSKRERL S HEHTHIBIE MR ;

) ARBFFBEVERANEMR RSN (BESARMNFA
8) NEERWEEKERI;

(12) WARABKEHEEH N EVNEE R EEE R,

(13) WERATBMEAZ M ELEER;

(14) ERENRUM B FEEE,

PR NSILSYNC]

M=k 350
Nature of business

RERTERAR RITRERARS

United Overseas Bank Limited  Banking and Financial Service

Xl. Related Party Transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties

Details of the Bank's major related parties in 2022 are as
follows:

M
2
3)
4)
®)
(©)
)
(8)

%

Parent of the Bank;

Subsidiaries of the Bank;

Other entities controlled by the parent of the Bank;
Investors that have joint control over the Bank;
Investors that have significant influence over the Bank;
Joint ventures of the Bank;

Associates of the Bank;

Principal individual investors of the Bank and close
family members of such individuals;

Key management personnel of the Bank or of the
parent and close family members of such individuals;

(10) Other entities controlled or jointly controlled

by the Bank's principal individual investors, key
management personnel or close family members of
such individuals;

(17) Joint ventures or associates of other members (including

a parent and subsidiary) of a group of which the Bank
is a member;

(12) Joint ventures or associates of an entity that has joint

control over the Bank;

(13) Joint ventures of an entity that has significant influence

over the Bank;

(14) Enterprise pension funds established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

pEdiiga)

Registered Address

s

Singapore

R AN

Share Capital Shareholding

#h 78.551Z7¢
SGD7,855 Million

100%
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3. FAFERASETREE XK ZHEMKET

RZEATEHHNAE
Entity controlled by the parent

KERTT (SRAL ) BRAF
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.

KERT (RE) BRRE
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited

KERTT (ENERAL) BRAT
PT Bank UOB Indonesia

LRERBELERAT
UOB Property China Co., Ltd.

ML AERE (L8) BRAE
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd

RERFEERRAT
UOB Asset Management Ltd.

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc.

B (b)) RRERAR

AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., LTD

204  A%HR1T(PE)ABMRQAFE 2022 FERS

NZ=354
Nature of business

RITRERARS
Banking and financial service

RITRERARS
Banking and financial service

RITRERARS

Banking and financial service

DAEREISHEREE. TR
B

Operating, leasing and
management for offices and
commercial facilities

BRHEE, BARTEE, RALH

Consulting and investment
management

REER
Investment management

ERAT
Holding company

BRAFR. AR AL
BRAEW. RARS

Technique services and

consultancy; Application software

development;
Other business consultancy.

AR
Registered Address

SR FEHK
Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

ZEER
Bangkok Thailand

ENERAT HinX
Jakarta Indonesia

RE b
Shanghai China

RE £
Shanghai China

Hins
Singapore
ZE 44

New York USA
RE bR

Beijing China

AR
Registered Capital

SRAWMESR 20 127T
RM2 Billion

ek 248.61Z7T
Baht24.86 Billion

ENERTEILALL 27,966.61 127
IDR2,796.66 Billion

AR 1799 1Z7%
RMB1.799 Billion

%5t 1,555 BT
USD15.55 Million

#rmh 6,300 BT
SGD63 Million

%7t 650 AT
USDé.5 Million

#h 500 A7t

SGD5 Million

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
with during the year are as follows

EERRA
Legal
Representative

PRI
Tan Choon Hin

Hendra
Gunawan

LAIJING WEY

Lifees
Seah Kian Wee

KA

Thio Boon Kiat
Eriberto
Resurreccion de
Guzman

EkErE

Yan Tao Tao

RHAREATMHAE

Entity under the significant influence of the parent

@EFEWVERENE (IR) BRAT
InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

ERFRAREERAT

InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

FERELEESBIEERAR
Shanghai InnoVen Equity Investment
Management Private Limited

RBlig (28 UILBEEERAT
InnoVen (Jiashan) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

Rig (28 tLBESWEL (BREW
InnoVen(Jiashan) Enterprise
Management NT Partership(Limited
Partership)

ANTUREXAES RIS ESEIETIRAT
SIP UOB-KAY HIAN Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

W= MR
Nature of business

EEEEERS
Enterprise management and
consultancy services

RMAARIVSRRESTEWSE
KHmE L RIBAV S5

Financial leasing and related
factoring business

TAERIURABREEE. SIIRE
BEEEBRS

Private equity fund management

and venture capital fund
management services

Bl EE, PUERLE. HRE
FEERS. WSER. EE8518
R%. mHAE

Enterprise management;
Enterprise management

consulting; Social and economic

consulting services; Financial
consulting; Information
consulting services; Market
research

Bl EE, PUERLE. HRE
FEERS. USEB. EE8518
R mHAE

Enterprise management;
Enterprise management

consulting; Social and economic

consulting services; Financial
consulting; Information
consulting services; Market
research

BRI RETEER, IR
HE&EIERS

Private equity fund manage-
ment and venture capital fund
management services

AR
Registered Address

FE JbR
Beijing China

hE X

Tianjin China

hE Lig
Shanghai China

FE T
Zhejiang China

E AT
Zhejiang China

FE FHM
Suzhou China

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AR
Registered Capital

%7t 150 AT
USD1.5 Million

%7t 1,000 AT
USD10 Million

%7t 200 AT
USD2 Million

AEM 1,000 A7t
RMB10 Million

AEM 1,000 A7
RMB10 Million

AR 1,000 At
RMB10 Million

EERRA

Legal

Representative

EUME
Cao Ying Xue

L

I}

Cao Ying Xue

EME
Cao Ying Xue

EME
Cao Ying Xue

CHUAN SIONG
CHENG

pyied
Liu Wei
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I Notes to Financial Statements

WS iRzRMEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

ERFRXBEEAR Key management personnel 4. ZNBDEXBEHZITERS (4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

IREEAR, BREAQARNESR. BENSREEAR.

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor

206

and senior management. RRGTRANER Loans and advances to customers 2022 2021
RARRAXREEARERTIHAF 28 SRAXBRELH) 2T SRARBRELH)
Entity under the significant influence of the Bank's key management Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
W SR SEAnH SHanam st 5 a — -
Nature of business 'Rieﬂgﬁi S‘fere S Addrese /Rfeﬂ;gﬁe S— Lfe)gigfﬁ/\ 4 EERRBELVARAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 250,389,583 0.61 350,558,785 0.87
NEPICEETER wEER (K52) 2BEMRAT  UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co,, Ltd. 66,665,357 0.16 70,733,362 0.18
el (E]) BIEBRAR SEEEAE FE E %7t 3,700 AT RlnE . L ) )
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD37 Million Neo Igloon Hup LBTRNBIRTRABIRAR gho‘”l_%go' Rural Commercial Bank 2,796,596 0.01 - -
0.,
KEREVHEE=FLERAT B FE RiE AR™M 113127t FRIES?
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co,, Ltd.  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB1.13 Billion Tan Kian Siew R ELERAT UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 595,484 . B B,
Kig (L) BRABEBRAR BEEE. BIEBNKRAEESN FE L %75 650 AT w8 o )
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Business information consulting; Corporate  Shanghai China USD&.5 Million Wee Ee Chao BERTRHERAE Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd - - 35,899,900 0.09
Management Co., Ltd management consulting, Investment
management consulting &1t Total 320,447,020 0.78 457,192,047 1.14
B VEMEABRAR mmirs;, Gmdtt0;, AREEMNEER  FE ED %7t 820 AT RER
%, PHIREMEF; BREARS; F—
KETRMHEE
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. Drug production; Drug import and export;  Xiamen China UsSD8.2 Million Goh Bee Leong Due from and placement with
Pharmaceutical Internet information banks and other financial
service. General projects: production of IR ER IR institutions 2022 2021
traditional Chinese medicine extracts;
Health consultation services; Category | 2T EHEARBRALLH) 2T SAXTBRELG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
ENEUBRAR (o) #iE. HEMRSETRES S FON i 2.66228 127 i
Eb)) Efﬁ?%%ﬁ KEVRABRSS ; RERITRRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 2,326,787,961 3295  2,284,072,622 18.75
C) XL
Haw Par Corporation Limited ;Oe)qtl“gﬁg;rfecgtrggrl}gc,tgcrketing and trading  Singapore SGD266.228 Million  Wee Cho Yaw BT ERAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. 101,458,950 1.44 _ _
() providing lefsurerelated goods and KER(T (EVEREL) HR2  PTBank UOB Indonesia 5,333,009 0.08 565,035 -
(c) investing in properties and securities 8]
MEEH (H) REARAF FHEAR, B8, HENEE FRE p#l 7T 2,400 57T KAERAT (DKRFEL) HRAB  United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) 3,631,829 0.05 2,334,840 0.02
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Real estate development, operating, Chengdu China USD24 Million Chua Yu Lee Bhd
Ltd. leasing and management :
N PN — N = KRIERIT (RE) BRQE United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
LBREELERAR BHFERAREE _ HELEE AR 23127T Lim Beng Teong Company Limited 218,499 - 206,301 -
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation Shanghai China RMB2.3 Billion
mEER (R2) BEEHRAT HEVEBSIMEIER, SR, AREE. Bl E X AR 2406 1Z5¢ SER ait Total 2,437,430,338 34.52  2,287,178,798 18.77
RHMERNEEE. . BIE
UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of new construction Tianjin China RMB240.6 Million Eu Zai Jie,
mcter_iols, s_cule, lease and management Jonathanz
of office buildings, apartment hotel, Due to and placements from banks
commercial facilities ENRIFNFRIR and other financial institutions 2022 2021
FEREBRBEVERAR BRI A REE FE £ AE™ 9191 1Z7¢ Lim Beng Teon . .
Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. Real estate development and operation Shanghai China RMB919:1 Million 9 9 KM LHRAEZZRELLE R  SRAERZRELLH
IR NN
AT (L) BEEEEERAT FEBE, BALH. _ﬁéilz"éii%iﬁj - HE L 27555 DS Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
,F\’/?;nz%zgz ;Sthgggﬂcg) Hotel g'r?ée'cfg%%?gteemrﬁgﬁ(;Zvee;te“;fz;zz%’rgng Shanghai China USD50 Thousand Neo Soon Hup KIERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 1,902,998,837 27.96 10,098,378,083 72.33
BEFRITRDBIRAT BAERTT - MKERERER, NMELEE, 2 sE LA AR 1112096127t BRE FTZESEEERAT Ping An Fund Management
Bl s Company Limited 64,971,957 0.95 20,558,028 0.15
Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. Commercial Banks - Customer deposits, Shandong China RMB111.2096 Billion  Chen Ying
Loans and advances to customers, KEESRTT (BKAET) BRAST  United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
settlement and bill business, etc Bhd. 22,998,102 0.34 - -
FTRESEEERAT E&EE, ESHE, ATEE FRE R AR 13127 TEN B ] ) )
Ping An Fund Management Company Fund raising, fund sales, investment Shenzhen China RMB1.3 Billion Luo Chun Feng KERT (RE) BRQE United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Limited management Company Limited 15,607,652 0.23 18,638,518 0.13
EERNBEWRITRHERAE B RTT - RIBTFR AT, NBEE, B tFE s ARM wh 1E4R= ( ENRE R TR NS ;
Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank Co, Ltd ?ﬂ%g | . . Shanghai China 9064444 1257 Yo Li KEERTT (ENEREIL ) BIRAT  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 1,490,528 0.02 1,388,373 0.01
ommercial Banks - Customer deposits, RMB9.064444 Billi
Loans and advances to customerg, fien &1t Total 2,008,067,076 29.50 10,138,963,002 72.62

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

settlement and bill business, etc
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%S5 MTE

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

TR U TR Customer deposits 2022 2021
REN SEESEZE =l RE  EHEEZBREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LB WERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co.,, Ltd. 3,326,638,580 8.13  2,380,884,762 5.71
RRERIRAEIE (%) BR2A  UOB Venture Management 163,144,509 0.40 186,225,430 0.45
G (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LERERBEWERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 111,937,989 0.27 162,993,143 0.39
EEERBLERAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 109,487,613 0.27 54,386,172 0.13
EEt (REk) ZBEMRAT  Singland (Chengdu) Development 107,657,660 0.26 154,877,804 0.37
Co., Ltd.
BEFRATEEERAR InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 82,170,185 0.20 57,946,712 0.14
EEREABRAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 31,841,981 0.08 27,416,724 0.07
fEER (K2) £BERAT  UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 18,985,178 0.05 25,716,411 0.06
ZAFE (BiE) BIEBEER  Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel 13,947,650 0.03 16,038,080 0.04
NG| Management Co., Ltd.
@SmEFEWERZH (ILR)E  InnoVen Enterprise Management 7,825,622 0.02 10,336,283 0.02
[RAF] Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
LERENEESEEBRAE  Shanghai InnoVen Equity 7,134,362 0.02 - -
Investment Management Private
Limited
®ll (E) BEEERAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 6,524,397 0.02 7,101,882 0.02
Kig (L8) ®#EABEEMRAT  Kheng Leong (Shanghai) 2,989,222 0.01 2,709,768 0.01
Investment Management Co., Ltd.
M TUWEXAEUZEESE  SIP UOB-KAY HIAN Asset Manage- 2,598,311 0.01 _ -
EEFRAT ment Co,, Ltd.
B (ER) BREEERAT AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., Ltd 464,538 - 402,938 -
FiLEWFBEM=FLERA  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate 66,304 - 94,979 -
El Co., Ltd.
ENRUBRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 8,460 - 8,094 -
KEEEAR Key Management Personnel 34,287,960 0.08 49,357,122 0.12
it Total 4,027,710,521 9.85 3,136,496,304 7.53

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

RZWGRI - EAthRZUER Receivables - other receivables 2022 2021
RO SRERZREALLH RO  SARAERZREGLLH
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAE United Overseas Bank Limited 23,707,757 1.86 12,592,561 3.65
LEEMELERAT UOB Property China Co.,, Ltd. 12,931,099 1.02 12,883,206 3.74
KEARFEEGRAR UOB Asset Management Ltd. 356,204 0.03 375,065 0.11
£l (E) BEBRAE Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 5,280 - . _
KEERTT (D3RP ) BRAB  United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) - - 1,543 -
Bhd.
KEERIT (ENERFT) BRAE  PT Bank UOB Indonesia - - 612 -
ait Total 37,000,340 2.91 25,852,987 7.50
RZ{3FRIN - At f {5 Payables - other liabilities 2022 2021
R SRERZREALLG R SRAERZREALLH
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAR United Overseas Bank Limited 377,202,895 27.18 51,852,653 8.24
KEERTT (ENERFAL) BRZA  PTBank UOB Indonesia 1,500,000 0.11 - -
=
LERBELEESEEERAT  Shanghai InnoVen Equity 714,974 0.05 - -
Investment Management Private
Limited
KERTT (RE) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) 430,702 0.03 - -
Public
il (Bl BEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 15,840 - - -
At Total 379,864,411 27.37 51,852,653 8.24
R SRR Financial liabilities held-for- 2022 2021
trading
R SRR ZREALLG R ARARRZREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KRIERITERAF United Overseas Bank Limited 6,152,273,506 63.74 6,719,600,174 97.39

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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%S5 MTE

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

EXISUON Interest income 2022 2021
T ARERZRELLG T ARERZRELLG

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

KERITERAE United Overseas Bank Limited 34,143,612 1.56 2,399,234 0.11
LERREERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 12,489,975 0.57 14,282,244 0.68
1BERITRNBIRAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. 4,130,171 0.19 1,538,098 0.07
mEEk (K2) KBEMRAT  UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 3,334,656 0.15 3,563,174 0.17
EERNERITRHERAE  Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank 190,649 0.01 - -

Co., Ltd

ARIERTT GRE) BRAE United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public 5,937 - - -
ait Totall 54,295,000 248 21,782,750 1.03

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

MEZEH Interest expense 2022 2021
£ SRR ZRELLGI W HEERBZRELG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
LERIEELERAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co,, Ltd. 57,461,759 5.73 35,631,969 3.63
RIERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 49,694,393 4.96 139,298,056 14.20
RRRmBR A EE UOB Venture Management
(L8) BRAR (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2,978,115 0.30 3,315,723 0.34
EREREWVERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 2,209,384 0.22 7,528,401 0.77
mEER (E) ZERBERAR Singland (Chengdu) Development
Co., Ltd. 1,777,916 0.18 1,769,353 018
TRESEEERAR Ping An Fund Management
Company Limited 1,414,248 0.14 545,354 0.06
EERBREIVERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 601,431 0.06 4,956 -
HEER (RE) RKRERAR UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 307,258 0.03 99,790 0.01
HEFRAREERAT InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 202,131 0.02 101,267 0.01
TARFEE (BB BEBEAMRZA  Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
Gl Management Co., Ltd. 165,125 0.02 166,951 0.02
£l (E) BEBERA]E Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 125,834 0.01 121,237 0.01
HEFEWEEZE (4LE)ER  InnoVen Enterprise Management
RE] Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 73,552 0.01 68,294 0.01
KREERTT (BRAT ) BRAE United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
Bhd. 47,419 - - -
KIE (L£8) REABEBRAG Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 35,915 - 4,306 -
Bl EFEAGRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 27,823 - 25,064 -
KERIT RE) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited 19,052 - 18,613 -
AMNTIEXKEABFAZEESE  SIP UOB-KAY HIAN Asset
BERAE Management Co., Ltd. 14,643 - - -
AEERTT (ENERAEIL) BRAT  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 6,906 - 256 -
R EEEERBRAR Shanghai InnoVen Equity Investment
Management Private Limited 3,279 - - -
B (R R AR A AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., Ltd 2,553 - 206 -
FKiEEWHFEERM=FLERAT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. 302 - 137 -
EHNEWERAE Haw Par Corporation Limited - - 1,997 -
XREEAR Key Management Personnel 296,793 0.03 292,820 0.03
ait Total 117,465,831 11.71 188,994,750 19.27
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%S5 MTE

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

FEBERBEWAN Fee and commission income 2022 2021
2T SRERBZRTL 2  ALRERZRELS
Amount 151 Amount Contribution (%)
Contribution
(%)
KERTERAF United Overseas Bank Limited 22,744,601 9.81 19,506,353 9.20
REARFEEGRAE UOB Asset Management Ltd. 4,107,529 1.77 6,492,077 3.06
LERIREVERAF Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 3,642,993 1.57 75,532 0.04
EBElEMEAERAR Xiomen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 24,169 0.01 16,059 0.01
KERTT (RE) BRAE United Overseas Bank (Thai)Public
Company Limited 4,981 - 32,953 0.02
HEFEMAEERRAR InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 3,209 - 4,066 -
st EVARAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 2,712 - 6,842 -
LERNEVRITRHERAR Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank
Co., Ltd 2,593 - - -
KEEWFEEMZFAERAE  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. 2,587 - 4,716 -
EAFE (BB BEEEARZ  Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
Bl Management Co., Ltd. 1,131 - 864 -
KERTT (SRAL ) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
Bhd. 783 - - -
KEERTT (ENERAT) BRAE PT Bank UOB Indonesia 766 - 1,020 -
WmEEt () XBERAR Singland (Chengdu) Development
Co., Ltd 550 B 66 -
mEER (K2 AEERAR UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 502 - 9783 -
e (B17) BIEERAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 472 - 325 -
@EFWERZE (L= ) BE  InnoVen Enterprise Management
NG| Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 455 - 915 -
TRESEEFRAR Ping An Fund Management
Company Limited 283 - 1,019 -
e E VAR AR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 273 - - -
EHNEAERAE Haw Par Corporation Limited 238 - 1,276 -
B (tR) BHEERAE AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., Ltd 162 - 1,268 -
RRmRAERE (L8) BRAE UOB Venture Management 21 - 356 -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
AMITWFEXAELBIHEREEE  SIP UOB-KAY HIAN Asset
BERAE Management Co., Ltd. 14 - - -
XEEEBEAR Key Management Personnel 1,369 - - -
&1t Total 30,542,393 13.16 26,155,490 12.33

212 R%ERT (PE)BRQAF 2022 FERS

FEBRATZH Fee and commission expense 2022 2021
T ARERBZRELLG T ARXXZRZREALLE
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERAE United Overseas Bank Limited 6,104,320 11.92 1,302,887 2.71
RERIT (ENERATE) B PTBank UOB Indonesia 1,128 - 841 -
G
BERITRNBIRAR Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. 274 - - -
KRIEIRIT (KAL) BRAE  United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 129 - 111 -
KRIERTT (RE ) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited - - 42 -
ait Total 6,105,851 11.92 1,303,881 2.71
bl 6 Investment income 2022 2021
T ARERBRELLG T ARXRZREALLE
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
RERITERAF United Overseas Bank Limited 20,011,653 5.18 10,549,775 25.63
General and administrative
W EREEHE expenses 2022 2021
T HEERZFRELLH T ARERZREALLE
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
EERALRE IT support
- RERITERAR - United Overseas Bank Limited 63,458,374 5.81 60,243,628 5.74
BEAENRS Rental and service fee
- bEtERBEVERAT - UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 51,227,881 4.69 50,420,304 4.81
-l (E1D) BEERAT - Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 321,743 0.03 296,133 0.03
‘it Total 115,007,998 10.53 110,960,065 10.58
FERR M Software development 2022 2021
T ARERBRELLG T ARXEXZRZREALLE
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
RIERITERRQF United Overseas Bank Limited 2,837,943 19.36 10,726,086 52.58
fREK Letter of guarantee 2022 2021
R ARERZRELLG R ARERZZRELLA
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERTERAT United Overseas Bank Ltd. 22,034,558 0.89 14,918,763 0.77

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



I Notes to Financial Statements

%S5 MTE

2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

ERANEF Right-of-use assets 2022 2021
REL EHEERZRELLG RE  HRAEZZRELE
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
Ll (E7) BEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited
- EEA®E -Rent 165,983 0.58 - -
LEERELVERAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd
-ERER -Rent - - 38,014,688 50.77
il Lease liabilities 2022 2021
R HEEZRZRELLSG RE  AREXRZREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
Ll (E7) BIEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited
- EEHEE -Ren 167,019 0.64 -
EEERENERAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd
- EEAR -Rent - - 36,055,650 4925
TEESMTIAEY Derivatives 2022 2021
REL EHEERZRELLG R AHRALEZZRELLE
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAA United Overseas Bank Ltd. 18.756.963.309 390 18269283358 357
AREERTT (BRAL) BRAE United Overseas Bank (Malay-
sia) Bhd. 97,263,528 0.02 -
AEERIT (ENERAEIL ) BRAT  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 7 407.600 - 08581
St Total 18,861,634,437 392 18,269381939 357
TEEREr Derivative financial assets 2022 2021
Balance Balance
KIERITERAT United Overseas Bank Ltd. 189,023,037 273,226,747
United Overseas Bank
RERT (BRAEL) BRAT  (Malaysia) Bhd. 515,417 -
KRIERIT (ENEREHEIE ) BRAF  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 217,847 612
&it Total 189,756,301 273,227,359
TEERA R Derivative financial liabilities 2022 2021
Balance Balance
KERITERAF United Overseas Bank Ltd. 365,785,848 502,736,918
AEERTT (BKFAETL) BRAB  United Overseas Bank
(Malaysia) Bhd. 1,507,265 -
AIESRTT (ENERAEIY) BRAE  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 2,087 -
Ait Total 367,295,200 502,736,918

RERTT (PE)BRAT 2022 FERS

HERg s Other debt investments 2022 2021
8 AEERZRELLEG 28  AREXZRILLE

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

1BERITRNBRAR Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. 49,901,588 0.61 - -
AT EH BT RRARGE Revocable loan commitments 2022 2021
M AEERBREILLH T8 SRERZREMLLH

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

LEEMBELERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 4,516 - -

Operating lease

ZEMHERE commitments 2022 2021
M AEERBREILLH 8 SRERZRELLH

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

LEEHRBIERATE UOB Property China Co., Ltd 114,972,472 93.50 -

KRB S ERXREKSHITHRZIREEENE RS F4HT,

U—RZZMERENEM, HIREBWSIEFHT

IR ERRZZIN, RNARSZMAXREBEARFEENOT:

The Bank's transactions with the above-mentioned related
parties are conducted in accordance with normal commercial
transaction conditions, based on general transaction prices,

and in accordance with normal business procedures.

Key management personnel's salaries and benefits are as

follows:

2022

2021

B RFRE M EAMEHRET

Employee salaries and other

short-term incentives

96,300,377

92,895,534

S5RAFEFEEH IR ZIFRWT !

KRB SAEFRUNTIVFEESHREBHETRL SN, KER

REHMKERZFo

Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the
annuity were conducted between the Bank and the annuity

established by the Bank.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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W SRR MEE
2022 F[E Year ended 31 December 2022
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

+=. #HE
1. fERETEA
KA AENEREA 8L EYERNFEANERRERYZ

WMIR, BENMEAYNEEEEN 2-5F, chITANER
HIBERN 3-4 &, MHARSRBSSMERN. KRIEEEN.

XIl. Lease

(1) As lessee

The Bank has lease contracts for various items of houses
and buildings and vehicles used in its operations. Leases of
houses and buildings generally have lease terms of two to
five years, while those of vehicles generally have lease terms
of three to four years. A few lease contracts have an option
to extend the lease or an option to terminate the lease.

2022 2021

S5HEEEXNIER Cash outflow related to lease

58,480,228 67,160,791
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Potential future cash outflows not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

The potential future cash outflows that the Bank does not
include in the measurement of lease liabilities mainly arise
from variable lease payments, extension and termination
options in lease contracts, residual value guarantees, and
risk exposures such as leases that have been promised but
not yet commenced.

Extension options and termination options

There is no change on lease terms arose from the change
on the assessment of option to extend the lease, option to
terminate the lease or actual option exercise situation in
2022.

Leases that have been promised but not yet commenced
The leases that the Bank has promised but have not yet

commenced are expected to have future cash outflows as
follows:

2022 2021

1TEUR (B15) Within one year (including one year) 40,989,712 151,800

1TEE2F (§24F) Onetotwo years (including two years) 40,989,712 59,500
2EZE3E (B34%) Two to three years (including three years) 40,989,712

122,969,136 211,300
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Additional information on lease expense

The Bank uses the simplified approach to account for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets which
are not recognised as the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Profit or loss recognises on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets is as below:

2022 2021

ZHATEER 2R A Expenses for short-term leases 7,154,520 6,818,088
Expenses for leases of low-value

RINMEFREZEA GEEATARERRIN)  assets (other than short-term leases) - -

7,154,520 6,818,088
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Other information relating to leases

For right-of-use assets, refer to Notes I\V.15 and Notes VI.10;
for interest expense of lease liabilities, refer to Notes VI.31;
for practical expedients of short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets, refer to Notes IV.15; and for lease
liabilities, refer to Notes IV.15 and Notes VI.23.

Xlll. Post Balance Sheet Events

As at the date on which the financial statements are
approved, there is no material post balance sheet event
that needs to be disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

XIV. Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to
conform to the current year's presentation.

XV. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 10 March 2023.
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